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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's joint Finance and Environmental

          4  Protection Committee hearing. My name is David

          5  Weprin, and I chair the Finance Committee.

          6                 I'm pleased to welcome you today to

          7  this oversight hearing, co-chaired by Councilman Jim

          8  Gennaro. We have a number of members that are here

          9  and we'll be joined by more as we go along. Those

         10  members that are here now are Council Member Domenic

         11  Recchia from Brooklyn, Council Member Mike McMahon

         12  from Staten Island, Council Member Jimmy Vacca from

         13  the Bronx, our Minority Leader, Councilman Jim Oddo,

         14  from Staten Island and Brooklyn. Council Member

         15  Peter Vallone, Jr., from Queens, Council Member

         16  Matthew Eugene from Brooklyn, and I think that's it

         17  for now, and on my left is Anne Brown, Counsel to

         18  the Finance Committee, and we also have Tanisha

         19  Turnbull, who is Deputy Counsel to the Finance

         20  Committee. And we have Council Member Melissa

         21  Mark-Viverito, from the Bronx and Manhattan.

         22                 Today's oversight hearing will focus

         23  on the progress the New York City Department of

         24  Environmental Protection has made in its efforts to

         25  improve customer service, billing practices and
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          2  collection performance and how the Department plans

          3  to implement the recommendations made by the

          4  consulting firm Booz Allen Hamilton.

          5                 DEP hired Booz Allen after a number

          6  of media reports found that DEP's flawed billing

          7  system prevented them from effectively collecting

          8  millions of dollars in overdue payments.

          9                 DEP engaged Booz Allen in January of

         10  this year to conduct an extensive analysis of

         11  current DEP operations and processes, compared to

         12  best practices of other large water utilities.

         13                 Since taking over the responsibility

         14  for water billing from the Department of Finance in

         15  1995, DEP has been continually plagued by inadequate

         16  customer service, inaccurate and ineffective

         17  billing, and a lower than expected rate of

         18  collection of delinquent money owed on water bills.

         19                 According to DEP's own testimony, it

         20  was not uncommon for customers to have to wait over

         21  45 minutes to have their call or complaint answered

         22  by DEP.

         23                 In addition, DEP has testified that

         24  its own bills are hard to read and difficult to

         25  understand and it still does not maintain accurate
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          2  records for water use.

          3                 By the Commissioner's own admission,

          4  DEP can only accurately read approximately 85

          5  percent of the meters, a percentage far below that

          6  of other municipalities.

          7                 In all fairness, I will acknowledge

          8  that Commissioner Lloyd, through no fault of our

          9  own, inherited a legacy of systematic problems,

         10  especially in the areas of customer service, and

         11  enforcement collection. Yet, I do believe that some

         12  of these billings and collection problems are still

         13  pervasive.

         14                 I have heard from a number of

         15  constituents who have told me that their water bills

         16  never made it to the correct address, that the

         17  estimated bill they received seems far too high, if

         18  based on actual use, and when trying to resolve

         19  obvious errors in their water bills, they often

         20  times encounter an unresponsive and uncooperative

         21  bureaucracy.

         22                 At numerous Committee hearings,

         23  including the Council's annual budget hearings, we

         24  have queried DEP regarding some of these problems,

         25  and what their plans have been to address them.
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          2                 It is my understanding that the

          3  Department has made substantial progress in some of

          4  the customer service areas. For example, in the last

          5  18 months, DEP has extended the hours of its call

          6  center, thereby dramatically reducing waiting time,

          7  laid the planning needed for the City's conversion

          8  to automated meter reading AMR, received a 41

          9  percent reduction in the time for written

         10  correspondence and reorganized staff.

         11                 Some of these changes were done at

         12  the behest of the consulting firm Booz Allen

         13  Hamilton, which according to the Commissioner's

         14  testimony, was hired "to look at the whole place top

         15  to bottom."

         16                 In August of this year, Booz Allen

         17  issued its finding, and I look forward to hearing

         18  from the Department on if and how they plan to

         19  implement some of these recommendations made by Booz

         20  Allen.

         21                 I am especially interested in hearing

         22  from the Department and representatives from Booz

         23  Allen on the recommendation to allow the Department

         24  to sell stand-alone water liens.

         25                 As you may know, I have opposed the
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          2  Administration's request to authorize DEP to be able

          3  to sell stand-alone water liens and residential

          4  property every single time this issue has been

          5  raised before this Committee.

          6                 While I have always supported the

          7  right and the extension of the right of the City to

          8  sell property tax liens with an outstanding water

          9  bill component, I still oppose a stand alone lien

         10  sale for residential properties and it should be

         11  used only as a last resort.

         12                 Before we begin this morning, I would

         13  also like to mention that we will be hearing from

         14  Mark Page, the Director of the Office of Management

         15  and Budget, who is with us. And also Executive

         16  Director of the Municipal Water Finance Authority.

         17                 Just this past July, the Water Board

         18  adopted a historic 11 and a half percent rate

         19  increase and just recently the Water Board announced

         20  that it is looking into a proposed mid-year 18

         21  percent water rate hike.

         22                 Back in May, during the Council's

         23  annual budget hearing, I voiced my opposition, as

         24  well, I believe, as Councilman Gennaro, that this

         25  unprecedented rate hike was the highest in over 15
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          2  years.

          3                 Again, I am outraged by this

          4  announcement and with the Administration's decision

          5  that they feel they have no other recourse than to

          6  raise bills by a potential additional 18 percent,

          7  which would be on top of the 11 and a half percent

          8  that took effect less than four months ago, when New

          9  York City is facing a foreclosure crisis, and so

         10  many New Yorkers are finding it difficult to remain

         11  here as a result of this City's high fees and taxes.

         12                 I look forward to hearing from the

         13  Administration on their justification, and need for

         14  this rate hike.

         15                 I will now turn the mic over to my

         16  co-chair, Councilman Jim Gennaro, Chair of the

         17  Environmental Protection Committee, and if he can

         18  introduce the members that have joined us since we

         19  did the last round of introduction.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you, Chairman Weprin. I have a prepared statement as

         22  well, which I won't read in the interest of time.

         23                 I thank David for his comprehensive

         24  statement and I certainly wish to be associated with

         25  his remarks.
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          2                 It all begins with an accurate water

          3  billing system. This is what we have always needed,

          4  have not had, and what this Administration has been

          5  trying to move closer to and I certainly appreciate

          6  their efforts and certainly the hiring or the

          7  placement of Joe Singleton in this position, whom

          8  everyone has high regard for, certainly is a good

          9  step forward.

         10                 But let me just focus a little bit on

         11  the pronouncement of the Water Board, DEP, the

         12  Administration, whomever, regarding the 18 and a

         13  half percent or 18 percent increase that is, as I

         14  understand it, under contemplation. And my reaction

         15  of course is how dare you? There is a one-month drop

         16  in collection. A one-month drop in collection which

         17  my colleagues say I want to let them know that this

         18  is already budgeted for when the Water Board, the

         19  Water Finance Authority and DEP, and the

         20  Administration set the rates, there is about $100

         21  million contingency which is built in, a surplus, if

         22  you will, for exactly this kind of situation, if

         23  there is a drop in collection, if there is a

         24  drought, if there is some sort of catastrophic

         25  situation that goes on, we want to have more money

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  in the system for precisely this.

          3                 So, this has already been budgeted

          4  for. So, you have collections doing okay in July,

          5  collections okay in August, a dip in September, and

          6  we're talking about, we're talking about an 18

          7  percent increase when, notwithstanding the efforts

          8  of DEP, there are still thousands of properties that

          9  receive service but do not get any water bill

         10  whatsoever because they have no DEP account.

         11                 This number of properties that don't

         12  get billed is coming down under this Administration

         13  because this Administration is located in, but we're

         14  in a situation where not everyone even gets a bill,

         15  and we're talking about raising 18 and a half

         16  percent.

         17                 Let's also talk about the

         18  unconscionable lease payment residual which is

         19  something which is going to come out at this

         20  hearing. I've been talking about it for months. I'm

         21  going to continue talking about it. At the end of FY

         22  '07, DEP, or the Water Board paid to the City about

         23  $60 million as part of the rental payment that did

         24  not go to anything that had anything to do with

         25  water and sewer, it went to the City's general fund.
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          2                 This year that number will be about

          3  $76 million. Seventy-six million dollars will go

          4  into the City's general fund, the water and sewer

          5  rates are being used as an opportunity to raise

          6  general revenues for the City's general fund. It's

          7  unconscionable. It must end. Within a couple of

          8  years, the amount of the water and sewer rates that

          9  go into the City's general fund have nothing to do

         10  with water and sewer operations will exceed $300

         11  million, and so this is something which is

         12  unsustainable, to use a word of the moment, and must

         13  end.

         14                 And I remember when in 2005, when the

         15  last effort to try to make some progress with regard

         16  to collect from people who weren't paying their

         17  bills, it was the posture of the Water Board and the

         18  Water Finance Authority and DEP and the

         19  Administration to propose a lower water rate than

         20  was needed in order to commit themselves to more

         21  aggressively collecting from customers, and that

         22  year the water rates were raised only three percent,

         23  to give the Department an incentive to go out and

         24  capture monies. And so now we have a much different

         25  philosophy, where we have a 11.4 percent increase
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          2  fueled by this outrageous rental payment, to be

          3  followed several months later by the specter of an

          4  18 percent rate increase, precipitated only by a

          5  one-month drop in collections.

          6                 So, I certainly appreciate what's

          7  going to be put forward here today about the good

          8  efforts of Booz Allen and DEP to try to make their

          9  billing, collections and operations more efficient,

         10  but the posture of this Administration with regard

         11  to gratuitously throwing out these boogie men water

         12  rate increases is unconscionable and something that

         13  this Administration has to answer for.

         14                 And, so, with that said, I welcome

         15  everyone here today. It's a pleasure to see

         16  everybody, and I have to, let me recognize some of

         17  my good colleagues that are here. Council Members

         18  DeBlasio from Brooklyn. Melissa. She already got

         19  recognized. Council Member Mark-Viverito from

         20  Brooklyn -- from Manhattan; Vinnie Gentile from

         21  Brooklyn, Lew Fidler from Brooklyn. And Oliver

         22  Koppell from the Bronx.

         23                 Okay, with that said, we would like

         24  to welcome everyone here. Please state your names

         25  for the record, and proceed with your good
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          2  testimony.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Good morning,

          4  Chair Weprin and Chairman Gennaro. I'm joined --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

          6  speak right into the microphone.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: How is that? Is

          8  that better?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: All right, thank

         11  you.

         12                 I'm joined by Mark Page, Budget

         13  Director for the City and by First Deputy

         14  Commissioner Steve Lawitts, to my left, from DEP.

         15                 And good morning to the members of

         16  the Committee on Environmental Protection and

         17  Finance and those of you who are joining who are not

         18  members.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  testify today. I'm Emily Lloyd, Commissioner of the

         21  New York City Department of Environmental

         22  Protection.

         23                 Last December we came before you to

         24  discuss our plans to improve customer service in the

         25  Bureau of Customer Services. Since that time, we
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          2  have further reduced the average customer wait time

          3  at our Customer Call Center. We have overhauled our

          4  correspondence processing unit, and created a

          5  customer-friendly dispute form to ease processing

          6  and further reduce wait time. The number of disputes

          7  is down and time to process disputes has been cut to

          8  one-quarter.

          9                 We've implemented new billing notices

         10  that alert customers to spikes and consumption,

         11  developed new payment options, including a feeless

         12  online service available via our website and new

         13  walk-in locations for cash payments Citywide.

         14                 We've significantly enhanced the

         15  language accessibility of our written materials, and

         16  implemented several new collection programs,

         17  including a residential service termination pilot

         18  late last summer that resulted in swift payment from

         19  21 chronically delinquent customers, and a similar

         20  pilot currently underway for more than 30 commercial

         21  properties throughout the City.

         22                 We have also begun the process of

         23  issuing shut-off notices to approximately 2,000

         24  commercial properties under the Water Board's

         25  existing regulations.
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          2                 Just last week, DEP asked the Water

          3  Board to broaden the existing regulations governing

          4  shutoffs.

          5                 In addition, in early November, DEP

          6  will introduce for single-family homeowners a

          7  one-time only payment incentive program that offers

          8  to cancel late payment charges of customers, settle

          9  their delinquent accounts.

         10                 Customers who don't settle within 90

         11  days will be scheduled to service termination. We

         12  are extremely pleased to be offering this program,

         13  the PIP, as we feel it will afford customers with

         14  outstanding accounts receivable and a history of

         15  billing disputes, a critical opportunity to settle

         16  their accounts and avoid serious collection actions.

         17                 We will be conducting extensive

         18  outreach around this program, and we hope the

         19  Council members will join us in promoting the PIP.

         20                 In my testimony this morning, I will

         21  elaborate on the great progress we've made in

         22  transformation of our customer service, billing and

         23  collection operations since that time.

         24                 Following that, I will discuss the

         25  reasons for why our water rates will continue to

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  increase without the Council's authorization to use

          3  lien sales, and means to collect from customers who

          4  will otherwise never pay.

          5                 To maintain a reliable revenue stream

          6  and in turn maintain vital components of our City's

          7  infrastructure, we need an effective set of

          8  enforcement tools.

          9                 Though service termination is

         10  effective in recovering revenue from some sources,

         11  going forward, in order to increase payment rates,

         12  confidently collect the revenue needed to run our

         13  system and recoup past due revenue owed us by

         14  delinquent customers, we will need stand-alone lien

         15  sale authority.

         16                 Recently the lack of authority to

         17  conduct stand-alone lien sales, has contributed

         18  significantly to our diminished revenues and

         19  required the Water Board to consider a mid-year rate

         20  increase of 18 percent.

         21                 Our Bureau of Customer Services is

         22  DEP's primary interface with the City's 826,000

         23  water and sewer account holders, whose payments

         24  support the entire water and wastewater system.

         25                 Historically, this relationship has
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          2  suffered from poor access to customer assistance,

          3  and inability to resolve disputes promptly, high

          4  numbers of estimated bills and a lack of adequate

          5  enforcement techniques.

          6                 However, over the last 15 months, DEP

          7  has taken aggressive steps to improve customer

          8  service and develop a road map for continued

          9  improvement in the future.

         10                 Our first step was to overhaul our

         11  customer call center and make immediate changes in

         12  the way we interact with our customers.

         13                 To achieve this, we retrained

         14  existing staff, added new staff in critical

         15  positions and extended call center hours, all of

         16  which resulted in wait time reductions of as much as

         17  95 percent.

         18                 On high volume days the average wait

         19  time is 15 seconds, and during lower volume days, it

         20  drops to nine seconds.

         21                 We also upgraded existing system

         22  technology to give staff better access to account

         23  information, so that they could be more helpful to

         24  callers.

         25                 In addition, we undertook an
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          2  extensive effort to correct errors in our customer

          3  data. We matched our data against comprehensive

          4  Department of Finance databases, we focused on

          5  return mail to raise our percentage of cash

          6  certified addresses from about 75 percent to 95

          7  percent. And we retained a consultant to visit sites

          8  with chronic no reads to identify and resolve meter

          9  access problems.

         10                 Most recently we've begun verifying

         11  customer telephone information in anticipation of an

         12  aggressive outbound calling initiative to customers

         13  delinquent between 30 days and one year, which is

         14  scheduled for the end of this year.

         15                 We have also been mailing monthly

         16  overdue notices to customers between the quarterly

         17  bills to remind them of their payment obligations.

         18                 Perhaps most importantly we began

         19  sending spike notices to many customers with

         20  unusually high reads, rather than automatically

         21  sending an estimated bill.

         22                 Over the last eight months, 40,000

         23  such notices have been substituted for estimated

         24  bills resulting in 25,000 requests for leak

         25  detection kits.

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 In January of this year, when we

          3  engaged the consultant Booz Allen Hamilton, and I

          4  will say that this procurement had been in the works

          5  for several months prior to some of the news

          6  coverage and our decision to do it was not based on

          7  media coverage but we were already in the process of

          8  doing that. We asked them to help us address our

          9  immediate goal of correcting delinquent behavior and

         10  encouraging increasingly timely payments throughout

         11  our customer population.

         12                 Based on their rigorous analysis of

         13  DEP's A/R, Booz Allen developed customized

         14  collection strategies for each customer category and

         15  according to the A/R age, up to one year, one to

         16  five years, and over five years. This work is

         17  detailed in Booz Allen's report in which you've

         18  already received highlights.

         19                 The full report will be available on

         20  our website later this morning.

         21                 I've been very pleased by the quality

         22  of Booz Allen's analysis and by their operational

         23  recommendations, and I'm equally pleased to report

         24  that they will continue to support a transformation

         25  of the Bureau of Customer Services, and Dave Mader
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          2  from Booz Allen is with us this morning and will be

          3  happy to answer questions later.

          4                 Based on this analysis, DEP decided

          5  to focus first on collecting A/R aged five years or

          6  less, and to defer analysis if they are older than

          7  five years, until we had initiated steps to collect

          8  newer A/R.

          9                 So, industry experience indicated

         10  that collectability declines precipitously after two

         11  years, DEP's own experience revealed that we could

         12  effectively collect on debt aged five years or less.

         13                 Collecting on accounts with debt aged

         14  more than five years is a more acute problem. Our

         15  working assumption was that much of the information

         16  about these accounts would be significantly flawed

         17  and in fact we referred to them that way in the

         18  early stages of our study, and these represent about

         19  30 percent of our outstanding A/R.

         20                 However, after analysis, we

         21  discovered that, actually after analysis by Booz

         22  Allen, we discovered that much of the A/R was

         23  actually collectible.

         24                 Though many of the delinquent

         25  accounts had debt older than five years, significant
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          2  portions of their debt had occurred within the last

          3  five years. Concurrent analysis of Department of

          4  Finance databases revealed that many of the same

          5  customers with delinquent water and sewer accounts

          6  were diligently paying their property taxes or other

          7  City fees.

          8                 This point is particularly important,

          9  because DEP's returns from the Department of Finance

         10  lien sale process had diminished significantly, due

         11  to a number of well-known loopholes in various other

         12  process constraints.

         13                 DOF's process does not include

         14  properties with delinquent water and sewer bills

         15  unless they also owe taxes, and properties are

         16  removed from the lien sale process if they satisfy

         17  tax payments, regardless of their outstanding water

         18  and sewer delinquency.

         19                 In recognition of this fact, DEP will

         20  pursue collection on all accounts with debt aged

         21  five years or more. Beginning November 1st,

         22  approximately 3,000 such residential accounts will

         23  be among those included in DEP's payment incentive

         24  plan.

         25                 As part of this program, these
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          2  accounts will be forgiven all of the late charges

          3  that have accrued on account and utility costs will

          4  be capped at $2 a day, if they pay the remaining

          5  balance immediately.

          6                 Combined with a strong enforcement

          7  tool like service termination or lien sales, this

          8  program will allow us to collect debt effectively

          9  for many of these most complex accounts.

         10                 To reduce delinquency moving forward

         11  and establish a fair and equitable foundation for

         12  these new collection strategies, DEP is overhauling

         13  its dispute resolution process. Like many major

         14  utilities, building disputes are or have been a

         15  significant problem for DEP that can lead to

         16  inefficient customer service and adversely affect

         17  customer payment rates.

         18                 Historically BCS had handled building

         19  disputes on an ad hoc basis with different customer

         20  service representatives and account managers

         21  reaching different conclusions about similar

         22  disputes.

         23                 The resolution process was

         24  decentralized and inefficient, delegating most

         25  disputes to a lengthy review process by second level
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          2  account managers and representatives.

          3                 Preliminary analysis revealed that of

          4  accounts and dispute over the past year, 56 percent

          5  were one, two, and three family residential

          6  properties and 72 percent have water and sewer

          7  balances under 1,000.

          8                 In other words, their disputes are

          9  likely to be fairly simple. Furthermore, the vast

         10  majority of complaints from these customers related

         11  to minor billing issues, discrepancies as a result

         12  of a high estimated bill for example.

         13                 Based on analysis and examination of

         14  effective approaches used elsewhere, DEP has adopted

         15  a four-step dispute resolution process. Each step is

         16  standardized with staff at each step authorized to

         17  resolve progressively more complicated and/or higher

         18  value disputes. The first step is at point of entry,

         19  usually the call center. Our walk-in borough service

         20  center.

         21                 The customer service representatives

         22  in the call center are currently being trained in

         23  the adjustments they are authorized to make and will

         24  be able to offer this to customers by the end of the

         25  year.
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          2                 With this first level of problem

          3  solving, many unresolved disputes will be avoided

          4  all together.

          5                 Filing a written dispute is usually a

          6  second step, although it is occasionally the point

          7  of entry. One of the simple but very significant

          8  innovations in this area is the introduction of a

          9  customer friendly dispute form which can be

         10  downloaded from our website.

         11                 The form will help to standardize the

         12  complaint process and result in a more consistent

         13  and efficient documentation and tracking of

         14  disputes. It will also speed filing and DEP's

         15  response time.

         16                 The staff at this level is trained

         17  and authorized to exercise additional discretion.

         18  All staff involved in the dispute resolution process

         19  at all levels are receiving training in issue

         20  escalation and dispute resolution, as well as new

         21  standard operating procedures developed by Booz

         22  Allen.

         23                 The third step, an entirely new one,

         24  is the face-to-face meeting currently being piloted.

         25  Customers who make a verbal or written request will
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          2  be able to informally discuss the disputes with

          3  trained BCS managers, which will enable us to better

          4  explain charges to the customer and to adjust the

          5  charges if merited.

          6                 The final step is an appeal to the

          7  Water Board. We anticipate that our work to overhaul

          8  the preliminary dispute resolution steps will

          9  greatly reduce the number of appeals, and allow for

         10  more detailed review as needed.

         11                 I believe that we have gone about the

         12  difficult task of fixing the Bureau of Customer

         13  Service in the right way. Taking the time to

         14  understand what has been an intractable problem,

         15  then moving quickly to implement recommendations, as

         16  they were developed, reviewed and adopted.

         17                 Virtually all the major

         18  recommendations under our control are now underway.

         19  We are also working to fundamentally change the way

         20  we collect billing information. This fall we

         21  conducted a field test of automated meter reading

         22  technology at 800 properties throughout Brooklyn and

         23  Lower Manhattan.

         24                 Once implemented Citywide, AMR will

         25  provide more frequent and accurate usage information
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          2  to DEP customers and DEP and dramatically reduce the

          3  use of estimated bills, which can be a major cause

          4  of billing disputes for our customers.

          5                 AMR technology has been widely used

          6  throughout the country, and it has helped many

          7  municipalities dramatically improve collection

          8  rates. AMR will allow DEP to collect water meter

          9  readings remotely without needing to gain access to

         10  the property.

         11                 Citywide installation will begin in

         12  June of 2008 and DEP estimates that all 826,000 AMR

         13  devices will be installed by the end of 2010, with

         14  approximately 1,200 devices installed each day until

         15  then.

         16                 Because approximately 76 percent of

         17  all call center inquiries in 2006 were related to

         18  billing and meter reads. DEP is designing new bills

         19  to enhance to enhance communication with our

         20  customers and reduce the likelihood of customers'

         21  complaints.

         22                 An interim bill would be introduced

         23  by June 2008 and by 2009, a final version will be

         24  implemented that leverages the comprehensive usage

         25  information made available through AMR.
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          2                 These are critical accomplishments

          3  that are moving us towards the level of customer

          4  service we are permitted to providing.

          5                 However, as we have always known,

          6  good customer service alone cannot persuade all of

          7  our customers to pay their bills in a timely way or

          8  in some cases at all.

          9                 Even with this year's customer

         10  service changes, revenue is down 70 million against

         11  our 2.25 billion annual financial plan, the first

         12  quarter this fiscal year and will continue to fall

         13  without adequate enforcement tools.

         14                 I just wanted to refer to one chart.

         15  In New York City, the diversity of our housing stock

         16  and the immense size of our customer base requires

         17  multi-faceted collection strategies, both to ensure

         18  adequate revenue collection and consistent treatment

         19  of all customers and property types.

         20                 DEP has developed a collection

         21  strategy that is workable on a Citywide basis and

         22  accounts for the billing history specific to certain

         23  property type and tax classes.

         24                 But as you can see, less than

         25  one-quarter are the types of properties where it
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          2  would really work to use service terminations.

          3                 That's the single-family property,

          4  and the commercial property.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Commissioner.

          6  Commissioner, you'll have to use a microphone if

          7  your statements are going to be on the record.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Excuse me,

         10  Mr. Chairman. Do we have a copy of that chart?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm sorry, we

         12  don't. But we'll be glad to provide one, one that we

         13  can pass around.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, what

         15  we're going to do, I think they're going to try to

         16  make a microphone available to you so you can stand

         17  at the chart and have your comments on the record,

         18  as well.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: People in the

         21  past have tried to sort of pick up the desk

         22  microphone there, sort of, you know, checkered

         23  results.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: How's that?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sounds great.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: All right. If you

          3  can hear me, this very simply what I wanted to refer

          4  to is that the segment in blue are commercial

          5  accounts receivable and the section in yellow are

          6  single-family homes.

          7                 Now, those are two types of accounts

          8  that we think really are amenable to service

          9  termination as an effective enforcement tool. The

         10  rest that's been read are residential properties

         11  where there are tenants, and Booz Allen's

         12  recommendation and the experience of other cities,

         13  and our belief as well, is doing service

         14  terminations on buildings where there are tenants is

         15  not a very effective way to proceed for two reasons:

         16                 First of all, the tenant most likely

         17  has paid their rent and part of their rent is the

         18  water and sewer rate that they pay into that rent.

         19  That's part of the calculation, and it's the

         20  building owner who is not paying, not the tenant.

         21  And if you shut off water, it's the tenant who is

         22  penalized, not the building owner.

         23                 In addition, under our existing

         24  Health Department regulations, it would be specific

         25  on a site-to-site basis, but after several hours,
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          2  probably not more than 12 hours, the Department of

          3  Health would have to vacate the building, and that

          4  seems to be a tremendous hardship on the tenants to

          5  have to vacate the building if it is not paid within

          6  less than 24 hours.

          7                 So, for that reason, we feel that

          8  this very significant portion here, more than

          9  two-thirds, of the properties, residential

         10  properties, that have tenants, are not appropriate

         11  for service termination.

         12                 DEP has begun to design and implement

         13  a successful service termination program, including

         14  recently proposed changes to Water Board regulations

         15  that would broaden the criteria for service

         16  termination and increase its utility as collection

         17  strategies Citywide.

         18                 DEP piloted residential service

         19  termination late this summer. Twenty-one delinquent

         20  customers who had defaulted on payment agreements

         21  received notices indicating that their service would

         22  be terminated if they did not pay a specified

         23  percentage of their delinquent amount within the

         24  next 30 days.

         25                 Within the 30-day period, all 21
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          2  customers paid the required amount. Last week we

          3  began a similar pilot for more than 30 commercial

          4  properties that had defaulted on payment agreements,

          5  and we have begun the process of noticing

          6  approximately 2,000 more commercial properties under

          7  the Water Board's existing service termination

          8  regulations.

          9                 It is DEP's expectation that lien

         10  sale will encourage payment in much the same way as

         11  service termination, and result in significant

         12  revenue collections without actually selling liens

         13  on those properties. This has always been the case

         14  in the past.

         15                 One of the most important initiatives

         16  was the structure of payment incentive program prior

         17  to service termination. The PIP creates a financial

         18  incentive for customers with long-standing disputes

         19  to come to closure with DEP on their outstanding

         20  bills.

         21                 The financial incentive would, at a

         22  minimum, be a cancellation of late payment charges.

         23  As part of the PIP, DEP will begin mailing services

         24  to nearly 8,500 residential customers on November

         25  1st, informing that their late payment charges have
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          2  been reduced, and if they pay their full-load amount

          3  within 90 days, they can avoid service termination.

          4                 After 90 days, customers who don't

          5  avail themselves of this offer will be scheduled for

          6  service termination.

          7                 The incentive program will offer

          8  customers a significant opportunity to settle their

          9  accounts before being scheduled for shutoffs, and

         10  allow DEP to better target delinquent customers.

         11                 Although DEP will continue expanding

         12  the shutoff program, shutoffs alone will not be

         13  enough to collect revenue. Ultimately stand-alone

         14  lien sale authority will be necessary to maintain

         15  revenues and continue to execute our capital budget

         16  effectively.

         17                 The Administration is clear that some

         18  Council members are concerned about the consequences

         19  of authorizing a lien sale based only on delinquent

         20  water and sewer charges.

         21                 I can remind the Council that the

         22  history of lien sales in New York City shows great

         23  sensitivity to the importance of preserving property

         24  ownership.

         25                 The Council has continually extended
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          2  the lien sale authority, because the lien sale

          3  process is both fair and effective.

          4                 This process has always emphasized

          5  working with property owners, and where necessary,

          6  with social service providers before and after a

          7  lien sale to prevent homeowners from being

          8  dispossessed.

          9                 For stand-alone water and sewer lien

         10  sale, we will mirror the already proven Department

         11  of Finance lien sale procedures.

         12                 Additional protection will be

         13  provided by the fact that DEP is strengthening the

         14  dispute resolution process to offer additional

         15  opportunities for DEP and property owners to review

         16  charges.

         17                 Over the past year, DEP has made

         18  significant and steady customer service

         19  improvements. We have enhanced our customer

         20  relationships and fundamentally overhauled the tools

         21  and systems we use to manage billing, collections

         22  and all of their aspects of customer service. And in

         23  preparation for being granted stand-alone lien sale

         24  authority, we have devoted significant time as part

         25  of the reorganization of BCS to redesigning our
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          2  internal lien sale process, by developing standard

          3  operating procedures that build on our successful

          4  work with DOF, to create a rigorous account review

          5  and selection process, and ensure that only the

          6  truly delinquent customers are targeted.

          7                 If we are not able to take effective

          8  action on customers responsible for the

          9  approximately $600 million in past due arrears, then

         10  these positive changes and the work of our broader

         11  transformation as well will be undermined by the

         12  higher rates we will be forced to impose on our

         13  paying customers.

         14                 As noted earlier, the lack of

         15  authority to conduct stand-alone lien sales has

         16  already resulted in revenues down $70 million

         17  against plan for the first quarter of this year and

         18  required the Water Board to consider an 18 percent

         19  mid-year rate increase.

         20                 The long-term consequence of failing

         21  to meet this obligation will be more expensive bonds

         22  that will further increase the costs of building

         23  critical water infrastructure that will inevitably

         24  show up in the water and sewer rates.

         25                 Improvements in customer service
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          2  satisfaction will not lead to increased revenues

          3  without adequate means of enforcement. And though

          4  input from the various stakeholders in our system

          5  helped guide the transformation of BCS, it also

          6  helped to publicize the weakness of our system and

          7  reinforce the mentality of chronically delinquent

          8  payers, that non-payment will have no significant

          9  repercussions.

         10                 A growing set of DEP's customers

         11  simply will not pay their water and sewer bills

         12  unless threatened with serious collection actions

         13  such as service termination or lien sale, and will

         14  continue to take advantage of the current loophole

         15  that allows properties to be removed from the lien

         16  sale process if they satisfy tax payments,

         17  regardless of their outstanding water and sewer

         18  delinquencies. We need your help to fix this.

         19                 I will be pleased to answer any

         20  questions that you may have. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 You know, I must say, I'm a little

         24  amazed at your emphasis on the stand-alone water

         25  lien sales as the end-all solution to all your

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  problems, when Booz Allen went into great detail

          3  about so many other areas other than stand-alone

          4  lien sales where you could improve your operations

          5  and achieve additional revenue.

          6                 I'm also amazed at the fact that I

          7  have indicated and Finance staff has indicated on

          8  numerous occasions that we had no problem with

          9  extending the regular lien sale program which

         10  expired on August 31st, 2006. It's over a year, a

         11  year and two months, to be exact, since the lien

         12  sale program expired. There has been request on the

         13  part of the Administration to renew that, and under

         14  the old lien sale program, unpaid water bills were

         15  added to unpaid commercial property, or unpaid

         16  property tax bills, and there was millions and

         17  millions of dollars that could have been collected,

         18  but the Administration chose not to ask for that

         19  renewal authority.

         20                 I'm really, frankly, besides myself

         21  how you can come before us in good conscience and

         22  say that the only thing that can solve your problem

         23  is stand-alone water lien sale when you were

         24  complicit in not requesting additional extension of

         25  the old sales, and actually under the old program,
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          2  which expired on August 31st, 2006, you already had

          3  the authority to stand-alone water lien sales for

          4  commercial property.

          5                 The only thing you didn't have was

          6  the stand-alone water lien sales residential

          7  properties, where the little old lady in Holliswood,

          8  and I've got quite a few of those, or in Bellerose,

          9  or in Queens Village, potentially who has a paid up

         10  house, to potentially lose her house because of

         11  misbilling based on your own admission of mistakes

         12  in the billing, and her inability to actually come

         13  down to your office which she was told that she

         14  could only resolve this by physically coming down to

         15  Manhattan until my office got involved in a couple

         16  of cases.

         17                 But how can you testify standing

         18  before us now in saying the only solution, our only

         19  solution not to have an 18 percent increase, and a

         20  double digit increase is stand-alone water lien

         21  sales, when you and Department of Finance

         22  voluntarily did not want a renewal of the authority

         23  where you could have been collecting millions of

         24  dollars in unpaid water bills?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: The millions of
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          2  dollars would have been a very few million dollars.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, I tend to

          4  disagree with that.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, from the

          6  sale of lien properties last time it was $3 million

          7  collected.

          8                 Booz Allen is quite clear that all of

          9  the interim steps that they recommend are only

         10  effective if there is effective enforcement at the

         11  end of that, which every other major city in the

         12  country has. And the reason that the piggy-back lien

         13  sale is not effective is because it leaves about

         14  three-quarters of people who owe us water bills not

         15  included.

         16                 It includes at best a very small

         17  number of people who owe us water bills and it is

         18  simply totally inadequate. It is not a situation

         19  where a little something can really make a big

         20  difference for the better, we really need to be able

         21  to collect the full compliment of those bills.

         22                 And in addition, I just would like to

         23  comment on, an elderly person would not be in that

         24  situation because we have been working both with HPD

         25  and with the Department of the Aging, and in both
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          2  cases they have programs that would be of assistance

          3  and that situation would not occur where an elderly

          4  person lost a house.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You're proposing

          6  that you would exempt senior citizens from a

          7  stand-alone water lien program if we were to enact

          8  one?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm saying that

         10  Department of Aging and HPD, between the two of

         11  them, as well as HRA, have programs that would

         12  provide that safetynet.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Would you

         14  support, if we did a stand-alone water lien sale

         15  program, to exempt senior citizens from that

         16  program.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: My understanding

         18  is that we're restricted in what we can do in that

         19  way, and that the more appropriate way to do it,

         20  rather than doing it with water money raised from

         21  ratepayers is to do it through the social service

         22  program available through those other agencies.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's not my

         24  question.

         25                 If this City Council were to
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          2  authorize stand-alone water lien sales with the

          3  provision that senior citizens be exempted from that

          4  program, would you support that legislation?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I would recommend

          6  against it, but I'm very anxious for lien sale

          7  legislation to be passed, obviously.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm not clear I

          9  know what the answer to that question is.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: My current

         11  believe, and I may be wrong, my current belief is

         12  that such an exemption would not be allowed under

         13  the way we are currently set up.

         14                 But if it were allowable and if the

         15  revenue was given to us in some way so it wasn't

         16  borne by other ratepayers, then I think it would be

         17  perfectly fine.

         18                 My concern is that whatever one

         19  person doesn't pay, someone else who is a ratepayer

         20  has to pay, because it's a closed system.

         21                 So, I would much rather have the

         22  agencies that are set up to pay for those things do

         23  their job rather than taking it out of other

         24  ratepayers' pockets.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: My understanding
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          2  from Council is that the City of Chicago has a lien

          3  sale program where senior citizens are exempted by

          4  legislation.

          5                 I'm going to repeat my question

          6  again, if the Council were to enact a stand-alone

          7  water lien program exempting senior citizens, would

          8  you support that plan?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I can only repeat

         10  my answer. I would think then that perhaps the City

         11  of Chicago is slightly different. They do several

         12  things differently than the way we do.

         13                 My current understanding, of which I

         14  will certainly check with Corp Counsel, is that that

         15  is not a program that we are empowered to do, that

         16  we are expected to turn to the social service

         17  agencies for that kind of assistance.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Let me ask

         19  you a couple of more questions.

         20                 Before we adopt a water lien sale,

         21  what have you done to implement other parts of the

         22  Booz Allen recommendation, specifically on -- well,

         23  you mentioned the payment incentive program, but

         24  dunning notices and high volume outbound calling,

         25  and low-volume outbound calling, have you started to
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          2  implement any of those aspects of the Booz Allen

          3  report which could result in potential revenue

          4  outside of stand-alone water lien sales?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. We have

          6  started on the outbound calling and what we have

          7  found is that there is a fairly high incidence of

          8  new phone numbers, in part possibly because people

          9  are using cell phones more, so we have undertaken a

         10  process which has enabled us to really fill in a lot

         11  of phone numbers that are no longer correct, and we

         12  will begin that -- we either have begun or will

         13  begin by the end of the month the outbound calling.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I want to

         15  recommend --

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: But I want to

         17  stress again the assumption is that that is an

         18  effective tool in the context of having enforcement.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, you know, I

         20  would sooner explore all of those options before

         21  stand-alone water lien sale.

         22                 What about the Booz Allen comparison

         23  of other cities, what they're currently doing that

         24  we're not doing, such as credit reporting and

         25  collection agencies, hiring outside collection
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          2  agencies?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We have not used

          4  credit reporting because it is very -- I'm going to

          5  ask that I defer and respond to that a little later

          6  so I can get you the exactly accurate language.

          7                 We have started the process of

          8  putting that in place, but there were some issues

          9  with it that caused us to pause.

         10                 I think that the thing that I want to

         11  emphasize is that we have put in place much easier

         12  on-line payment, that we have put in place monthly

         13  dunning notices for people who have not paid their

         14  bill, and that to some degree has been a substitute

         15  until we can get the outbound calling fully in place

         16  and we have started to do the service terminations,

         17  and we think the most effective thing that we will

         18  do will be the payment incentive plan which I think

         19  was really at the heart of what they recommended for

         20  the outstanding account for one to five years, which

         21  is the largest single number of accounts.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Let me ask you

         23  another question, Commissioner.

         24                 The implementation of the Booz Allen

         25  recommendation, based on their own report would not
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          2  be complete until 2011. How would you feel if the

          3  Department of Finance was given collection authority

          4  by this body until the Department, until your

          5  Department's transition was complete?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think that the

          7  things that are much longer term are the last pieces

          8  of the technology. And I think -- and the things

          9  that have to wait for that. I think that with

         10  dispute resolutions, we will go to the heart of what

         11  really has been a problem, in terms of collecting

         12  bills and feeling comfortable doing more aggressive

         13  enforcement, and that that will be the piece of it

         14  that really makes the difference, and that the other

         15  pieces will be refinements but are not necessary to

         16  do it effectively and fairly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, would you

         18  support our giving the Department of Finance

         19  collection authority until your act was in order? Or

         20  until everything was in order?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Transferring

         22  collection to the Department of Finance?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: No, I would not

         25  support that because I think that there was a
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          2  tremendous loss of information and effectiveness

          3  when it was transferred from Finance to ourselves.

          4  We have now reorganized the Department. We have put

          5  short-term upgrades on the technology. We have

          6  trained the staff. We have put in place the payment

          7  improvement plan. We have put in place the dispute

          8  resolution, which is much more extensive than what

          9  Finance did. The program will be a much more

         10  customer-friendly program than anything that Finance

         11  could offer.

         12                 And they're not used to dealing with

         13  bills that go up and down every corridor. I think

         14  that that would be something that would be very

         15  difficult for them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Have you

         17  had any discussion with Director Page, or maybe

         18  Director Page could answer this better, and I know

         19  we have Pay McCoy from the Water Authority here, as

         20  well, have you looked into eliminating this rental

         21  agreement with the City? The excess payment that

         22  Chairman Gennaro referred to, which would result in

         23  immediate revenue, not going to the general fund,

         24  but actually be used to potentially subsidize the

         25  water increases?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I had responded

          3  to that in December, but I asked Mr. Page if he

          4  could join us today so that he could respond to that

          5  more fully.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Mr. Page.

          7                 MR. PAGE: I guess I would like the

          8  opportunity at some point this morning to testify

          9  more broadly, but on the subject of the --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're always

         11  happy to have you testify more broadly, Mr. Page.

         12                 MR. PAGE: Yes.

         13                 On the subject of the rental payment,

         14  the rental payment in this year's financial

         15  operation for the utility is, I believe, about $77

         16  million beyond the cost that the City is currently

         17  paying in interest and principal on City debt

         18  outstanding for water and sewer capital purposes.

         19                 That $77 million, even if it were to

         20  go away instantly, which I wouldn't recommend, in

         21  fact, is not enough to address the shortfall in

         22  revenue collection that we are experiencing from

         23  water and sewer ratepayers this year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: It would help,

         25  though. It would certainly help.
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          2                 MR. PAGE: Well, it's hard to forecast

          3  how people are going to behave, but the current

          4  shortfall is probably in excess of $200 million on

          5  an annual basis. That's taking the trend of the

          6  first quarter of this year, June, Jul -- I'm sorry,

          7  July, August and September, forward through the year

          8  and it is that trend which gives rise to the

          9  estimate of the need for an 18 percent increase.

         10                 That trend didn't just start in July

         11  either, it actually had been pretty consistent since

         12  last April of this year.

         13                 That rental payment, the fact of the

         14  matter is it's a revenue to New York City, in New

         15  York City's budget operations, that amount of money

         16  will pay for about 1,000 police officers, about

         17  1,200 teachers, about 6,000 child care slots. It

         18  will house 2,000 homeless families for a year. It

         19  would provide for about 500 miles of street

         20  reconstruction.

         21                 The overall operation of the water

         22  and sewer utility in New York City costs a little

         23  bit more than $2 billion a year. This 70 some

         24  million dollars is an extremely small percent. You

         25  might compare it to the $850 million a year that Con
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          2  Edison pays New York City in taxes. Another utility

          3  that provides a vital service to us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I don't disagree

          5  that it's a small amount in the overall budget, but

          6  --

          7                 MR. PAGE: I guess just the one

          8  further element that I note is that the rental

          9  payment is in part a feature of the structure of the

         10  water and sewer utility and the credit worthiness of

         11  the water and sewer utility. It's an amount of money

         12  that effectively provides a cushion that the back

         13  end of meeting the debt service and operating cost

         14  requirements of the utility on an annual basis.

         15                 I agree that the size of the rental

         16  payment paid by the utility to the City on an annual

         17  basis is something that we can certainly discuss

         18  going forward. The current projections show it

         19  growing substantially in the outyears. Similar

         20  projections show the City's budget gaps growing

         21  substantially in the out years, and unfortunately

         22  the first outyear where their substantial is next

         23  year, '09, which is going to be a subject of some

         24  concern to all of us, I expect, in the coming

         25  months. But what the appropriate size of the rental
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          2  payment may be going forward I believe is an open

          3  question.

          4                 I would just repeat that the 70 some

          5  odd million dollars of rental payment present in the

          6  financial structure for this year is not something

          7  that's going to fix this revenue picture.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I got that.

          9                 Chair Gennaro is going to go in a

         10  little bit more detail on the rental payment, but it

         11  seems to me, just logically, the fact that we had a

         12  $6 billion surplus last year, that the 76 million

         13  would make a lot more sense being applied to

         14  reducing water rates than going into the general

         15  fund, where it will become 6 billion and 76 million

         16  surplus. It just seems that, you know, it will have

         17  less of an effect in the general fund than it would

         18  if it was applied to something that makes sense

         19  logically to apply, which would be to subsidize the

         20  water rates.

         21                 I'm not going to go into this any

         22  further, because I know Chair Gennaro will.

         23                 I just have one other question for

         24  maybe both of you; and that's, it seems to me kind

         25  of crazy that you're considering an 18 percent
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          2  increase based on a couple of weeks of negative

          3  collection revenue. Let me pose a question: Let's

          4  assume it was the opposite. Let's assume that all of

          5  a sudden you had a surplus, ten-fold, all of a

          6  sudden if for two or three weeks, incredibly, that

          7  nobody ever anticipated. Would you then recommend an

          8  18 percent decrease in the water rates?

          9                 MR. PAGE: I just would like to

         10  correct one of your statements, which was that it's

         11  a couple of weeks of shortfall. It's actually a

         12  steady shortfall that's been in place since last

         13  April, and amounts to about a seven percent

         14  shortfall through the first quarter of this year.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Fine, fine, fine.

         16  Let's say it was the opposite and it was a surplus,

         17  would you recommend an 18 percent reduction?

         18                 MR. PAGE: The rate revenue required

         19  on an annual basis is driven in the structure by the

         20  cost of providing water and sewer service in New

         21  York City. That's the operating cost and it's the

         22  interest and principal on the debt, and there are

         23  some smaller amounts that also fit into it, but

         24  those are the primary drivers of the need for

         25  revenue.
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          2                 In this structure, that amount of

          3  money needs to be derived from the rate base. If in

          4  one year the amount is over, it doesn't increase the

          5  rental payment to the City. The money stays in the

          6  utility, and it would be available as a source in

          7  the future, which all things being equal, would

          8  reduce the rate revenue necessary to collect in the

          9  next year, which would in effect reduce whatever the

         10  rate level would otherwise have had to be.

         11                 I don't know whether it would result

         12  in a reduction or not. Unfortunately the cost of

         13  providing this service in New York City is

         14  increasing for heavily environmental but for other

         15  reasons as well. Whether you would actually get a

         16  year-to-year reduction? I don't know. It would

         17  depend on how the numbers went.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, how would

         19  you feel if we adjusted property tax rates on a

         20  monthly or every other month basis in the middle of

         21  the year, as opposed to adopting property tax rates

         22  once a year?

         23                 MR. PAGE: Well, as you may recall, we

         24  have adjusted property tax rates mid-year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: In 2002, when we

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  had a fiscal crisis.

          3                 MR. PAGE: Yes.

          4                 The great thing about the property

          5  tax, quite honestly, is that in June of each year

          6  you get the taxable value of real property in New

          7  York City, and you set the rate and the delinquency

          8  rate is highly predictable, and very small, so that

          9  as a practical manner we very predictably realize

         10  the revenue that we are expecting when we set the

         11  levy percent in June each year.

         12                 What we are dealing with here is rate

         13  revenue which is based on water usage, which varies

         14  somewhat, is also very dependent, however, on the

         15  collection of past due amounts and the amounts that

         16  ratepayers are paying on their current bills.

         17                 Up until the last six months or so,

         18  we've been reasonably successful at forecasting how

         19  much cash we would actually get at a given rate out

         20  of the water and sewer customer base. The problem

         21  that we're dealing with at the moment is that our

         22  actual collections have slipped by about seven

         23  percent from what we would have expected the rate

         24  base was worth, and we are somewhat at a loss in

         25  terms of what exactly what is causing that. However,
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          2  it is an extremely serious event in this structure,

          3  and we believe that the lien sale authority is an

          4  essential piece to remedy that shortfall and put us

          5  back onto at least the historical pattern of how

          6  much revenue a given rate base is worth in this

          7  system.

          8                 Without the lien sale authority, we

          9  are extremely concerned, not just with revenue

         10  collection for this year, but the outlook in the

         11  future.

         12                 This model is, seems to have become

         13  very difficult to predict, and without a significant

         14  change, we believe particularly on the enforcement

         15  side, and you've heard of all the efforts DEP is

         16  making in terms of its customer relations billing

         17  and accuracy, but without a major change on the

         18  enforcement side, we are extremely concerned we will

         19  be facing a major escalation in rates beyond the

         20  increases in cost to the service, but necessitated

         21  to pay for service that people use and don't pay

         22  for, that is the delinquent bill payer.

         23                 If you think of this for just a

         24  minute, and I'll stop. Give me another 60 seconds,

         25  okay?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You do have us

          3  all confused at this point, but...

          4                 MR. PAGE: All right. You've got four

          5  people who go out to lunch. It cost $100.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Right.

          7                 MR. PAGE: If each of them pays his

          8  share, it's $25 each. If two of them get out and

          9  walk out, they've still eaten the lunch, the two

         10  guys sitting there are left with $50 each. Our

         11  problem in the water and sewer utility in New York

         12  City is that everybody is eating the lunch. They're

         13  all getting water and sewer service, if a chunk of

         14  the people don't pay, which is what we're up against

         15  at the moment, everyone else has to pick up the

         16  check they left on the table, we would guess, and

         17  one of the major improvements in this system we need

         18  is something that will give us an accurate sense of

         19  delinquency, but we'd guess that about a fifth of

         20  our customers are not paying. That means that the

         21  four-fifths who are paying are carrying that cost.

         22  That's actually a 25 percent increase on each one of

         23  their bills.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I got it. I got

         25  it. I got it. The good apples are subsidizing the
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          2  bad apples. We got that.

          3                 But the problem I have with this is,

          4  before we enact stand-alone water lien sales,

          5  there's a lot of other collection methods that can

          6  be done as detailed in the Booz Allen Report in

          7  addition to the regular property tax lien sale where

          8  the water was added on and there's a lot of money

          9  that could be collected with that.

         10                 Let me just end with this, and then

         11  I'm going to turn it over to Chair Gennaro.

         12                 The press has widely reported that

         13  they believe, or someone believes that this proposed

         14  18, or 18 and a half percent mid-year increase, is

         15  just a threat to the City Council to basically tell

         16  them that if they don't adopt the stand-alone water

         17  lien sales, you know, that they're going to do this

         18  increase, that it's all tied to kind of coercing the

         19  City Council to act to do stand-alone water lien

         20  sales.

         21                 What do you say to that?

         22                 MR. PAGE: I hope that I don't confuse

         23  you further, but this is going to be a piece of my

         24  testimony. I'm the Budget Director. I'm no longer

         25  the Executive Director of the Water Authority,
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          2  although I was for a long time before I was Budget

          3  Director, that's Pay McCoy at this point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Although your

          5  staff that works for OMB also works for the Water

          6  Authority. Duplicate staff. The same exact staff

          7  works for both.

          8                 The Water Authority staff works for

          9  OMB; is that true?

         10                 MR. PAGE: With the exception of Pat

         11  McCoy and one staff member, they also work for OMB.

         12  They're actually, he and a staff member are solely

         13  working for the Water Authority.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I can effectively

         15  say that you control the Water Authority?

         16                 MR. PAGE: You know, I started working

         17  for New York City in January of 1978.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, you've done

         19  a great job.

         20                 MR. PAGE: Well, yes and no.

         21                 But one thing that I have been

         22  responsible for to a very large degree in other

         23  administrations and perhaps even more so in this

         24  one, is how New York City goes about borrowing

         25  money.
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          2                 When I started out, we just failed to

          3  persuade anybody to buy a note sale in the fall of

          4  1977. We now have AA ratings on the General

          5  Obligation Debt, we also have AA ratings on the

          6  water debt.

          7                 In the early eighties --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And that's

          9  without stand-alone water lien sales.

         10                 MR. PAGE: Well, hang on. In the early

         11  eighties, when we were having trouble persuading

         12  people to buy General Obligation Bonds, a group of

         13  us were looking around trying to figure out how to

         14  get the credit markets to buy something, and we

         15  figured, well, water revenue bonds, they're supposed

         16  to be pretty straight forward and people can

         17  understand them, and, so, let's set up that

         18  structure for New York City.

         19                 The essence of the structure is must

         20  simpler than City government in general, but also in

         21  some ways much less accommodating.

         22                 The essence of it is that you set up

         23  a structure where you determine how much it's going

         24  to cost you to pay interest and principal on your

         25  debt, how much it's going to cost you to operate the
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          2  system. You add up the numbers, and you have a

          3  mechanism that is going to set rates to collect that

          4  amount of revenue in each year.

          5                 What that means is that this

          6  enterprise is dependent on actually getting the

          7  money from the users of the system. There are all

          8  kinds of covenants that run to now about $18 billion

          9  worth of bond holders that lock in that revenue from

         10  the rate payer's relationship with the costs of

         11  providing the service in New York City.

         12                 The reason I am here today and not

         13  just the DEP Commissioner, is that we're not just

         14  talking about any one of hundreds of different New

         15  York City revenues when you're talking about the

         16  water and sewer rate revenue, you're talking about

         17  one revenue stream which is absolutely essential for

         18  the successful continuance of the water revenue bond

         19  source for what is now about a third of New York

         20  City's borrowing program.

         21                 And the successful operation of that

         22  structure and the successful deriving of enough

         23  revenue to meet its requirements each year is not

         24  just something that's essential to maintain investor

         25  confidence in the water revenue bonds. As you point
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          2  out, this is pretty closely related to New York

          3  City, notwithstanding the resource separation from

          4  the City and its general fund that it represents.

          5                 If we don't manage this one

          6  competently, it's not just going to damage people's

          7  confidence in the water revenue bonds, it's going to

          8  damage people's confidence in all of the other

          9  vehicles that we use to access the credit markets.

         10                 Again, as you point out, this

         11  enterprise is run by the same group of people who

         12  run the GO program, the transitional finance

         13  authority, Jay Street Development Corporation, a

         14  whole long list of enterprises that now successfully

         15  and economically access the credit markets for New

         16  York City.

         17                 This issue --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         19                 MR. PAGE: I'm sorry. I'm finally

         20  getting to the bottom line of the point you asked,

         21  which is, we are just here talking about a rate

         22  increase because we're trying to pressure the City

         23  Council on the liens.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, that was the

         25  question.
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          2                 MR. PAGE: The answer is no. The Water

          3  Board exists as an independent entity, it has a

          4  legal responsibility locked in against the bonds, to

          5  produce the amount of revenue in each year that's

          6  necessary for this utility.

          7                 As a practical matter, given our

          8  experience to date this year, the rate base isn't

          9  producing that number. Again, as a practical matter,

         10  the Water Board is obliged to watch collections, and

         11  is obliged to adjust the rates in the course of the

         12  year, if the system is not working.

         13                 As we see it at the moment, the

         14  system is not working this year, and we believe that

         15  the key to it is enforcement and that a vital

         16  component of the enforcement is the ability to sell

         17  water liens.

         18                 They are, as experienced in other

         19  utilities, and when you think about it here, less

         20  disruptive than water turnoffs to people's lives. It

         21  is a way of getting at a non-residence ownership

         22  interest in buildings.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The water can be

         24  turned on though. The water can be returned on, but

         25  once your house is sold, it can't be repossessed.

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. PAGE: But that's not true. The

          3  way the lien sale pattern works, it has worked now

          4  for a long time on property liens and water liens,

          5  although homeowners have progressively learned that

          6  if you pay down the property lien, you can leave the

          7  water one out there and nothing happens to you.

          8                 But the way that works is that we

          9  notice the property, the notice gets printed in the

         10  newspaper. The majority of property owners pay when

         11  the notice shows up in the newspaper. A certain

         12  number of liens are actually sold. When the lien is

         13  sold, the purchaser of the lien basically continues

         14  to attempt to get the account paid.  A very small

         15  proportion of the liens actually sold are ultimately

         16  foreclosed on. Even after the lien is sold, if the

         17  property owner pays, the lien goes away. I mean, I

         18  suppose that's the equivalent to the water being

         19  turned on, except that you haven't suffered through

         20  an occupied building with no water service in terms

         21  of getting the owner to the point of pulling himself

         22  together to pay the bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I don't

         24  want to belabor this, but in June the Water Board

         25  adopted an 11 and a half percent increase. You're
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          2  proposing now an 18 and a half percent increase,

          3  which is a 30 percent increase for one year. If we

          4  would have had water lien sales, stand alone water

          5  lien sales in that period of time, what would you

          6  estimate the increase would have been instead of 30

          7  percent? Or not been?

          8                 Give me a number.

          9                 MR. PAGE: I think that we would not

         10  be looking at the need to adjust the rate upward

         11  mid-year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So you're saying

         13  it would have been 11 and a half percent instead of

         14  30 percent?

         15                 MR. PAGE: I think we could have gone

         16  with the rate we had, because we believed that the

         17  reason we're falling off the forecast in terms of

         18  our current collections is that our rate base has

         19  become increasingly aware that there is no

         20  consequence for not paying a water and sewer bill in

         21  New York City, and we're trying to address that with

         22  more intense shutoffs, and with the means of

         23  enforcement through liens.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. My problem

         25  with that, Mr. Page, is that when the 11 and a half
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          2  percent was proposed, it was -- and Councilman

          3  Gennaro and I objected, as well as most of the

          4  Council, the reason that was given to us, or one of

          5  the major reasons was 11 and a half percent and not

          6  30 percent was that we didn't have the stand alone

          7  water lien sales.

          8                 Now you're saying to me it would have

          9  had 11 percent, 11 and a half percent only, if we

         10  would have had stand-alone water lien sales. To me

         11  the numbers just don't make any sense. There is no

         12  question in my mind that a lot more can be done as

         13  far as your collection. You know, DEP's collection,

         14  before we do stand-alone water lien sales.

         15                 I'm going to turn it over to Chair

         16  Gennaro.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman. I'd just like to continue along the line

         19  that Councilman Weprin was -- his line of

         20  questioning.

         21                 I've been Chairman of this Committee

         22  for almost six years. I've been working with the

         23  Committee since 1990, and what strains believability

         24  is that every year, when the Water Board and the

         25  Water Finance Authority budget for their
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          2  expenditures, there is always the surplus which we

          3  sort of build in there to make sure that we have

          4  enough money to run the system for the year.

          5                 And every year, year after year after

          6  year after year, we forecast this surplus to be 100

          7  million, 80 million, 85 million, 125 million, always

          8  comes in much, much more than it always is.

          9                 Last year we had anticipated or

         10  budgeted for a surplus during the year of about $100

         11  million, and it came in as usual, $176 million, $185

         12  million, something like that, so there was a big

         13  carry over from last year. And, so, now all of a

         14  sudden, all of a sudden we had this huge drop off

         15  which had been, you know, unexplained, and

         16  notwithstanding the fact that we have the best

         17  experts, Booz Allen, telling us how we can do better

         18  collections, this just perplexes this Committee,

         19  this Council and the people in the audience. It is

         20  difficult for us not to see this as anything other

         21  than some kind of boogieman, some kind of blackmail

         22  to force us to give you what you want when this

         23  institution is not quite sure that you are ready for

         24  the big tools, based on the complaints that our

         25  offices get about the bills that they said that they
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          2  don't own, it's difficult, you know, to work with

          3  DEP, and they force you to pay the bill, and now

          4  this institution is suffering from what our

          5  constituents suffer from, in that we are being, you

          6  know, given this option of giving you stand-alone

          7  water lien sales, or we'll be blamed for the 18

          8  percent increase, which is not unlike what the

          9  people who own a home look at when they've got a

         10  bill that they know is not accurate, but they know

         11  if they go in a payment plan they can get DEP off

         12  their back. And this is what David, and the rest of

         13  my colleagues are going to try to give a voice to.

         14                 It is difficult for us to believe

         15  that this phenomenon is really, is actually out

         16  there, and is not a ploy. And this stems from the

         17  fact, and I've got to bring this -- it stems from

         18  the fact that all of this information, the good

         19  people on the waterboard get is information which is

         20  controlled by the Administration. There is no

         21  independent regulator in the form of the Water

         22  Board.

         23                 Every shred of information that is

         24  given to the good people on the Water Board and

         25  generated by the Bloomberg Administration. There is
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          2  no independent staff. It would be as if the staff

          3  for this institution worked for the Administration,

          4  and I would posit that we would get different

          5  information if all of the people that worked for

          6  this institution, you know, worked for the Bloomberg

          7  Administration, and not for the institution of the

          8  City Council. So, this is the frustration that we

          9  have. We see it as a ploy. While we don't like the

         10  fact that a lot of people don't pay their bills,

         11  it's this institution's responsibility to make sure

         12  that your guys are ready for prime time,

         13  notwithstanding the good efforts that have been made

         14  of late with Joe Singleton and Emily taking a real

         15  interest in this and bringing in Booz Allen. We have

         16  to make sure that in any kind of aggressive

         17  targeting, you're targeting authentic account

         18  delinquency and we don't have the satisfaction that

         19  that really is the case.

         20                 It wasn't really much of a question,

         21  but to the extent that you like to respond to

         22  anything that I just said, I would be glad to have

         23  your response.

         24                 MR. PAGE: One could take what you

         25  said to be that we're making up numbers. I don't
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          2  believe that you think that that's actually true.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I just

          4  read, when the 18 percent increase was first

          5  floated, I read that there was a $31 million revenue

          6  shortfall for the month of September. I read today

          7  that it's 70 million, this is only the matter of a

          8  couple of weeks, it's gone from 31 million to 70

          9  million.

         10                 So, I am wondering where these

         11  numbers are coming from, and I'm wondering the

         12  phenomenon which just began, according to you, in

         13  April, why was this not existent just in recent

         14  years? In 2006, when we let the Authority to do

         15  liens, to do the lien sales, expire. Never

         16  mentioned, never brought up. It wasn't a big deal.

         17  Back in 2005 when we did only a three percent

         18  increase, we were going to commit ourselves to a

         19  more aggressive tactic of getting money from people,

         20  stand alone lien sales wasn't on the table as

         21  recently as 2005. All of a sudden here we are after

         22  11.4 percent increase, four points of which went to

         23  the rental payment residual, which I'll get to in a

         24  minute, and here we are in this situation where the

         25  only salvation for the planet is stand alone lien
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          2  sales, whereas heretofore it wasn't discussed.

          3                 This is the frustration that we have

          4  here.

          5                 MR. PAGE: There has been a difficulty

          6  of enforcement of payment on water and sewer bills

          7  in New York City for a long time. The highest water

          8  rates I'm aware of on the east coast of Boston.

          9  Boston has about a 99 percent payment rate, because

         10  Boston turns off service within 60 days. It doesn't

         11  care who you are, what the weather is, how old you

         12  are, what your poverty situation might be - they

         13  simply turn off service.

         14                 That has never, I think, been an

         15  attractive across-the-board practice in this City.

         16  We've struggled with other ways of making the users

         17  of this service take it seriously.

         18                 I mean, it is an independent utility

         19  structure as I described it. The City itself pays

         20  something over $50 million a year to this utility

         21  for the City's own use of water and sewer services.

         22                 On these liens, the fact of the

         23  matter is that increasingly property owners have

         24  become aware that if their delinquency puts them

         25  into the lien sale track, all they've had to do is
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          2  to pay down their property tax delinquency and it

          3  takes them out of the track, and that has become

          4  more and more common knowledge, which makes the lien

          5  sale authority as it has existed less and less

          6  effective for us.

          7                 The other basic issue is, the

          8  property tax delinquency rate in New York City is in

          9  the high nineties. I think it's somewhere between

         10  two and three percent. So that if you're using that

         11  group as the only access to the delinquent water

         12  group --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. PAGE: Where I would guess the

         15  delinquency is more like 20 percent, it doesn't

         16  match up.

         17                 We really need --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. PAGE: We have a model of

         20  administering lien sales, which has actually, as the

         21  Commissioner mentioned, turned out to be effective

         22  in collecting and, you know, you haven't read

         23  headlines over the years about old ladies being

         24  thrown out of their houses, and that's had to do

         25  with the sensitivity of how well I think the lien
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          2  process and the care around actual foreclosure at

          3  the back end that's going to --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But we have had

          5  --

          6                 MR. PAGE:-- We need to extend that

          7  model so that it can work for water.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But that only

          9  works if you're targeting authentic account

         10  delinquency, that people aren't getting lien notices

         11  unless they actually owe the money. And on behalf of

         12  the other 50 members of the City Council, we all

         13  have our water bill horror stories.

         14                 So, what we're being asked to swallow

         15  here is that, yes, we have a report and it just came

         16  out and it provides us with a road map of how we can

         17  be better, and how we can be more efficient, and a

         18  lot of my colleagues are probably thinking they just

         19  got the road map in their hands, how can they

         20  possibly have implemented everything in that report

         21  already to such an extent where essentially DEP can

         22  be trusted to use the exercise of that authority

         23  appropriately, because we've all had the experience

         24  where it just hasn't been the case.

         25                 When we look at what's out there now
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          2  about the things that haven't happened yet, we don't

          3  have the automatic water reader's map. We're only

          4  getting accurate reads on 85 percent of the things.

          5  We've got all kinds of estimated bills. We have

          6  thousands of properties that get water service but

          7  don't get any bill whatsoever because DEP has no

          8  account for them.

          9                 It's only recently that DEP has even

         10  reconciled the addresses held by DEP and those held

         11  by the Department of Finance to make sure that bills

         12  are going to the right place. This is a mammoth

         13  undertaking that they've tried to do in a short

         14  amount of time, and we have to make sure that you

         15  guys are ready to do this. No one likes the fact

         16  that a large percentage of people don't pay their

         17  bills. And ultimately the bill gets paid when the

         18  title has to be cleared, when they do a refinance,

         19  or when they sell the property or whatever, so it's

         20  really money deferred, but we would like people to

         21  pay on time.

         22                 So, I don't want to belabor this, but

         23  that will be my statement on what you're facing with

         24  this body.

         25                 Let me also make reference to what
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          2  you said, Mr. Page, with regard to the rental

          3  payment residual, which is something my colleagues

          4  -- I don't want to go into a tutorial on how this

          5  works, but once upon a time when we started with the

          6  Water Board and the Water Finance Authority in 1985,

          7  the rental payment was a mechanism that was

          8  conceived of to pay the pre-1985 general obligation

          9  debt that used to service the DEP's capital needs

         10  and it's certainly important that we not only pay

         11  the new Water Finance Authority debt which we've

         12  incurred since 1985, but also the pre-1985 General

         13  Obligation Debt and the rental payment was a

         14  methodology of doing that, which is completely above

         15  board and fine to do.

         16                 But in recent years, the rental

         17  payment has what I've come to call a residual which

         18  goes back to the City's general fund which has been

         19  spoken about which was $60 million last year, $76

         20  million this year, by the Year 2012 it will be $200

         21  million, by the Year 2015 will be over $300 million

         22  in revenue that, if nothing changes, in water and

         23  sewer revenue, that will come into the system, that

         24  will go into the City's general fund, and will be

         25  used for things, as Mr. Page said, like hiring cops,
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          2  hiring teachers, housing homeless families, paving

          3  miles of streets, hiring case workers, and these are

          4  things that are supposed to be paid for with City

          5  general revenues, not the water and sewer regressive

          6  taxation that we have with water and sewer.

          7                 The richest person in this City and

          8  the poorest person in this City pays the same amount

          9  for water, there is no progressivity built into

         10  that. And for this Administration to believe it is

         11  acceptable for general revenue to be raised through

         12  water and sewer taxes, is inappropriate and,

         13  frankly, unconscionable, and so this is something

         14  which has to change.

         15                 And, so, my question to you, Mr.

         16  Page, do you believe that it is truly sustainable

         17  that by the Year 2015 we could have over $300

         18  million of rental payments that won't pay off any

         19  pre-1985 debt but will go into the City's general

         20  fund, and we'll be using to the tune of $300 million

         21  a year the raising of general revenues through water

         22  and sewer fees; is that sustainable?

         23                 MR. PAGE: No, I expect that some

         24  people will be here negotiating what the budget is

         25  going to look like for that year, presumably in the
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          2  months leading up to it, and they will be arguing

          3  about sources of revenue and use of revenue as we

          4  do. What the outcome of that will be in that year I

          5  don't know. These things are a matter of choice.

          6                 In fact, water and sewer rates in New

          7  York City are comparatively moderate, our tax rates

          8  are not. And there are choices that can be made

          9  here.

         10                 This is a separate utility. It

         11  utilizes, as any business in this City does, police,

         12  fire, streets, what have you, and the fact that it

         13  should contribute what is somewhere between three

         14  and four percent of the revenues toward those

         15  general services, as compared to what most

         16  independent businesses would contribute in taxes

         17  toward services of that kind, I don't believe is

         18  unreasonable. You could choose to do it or not do

         19  it, but I don't believe that it's unreasonable.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         21  I believe I speak on behalf of all of my colleagues,

         22  and this will be my final statement. I think I speak

         23  on behalf of all of my colleagues, that when our

         24  constituents pay their water and sewer bill, they

         25  believe that they're paying for a water and sewer

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  service. It is regressive. They pay the same as the

          3  richest person in this City and they never would

          4  expect that money in their water and sewer bills are

          5  going to hire cops, hire teachers, house homeless

          6  families and do all of these wonderful other things,

          7  which should be paid for out of general revenues in

          8  the way that the City historically has raised

          9  general revenues by progressive methods of taxation

         10  and not by putting it on the backs of water and

         11  sewer payors.

         12                 MR. PAGE: Could I just speak to that

         13  for a second?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Sure.

         15                 MR. PAGE: Many water and sewer

         16  utilities in fact give discounts for volume, so that

         17  in fact, in many utilities, the larger user gets a

         18  cheaper deal. In this one, that's not true. You pay

         19  the same amount per unit of water, whether you're a

         20  small household, or some big corporation or a house

         21  with 42 bathrooms and six dishwashers.

         22                 Everybody pays the same rate. So,

         23  although we're not progressive as compared to many

         24  water and sewer utilities, we actually area.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With all due
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          2  respect, I don't think that justifies the recent

          3  practice, and this is only a recent practice,

          4  because up until very recently, all of the rental

          5  payment was dedicated to water and sewer debt, and

          6  it's only a recent phenomenon that we have water and

          7  sewers monies going to the City's general fund. I

          8  think it's a bad precedent to set, $60 million last

          9  year, $76 million this year, $300 million within a

         10  couple of years. I understand your point and where

         11  you're going with that but I don't agree with it,

         12  but I will thank you for your testimony and for

         13  being here today.

         14                 I'd like to recognize that we're

         15  joined by Council Member Comrie, Sears, Gerson and

         16  Jackson. And I wish to recognize the next

         17  questioner, Council Member McMahon.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Council member?

         19  Mr. Chairman?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: With apologies

         22  and respect.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If I can just

         25  make one comment on some of the things that you
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          2  said.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think you were

          5  making an ongoing comment that the read rate was

          6  only 85 percent, but I think it's very important to

          7  recognize that that was really an issue, first of

          8  all, that's about seven-eighths get read, most

          9  people get not even one estimated bill a year. That

         10  was really a huge issue because we were not able to

         11  do any dispute resolution very effectively if there

         12  was any around those estimated bills.

         13                 One of the things we did was peel off

         14  a huge amount of those estimated bills with spike

         15  notices, which has made I think a very big

         16  difference. And secondly, now that we have dispute

         17  resolution in place, we've already been doing it,

         18  piloting it, starting to use some of the techniques

         19  even as we're rolling it out and it will be rolled

         20  out by the end of the year.

         21                 But I did mention that the number of

         22  disputes is already down, and the amount of time it

         23  takes to go through is one-quarter of what it was.

         24  So, we are not waiting. We are not implementing the

         25  things in the Booz Allen study. I think we have
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          2  already made very significant progress in some of

          3  the very things that you've cited.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly,

          5  as I did at the outset, which I'm happy to do now,

          6  is really you, as Commissioner, that has taken this

          7  issue by the horns and tried to move it forward and

          8  tried to make a much more efficient operation, we

          9  all understood that there was a big mountain to

         10  climb. You and your staff should be commended for

         11  the amount of height that you have reached on that

         12  mountain. The question is, are we by only virtue of

         13  just getting this report now, and with this

         14  implementation still incomplete, are we high enough

         15  on the mountain that we could, you know, reasonably

         16  give you the authority that you seek, because we

         17  have to make sure that the authority, that whatever

         18  authority we give you is exercised properly, and

         19  this is why you're here before us today, to try to

         20  convince us that you've taken enough steps up that

         21  mountain.

         22                 And I think time will tell with

         23  regard to how well we're doing. But thank you for

         24  those comments, and, once again, I recognize Council

         25  Member McMahon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. I know that you have expressed

          4  frustration, and Chairman Weprin has expressed

          5  outrage. I just want to say that, after what I've

          6  heard at this hearing today, on behalf of the people

          7  of Staten Island, that I have to express shocking

          8  outrage and frustration given what I've heard here

          9  today.

         10                 I don't know if this is just The

         11  Little Boy Who Cried Wolf, or is an attempt to bully

         12  or extort money from the people whom we represent,

         13  and I want to get to the kernal of the discussion

         14  here: Isn't it correct, Commissioner, that your

         15  position is that if we do not take action to extend

         16  the stand-alone tax liens. Then, and only then, you

         17  will have the need to raise the water rates of the

         18  people of the City of New York by 18 and a half

         19  percent.

         20                 I ask the Commissioner.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm sorry. I have

         22  to ask you to repeat the question because I didn't

         23  understand the first part. I apologize.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, the

         25  first part is that I am totally dismayed that we are
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          2  being threatened, and it seems to be that the

          3  Department is The Little Boy Who Cried Wolf, and

          4  before coming here today I was very open to this

          5  notion of the stand alone tax liens, but what I've

          6  heard today is quite simply, and isn't it correct

          7  that your position, the kernal of the issue here is,

          8  if we don't give you a certain power to enact the

          9  stand alone tax liens, then and only then will the

         10  Department face a situation where it's going to have

         11  to raise the water rates of the people of the City

         12  of New York, who just sustained an 11 percent rate

         13  months ago, when this issue was in the forefront,

         14  then and only then you will have to take action to

         15  raise the rates 18 and a half percent?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'll start.

         17                 I think it's very important to get

         18  the right numbers out there in terms of what our

         19  revenue numbers, what the shortfall has been this

         20  year.

         21                 The shortfall, for the first three

         22  months it's been $71 million, and so you have to

         23  project that out across the year. Now,

         24  unfortunately, it's not -- we model in a way that

         25  doesn't anticipate that that necessarily would be a
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          2  straight line projection or that would be a $280

          3  million shortfall. We're projecting a shortfall

          4  around $200 million. The 18 percent is to allow us

          5  to collect that over just six months, because we

          6  will only have a half a year to collect it over,

          7  and, yes, we think we need a tool that can be done

          8  fairly, scalably, we do not think that the number of

          9  properties that we think it's fair to do service

         10  terminations on can give us anything like the

         11  revenue that we need. So, we think we need to do a

         12  program that deals with properties that we think can

         13  only be chased with enforcement that would be the

         14  lien sale.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I respect

         16  that and appreciate that, but I don't like the fact

         17  that the Department and the Administration came out

         18  with an announcement across the City, without

         19  clarifying the situation saying that an 18 and a

         20  half percent increase, on top of an 11 and a half

         21  percent increase, is now looming.

         22                 That, to me, is a scare tactic. That,

         23  to me, is a threat, and that, to me, is in essence,

         24  almost extorting money from the people of this City

         25  for something else. And I find that incredibly
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          2  disingenuous, if not dishonest.

          3                 Director Page, do you disagree that

          4  with this power --

          5                 MR. PAGE: With your characterization?

          6  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You can

          8  disagree. That's not my question.

          9                 Do you disagree that with this power

         10  there will be no increase, and without this power

         11  there would be an increase? It's that simple, isn't

         12  it?

         13                 MR. PAGE: I believe that's true. But

         14  it's not because of a judgment by the Department,

         15  it's not even particularly a judgment by OMB. As I

         16  tried to explain, the way this structure works, the

         17  New York City Water Board is obligated to collect an

         18  amount of money this year that's been certified to

         19  it as DEP's cost to operate, the Water Authority's

         20  debt service cost, and some other costs, including

         21  the rental payment to this City.

         22                 The Water Authority actually has an

         23  out side consultant who they hire to watch how

         24  revenue comes in each year. They look at the rate

         25  setting proposed by the Water Board, they looked at
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          2  the number that the system requires, and they

          3  basically tell me on behalf of the bond holders,

          4  that, yes, it looks all right. Then they watch what

          5  happens as you go along.

          6                 Those guys have been watching what's

          7  been happening as we've gone along in this year, and

          8  what they've said to us and what they've been saying

          9  as disclosure as we continue to borrow money through

         10  the Water Authority, is we have this shortfall, and

         11  if it continues on the current trend, it's going to

         12  need, we forecast at the moment an 18 percent

         13  increase for the second half of the year to fix the

         14  shortfall.

         15                 Forecasts, as you know, are difficult

         16  to do. Circumstances change. Quite honestly, you

         17  know, we will be looking at this carefully right

         18  through December as to what the revenue situation

         19  looks like, and if it looks as though it's

         20  significantly down still, the Water Board is going

         21  to be obligated to raise the rate. Whether it's 18

         22  percent or something different, basically you always

         23  wait til the last moment to find out everything you

         24  can about what's real before you hop off and rely on

         25  a forecast in what you do. And we will be watching
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          2  what the collections are every day and every month

          3  as we go along. We will be watching what affect

          4  DEP's efforts on shut offs may or may not have in

          5  the overall trend, but we believe that a majorly

          6  significant item in this context is watching whether

          7  or not the Water Board gets the benefit of lien

          8  sales as something that it can rely on going forward

          9  this year.

         10                 If you read that Booz Allen report,

         11  the cash amount that they say the lien sales may be

         12  worth this year I think are in the neighborhood of

         13  $40 million. We believe that a sort of public

         14  statement that the Water Board now has this

         15  enforcement power is in itself going to make a

         16  significant difference in the general atmosphere of

         17  a bunch of water and sewer customers. These people

         18  who are using the service, it's not as though the

         19  lunch wasn't being eaten here. And that it is going

         20  to increase our payments. That listing in the

         21  newspaper has worked marvels on the property tax

         22  side, dwindled on water. We're hoping to follow the

         23  property tax model and make this work.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I have no

         25  problem with that. But I have a problem of you not
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          2  saying succinctly and directly that the issue here

          3  is simply this: We have proposed an 18 and a half

          4  percent increase for the second half of the year for

          5  water users in the City of New York, because our

          6  budget that we adopted three months ago assumed

          7  certain collections that have not come to fruition.

          8  We misbudgeted, and now either we get this power to

          9  collect these liens, or we're going to raise the

         10  rates of the people of the City of New York.

         11                 That's basically it, isn't it? If you

         12  had this power and you had these collections, you

         13  wouldn't be here saying that you wanted to raise the

         14  rate. And then I also want to point out -- so that's

         15  question one.

         16                 In question two, you discussed the

         17  sanctity of the water system and how those revenues

         18  have to be used to pay the budget of the system

         19  under the law, but at the same time you say that

         20  it's okay for $70 million this year, and maybe $300

         21  million in a couple of years, to go into the general

         22  fund, because either way we have to pay for these

         23  services. That may well be true, but that does not

         24  speak to the sanctity of the Water Board system. It

         25  does not speak to transparency, honesty and
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          2  budgeting. What it also means is, your example of

          3  five people at the table having a meal, what it

          4  means is that there are two other people at the

          5  table who are getting paid for other City services

          6  that the four people sitting at the table are

          7  getting stuck with the bill for. So, not only are

          8  they paying for the person who is there and not

          9  paying their bill, but they're paying extra to pay

         10  for other services that are not there.

         11                 If those services have to be paid

         12  for, if we need more cops, we need more teachers, we

         13  need to pay the budget, well, we should tell the

         14  people of the City of New York that and be honest

         15  about it, but not take it out of the very regressive

         16  water system, tax system, where people are paying

         17  extra for their water because we need to pay for

         18  other services. That's not honesty in that system.

         19  That's mixing the two systems together.

         20                 So, my questions are, is it --

         21                 MR. PAGE: You know, what you refer to

         22  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- Simply the

         24  fact that you either get this power and then you

         25  have to take the money from the people, use the
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          2  water systems, and how can you justify taking the

          3  money out of the system when you at the same time

          4  say that it's a very sanctified and separate system?

          5                 MR. PAGE: Part of the structure,

          6  which has been true since the thing was set up in

          7  1985 is that there is a contractual relationship

          8  between the Water Board and New York City. It's

          9  known as the "lease agreement." And it basically

         10  gives the Water Board lease possession of New York

         11  City's water and sewer system.

         12                 The Water Board also levies and

         13  collects the rates, although it uses DEP as its

         14  agency to do that, this goes to the fact that these

         15  revenues are actually distinct from New York City,

         16  if the City goes under the revenues are a separate

         17  stream that is still available to pay the bond

         18  holders and to pay for operating an essential City

         19  service, water and sewer service, so not actually

         20  that bad.

         21                 One of the terms in this lease

         22  agreement that has been there since the very

         23  beginning is that the City is authorized to receive

         24  a lease payment in an amount no more than either

         25  what we're paying in GO debt service or 15 percent
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          2  of Water Authority debt service, which ever one of

          3  those is higher. That's been there since the very

          4  beginning. It's been a part of this structure. It's

          5  public to people who, you know, want to read it.

          6                 I understand that in a context where

          7  people are very worried about the size of water

          8  rates that excess over the debt service becomes an

          9  issue.  But at the moment, keep in mind that this

         10  year, which is what we're talking about, that excess

         11  is, I don't know, three and a half percent of total

         12  revenues, and at the moment we're looking at a

         13  problem that looks as though when we did this

         14  calculation, it was going to need 18 percent on the

         15  rate the second half of the year.

         16                 We've got a very big problem, and we

         17  have an issue in terms of rent that maybe we want to

         18  address going forward one way or another.

         19                 You know, I would not rule that out.

         20  There is a technical requirement that the revenue

         21  collected by the Water Board be somewhat more than

         22  the exact number of dollars due the bond holders.

         23  Because in putting this thing together, people were

         24  aware that forecasting is hard to do. And if you

         25  absolutely have to have a certain amount, you better
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          2  try to have a little bit more.

          3                 The rent payment was originally set

          4  up to soak up a little bit more every year.

          5                 Some of us were familiar with the

          6  fact that MAC ate our surplus and kept it for their

          7  own ends year-after-year, and we didn't want this

          8  utility to do that to us.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mike, if I could

         10  jump in just to assert the prerogative of the Chair,

         11  I would just like to point out, one thing that was

         12  left out of Mr. Page's statement was that the,

         13  notwithstanding the fact that this arrangement has

         14  been there since 1985, for the first 19 years or so

         15  of rental payments, 100 percent of the rental

         16  payments went to pre-1985 general obligation debt,

         17  and this residual is a relatively recent phenomenon

         18  and in this residual to which is being ascribed in

         19  all kinds of significance about keeping things

         20  solvent and having an extra cushion and all that;

         21  that's why every year when they set the water rates,

         22  they build in a surplus which always come back, you

         23  know, more than they plan for.

         24                 So, I would say that this residual

         25  does not have the effect of keeping bond raters more

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  satisfied than they otherwise would be because for

          3  the first 19 years they didn't have even a penny of

          4  residual. It's a recent phenomenon, you know, to

          5  which I don't think too much could be ascribed as

          6  providing a cushion.

          7                 MR. PAGE: Please let me try to

          8  respond to that.

          9                 The fact of the matter is, the rental

         10  payment, to the extent the amount of the rental

         11  payment happens to equal New York City general

         12  obligation debt service, the debt service payment is

         13  the City's obligation. It's not that those bond

         14  holders are depending specifically on this source of

         15  revenue. The fact of the matter is, the bond holders

         16  who are depending on this revenue are the Water

         17  Authority bond holders. They don't care how the GO

         18  guys are paid. What they're looking for is a cushion

         19  in their source that is available for them. And

         20  that's what the rent payment does. Whether the City

         21  uses it to pay Water GO debt service or to pay for

         22  cops, doesn't actually matter for this credit

         23  structure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Doesn't the

         25  City set the amount that has to be paid out of the
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          2  reserve? Isn't that something that the City requests

          3  and siphons that money out of the water system, if

          4  you will excuse the metaphor?

          5                 MR. PAGE: Within that defined amount,

          6  the higher of the City's GO debt service or 15

          7  percent of the Water Authority's debt service, and

          8  the reason the original formulation was written that

          9  way was that to begin with, there was almost no

         10  Authority debt and a huge amount of City GO debt

         11  outstanding so that it was a big number.

         12                 Gradually that number has come down.

         13  The debt has been paid off. The Water Authority debt

         14  has been going up. The more the Water Authority debt

         15  goes up, the bigger the cushion for the Water

         16  Authority debt needs to be.

         17                 There are technical ways of

         18  mitigating that problem that we can talk about, but

         19  again I don't think that the pivotal issue before us

         20  today is the $77 million of that incremental rent in

         21  this year. The problem that we're trying to get a

         22  grip on is our slippage this year, the slippage in

         23  the first quarter was about that number. We've got

         24  three more quarters we need to cover, and we need to

         25  get the collection rate up to avoid having to
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          2  increase the rate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But, again,

          4  and I will conclude, I know the Chair wants to let

          5  others speak, and I just want to say that asking the

          6  people in my district who are already paying $700 or

          7  more, to pay another $125, even though this

          8  information was all available three months ago, to

          9  me it's still incomprehensible, other than just an

         10  attempt to bludgeon us into doing something, which,

         11  quite frankly, I'm probably amenable to doing, but I

         12  think that there should be honesty and transparency

         13  in budgeting, and quite frankly, I don't see it here

         14  today.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 Council Member Vacca.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Commissioner, I

         20  first want to say that I'm in favor of the lien

         21  sale. You know why I'm in favor of it? I don't want

         22  your rate increases, because you should roll back

         23  what you did last year, you shouldn't give us the

         24  rate increase this year and I'll say why in a

         25  minute. I'm tired of being soaked by people who
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          2  don't pay their bills. And if they don't pay their

          3  bills there has to be a consequence. If I don't pay

          4  my taxes, there's a consequence. Why should those of

          5  us who pay bills have to subsidize those who don't,

          6  and who know how to get away with it, and who know

          7  that there is nothing that the City can do or is

          8  going to do? So, that's where I'm coming from.

          9                 I'll only support that bill, however,

         10  when I'm assured that your agency can

         11  bureaucratically make sure that what we had several

         12  years ago with mistakes and errors won't occur

         13  again.

         14                 And I'm going to read all of this

         15  voluminous material I have today, but I'm sitting

         16  here saying that even if the lien increase does not

         17  meet the total amount of money your agency needs,

         18  it's the right thing to do, and I would air on doing

         19  the right thing.

         20                 Why, though, now I come back; why are

         21  we putting money from water rate increases into the

         22  general fund when the general fund had more than a

         23  $5 billion surplus last year? That's my other

         24  question.

         25                 And my other statement to you, very
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          2  strongly, is this: I remember going to meetings,

          3  because I'm around many years, and when these meters

          4  were installed, we were told that this would be a

          5  water conservation measure.

          6                 Right now, Commissioner, and Mr.

          7  Page, you could die of dehydration and your water

          8  bill will go up. We are told that the less water you

          9  use, the more necessity exist for the bill to go up

         10  because if you don't consume water revenues go down,

         11  so therefore taxes must be raised. I was told that

         12  at the last Water Board hearing.

         13                 We need a policy that encourages

         14  individuals to conserve water. The sewer charge is

         15  158 percent of the water bill, so even if you save

         16  water, your bill is going up.

         17                 Talk about senior citizens. We have

         18  something in New York City called the SHE Program,

         19  Senior Homeowner Exemption Program.  I would rather

         20  model something through your agency that would give

         21  seniors who have low income a consideration on the

         22  water bill just like we do now on their real estate

         23  tax.

         24                 But I'm for the water liens. I think

         25  that this is the right thing to do. I'm tired of
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          2  paying for water scofflaws. But by the same token, I

          3  pose the conservation issues with you. Look at

          4  Georgia. Look at what's going on in Georgia today.

          5  They're running out of water in the State of

          6  Georgia.

          7                 How are we encouraging people to

          8  conserve if the bills are not based on what you use?

          9  That was the premise for the installation of the

         10  water meters. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do you want to

         12  respond?

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If I may.

         14                 The conservation is to do two things,

         15  but an important thing it does going into the future

         16  in New York City is to offset additional population

         17  moving in. The population of New York City is going

         18  up. So, if someone conserves, and use less water,

         19  they obviously will pay more. That won't necessarily

         20  keep the rates from going up, but that's not the

         21  reason why the rates are going up. The rates are

         22  going up, because we have an enormous, enormous

         23  capital program that is mandated by environmental

         24  law. Most of the things we do are under some kind of

         25  order, either administrative order or a court order
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          2  with a very tight time frame, and if we don't meet

          3  those time frames, we pay very stiff penalties.

          4                 So, that is a very significant reason

          5  why the cost is going up.

          6                 The other reason is that our

          7  operations are very dependent on things that are

          8  expensive. On chemicals, for example, to treat the

          9  water going back into the receiving waters. To treat

         10  the sewage, and we are also required to do a great

         11  deal of compliance that is very labor intensive than

         12  our laboratories and other places where we collect

         13  and test the water.

         14                 So, there are lots of things we're

         15  doing that are frequently court ordered and they do

         16  make our costs go up. But they're not going up

         17  because of the conservation.

         18                 The conservation, any reduction there

         19  would be an utilization is being made up for by the

         20  increase in population, so it's not that you use

         21  less water and you therefore pay more.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Commissioner, I

         23  beg to disagree with you. But let me go back and say

         24  this: Are you amenable to a senior citizen exemption

         25  type program? Are you amenable to something modeled
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          2  after SHE?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, do you want

          4  to do that?

          5                 MR. PAGE: I'm sorry, let me speak to

          6  that for a minute.

          7                 The problem with this utility

          8  structure is that as it's built, the Water Authority

          9  is explicitly forbidden to give away or discount

         10  water to any of its customers. But I mean, we

         11  obviously in New York City have bunches of -- City

         12  government is not similarly forbidden as a practical

         13  matter. We obviously have all kinds of programs to

         14  protect the interests of particular groups of

         15  citizens. There is nothing that prevents us as a

         16  City from having programs to take care of people,

         17  notwithstanding the fact that they have to pay for

         18  their water.

         19                 I mean, if we were to collectively

         20  conclude that a particular group of people are under

         21  undue financial stress because they have to pay for

         22  their water, well, they're going to have to pay the

         23  Water Board for the water, but that doesn't prevent

         24  the City from instituting a program or enhancing

         25  programs we already have to address this problem for
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          2  those particular citizens.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Okay, I

          4  understand. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          6  Vallone.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

          8                 I'm very interested in the fact that

          9  you actually admitted here today that most of that

         10  rent -- well, half the rental payment is a tax

         11  increase, it goes to paying for police officers,

         12  which it actually doesn't because we can't hire

         13  them, but more teachers, and you said if the budget

         14  gap widens, then down the road we can use the water

         15  rate increase for that, and I think that's what

         16  concerns these committees. The right to raise taxes

         17  does not rest with the Water Board, it rests with

         18  Legislatures. And there is a good reason for that,

         19  because of the transparency, because of the

         20  accountability to the public, I mean under this

         21  argument, a couple of years down the road you could

         22  raise water rates 40 percent, rather than coming to

         23  the Council and asking for a tax increase, which

         24  we'd have to defend to our voters.

         25                 So, my first question would be, by
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          2  what authority can the Water Board raise taxes?

          3                 MR. PAGE: It doesn't raise taxes.

          4  What you're talking about is the equivalent of a

          5  reduction in charges to homeowners. The fact of the

          6  matter is, the Water Authority was authorized -- I'm

          7  sorry, the Water Board was authorized by the New

          8  York State Legislature when it was set up in the

          9  early eighties, to have the power to levy and

         10  collect rates to meet the cost of interest and

         11  principal on Water Authority debt, which may only be

         12  used to finance capital improvement to the City's

         13  water and sewer system and the financing has to be

         14  asked for by the City, and to pay operating costs

         15  for the system. Those operating costs are incurred

         16  by DEP operating the system.

         17                 It can't levy and collect rates for

         18  something entirely different, for building new

         19  schools or what have you. It doesn't have that

         20  authority.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Paying for

         22  teachers?

         23                 MR. PAGE: It has the authority to pay

         24  a lease payment to New York City, which as I've

         25  described, is circumscribed in the contract to being
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          2  no more than what the City is paying in GO debt

          3  service, water and sewer debt, or 15 percent of the

          4  Water Authority's debt service, that is an authority

          5  contained in the documents underlying this whole

          6  structure. The essence of them is locked in by

          7  covenants to the holders of, I don't know, 17, 18

          8  million dollars of bonds.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I have a

         10  limited amount of time.

         11                 So, basically what you're saying is

         12  nothing, everything you just mentioned gives the

         13  Water Board Authority, to raise funds to pay for

         14  related expenses, bonding, loans, those sorts of

         15  things. Nowhere in that authority does it give you

         16  money to use, give you the right to use that money

         17  in the general fund. You have not mentioned that

         18  anywhere.

         19                 MR. PAGE: The rental payment is a

         20  payment to New York City, which goes to New York

         21  City's general fund. New York City can choose to use

         22  it for GO debt service, it could choose to use it

         23  for other expenses. New York City, as you know,

         24  doesn't expend money, except by appropriation

         25  approved by this body.
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          2                 So, it's not as though the --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: The money is

          4  supposed to be paid over to use for general debt

          5  service. But to the extent that it's more than that,

          6  it's a tax increase. You've never had that

          7  authority. So, let's move on.

          8                 MR. PAGE: That authority has existed

          9  legally since the very beginning of this enterprise.

         10  That is just not true.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Based on what

         12  you just said the authority to --

         13                 MR. PAGE: I'm sorry, it is the truth.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: The authority

         15  to pay for general obligation fund, be it rental

         16  payment to the City, that was the goal.

         17                 MR. PAGE: The authority to make a

         18  rental payment to New York City in an amount which

         19  and correspond to the City's expenditure for GO debt

         20  service for water and sewer purposes, or 15 percent

         21  of authority debt service. That is the truth. That's

         22  what it's been, ever since we started.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, we'll

         24  disagree about that.

         25                 Now, that being said, you made a very
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          2  good point. It's not pivotal to what we're here for

          3  today, because you didn't testify to this, but let

          4  me help you out a little bit. Only seven percent of

          5  this increase is going to a rent payment, and only

          6  half of that increase is going into the general

          7  fund; is that correct?

          8                 MR. PAGE: Seven percent of the

          9  increase?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Of the

         11  increase that you seek in water rates.

         12                 MR. PAGE: Of the 18 percent.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Not seven

         14  percent total. Seven percent of the 18 percent,

         15  correct.

         16                 MR. PAGE: I guess that's probably

         17  true.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, it is a

         19  very minor amount we're talking about.

         20                 MR. PAGE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: It's

         22  something we want to talk to you about down the

         23  road, because it is going to increase, as you said,

         24  but it's not going to help us a lot today.

         25                 MR. PAGE: And we're happy to talk
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          2  about that in terms of the future.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, it's not

          4  going to help us a lot today, you're right.

          5                 Although by 2015, my staff tells me

          6  that the entire payment will go to the fund, but we

          7  can talk about that.

          8                 You argue on page eight that

          9  shut-offs are not alone, that you need lien sale

         10  authority. As a layman at this, why is that? If I'm

         11  a homeowner and I get a shut-off notice, that's

         12  going to mean a lot more to me than a legal notice

         13  about a lien sale. Why is that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We think that

         15  shutoffs are very effective for single-family

         16  homeowners before businesses for commercial

         17  buildings.

         18                 The reason we are reluctant to use

         19  them, and most cities do not believe they're the

         20  most effective way to do enforcement for

         21  multi-tenant buildings, is because tenants pay for

         22  their water and sewer rates in their rent, and it's

         23  the building owner, not the tenant, who is not

         24  paying the bill, but it is the tenant who is not

         25  inconvenienced if the water is shut off.
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          2                 And then the other piece of that is

          3  that under New York City's very stringent health

          4  regulations, if we shut off water to a multi-family

          5  building, the Health Department has to monitor it

          6  and in some point, which would be probably well less

          7  than 24 hours, they would have to order the tenants

          8  to vacate the buildings for reasons of sanitation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I thought you

         10  said that these lien sales were going to be on one-,

         11  two-, and three-family homes and they didn't affect

         12  the tenants? So, I'm confused as to why they --

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: No, the lien

         14  sales would be not on single-family homes. They

         15  could be on single-family homes. They could be on

         16  single-family homes, but we're taking the approach

         17  that we can also use service terminations for

         18  single-family homes. We think they can be very

         19  effective.

         20                 We are reluctant to use service

         21  terminations on buildings that have tenants because

         22  of the effect on the tenants who don't have direct

         23  control over the payment of the water and sewer

         24  payments.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That makes
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          2  sense. And on page five you said that 56 percent of

          3  the accounts in dispute are one-, two-, and

          4  three-family homes, and that 72 percent of those are

          5  amounts under 1,000, and a vast majority of those

          6  are billing issues, discrepancies in the amount of

          7  the bill.

          8                 That worries us up here, because if

          9  you're talking about most of these cases being

         10  billing issues to homeowners as opposed to people

         11  who just don't pay, you know, we want to make sure

         12  that those are not the kind of people that you are

         13  selling liens on.

         14                 So, by your own stats here, it seems

         15  that most of the people affected by this are people

         16  involved in billing issues and are small property

         17  owners; is that correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, this was

         19  focused, this particular paragraph, and I'm sorry if

         20  it was confusing the way it was placed, this

         21  particular paragraph was really focused on people

         22  looking at the flow of people who have come in and

         23  made disputes.

         24                 If the balance is under $1,000,

         25  they're not eligible for service termination or lien
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          2  sale, and frequently the initial dispute is under

          3  four a   year, and in that case they are also not

          4  eligible for service termination or lien sale.

          5  Service termination and lien sale are really focused

          6  on trying to get people to pay who have not paid for

          7  more than a year, and what our experience and that

          8  of most utilities is that if you go beyond a year,

          9  it's going to be very difficult. The bill builds up

         10  to be big enough that it gets to be very hard to

         11  catch up.

         12                 So, our goal is to try to keep

         13  everybody well within a year, in terms of when they

         14  pay. But the focus of this particular paragraph was

         15  to say that in fact most disputes that come in are

         16  very small, and in our new dispute resolution

         17  process could be handled very possibly with that

         18  first telephone call.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm glad I

         20  asked the question. I did not realize that people

         21  under $1,000 would not even be eligible for any of

         22  these programs.

         23                 Okay, I have a lot more questions but

         24  I'm going to end because I know that Council members

         25  have other questions, so let me end by just saying
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          2  that, you know, we're all on the same side here. The

          3  argument is the best way to lower water rates, and

          4  you're coming in with good faith methods that you

          5  believe will work, we have some methods that we

          6  believe will work. You want to use lien sales, and

          7  many of us are willing to move that way as soon as

          8  we see that the system has improved and you came in

          9  here and you showed us some improvement, which is a

         10  good thing.

         11                 So, we believe there may be some

         12  other methods, as Jimmy Vacca said, and Council

         13  Member Weprin said, so we look forward to working

         14  with you to get these water rates lower, which is

         15  the goal I think we all have. So, thank you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         18  Council member.

         19                 Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         21  much. Just a small issue, but I could be wrong. In

         22  the Booz Allen Hamilton report, I think you list, or

         23  they list a housing development fund corporation

         24  co-ops, HFDC as single families, and they're not.

         25  Just a small item, but you might want to correct
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          2  that.

          3                 The other question I have is that the

          4  Comptroller did a report; is that relevant to this

          5  discussion on this topic? And what do you think of

          6  his report?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I think the

          8  response, I'm not sure if you were in the room at

          9  the very beginning --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I was. I was.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, I think my

         12  response was the same, which is that I have deferred

         13  to the Budget Director on that in terms of the

         14  appropriateness of this.

         15                 When I testified in December, I said

         16  that many cities have arrangements like this. It's

         17  not scandalous. And it is a concern, obviously, of

         18  ours because it will grow in the future, but we are

         19  guided by the Budget Director in this manner.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Sorry, Mr.

         21  Page.

         22                 MR. PAGE: Yes. The fact is that if

         23  you look at the sort of the norm in water utilities,

         24  we finance, that is the issue bonds, for virtually

         25  everything we spend in capital. We have tried to pay
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          2  maybe $100 million a year out of billions that we

          3  spend on capital out of current revenues. There are

          4  other utilities where the standard is probably a

          5  third of what they spend is financed out of current

          6  revenues.

          7                 It's a nice idea, if you're looking

          8  at a very long-term cost of the service, but the

          9  kind of rate increase that would require in the

         10  short term would be tremendous and it doesn't seem

         11  appropriate in our circumstances. The Comptroller's

         12  idea of using a portion of the rent, that is the

         13  cushion for the credit structure for pay-as-you-go

         14  capital, and a portion for future rate relief, is

         15  certainly something that we can consider going

         16  forward, obviously the rent payment and how to do it

         17  is a subject of concern, I guess for all of us in

         18  one way or another.

         19                 I think myself that there is a credit

         20  dimension of it, there is a water rate dimension of

         21  it, and then there is a dimension which has to do

         22  with how much money New York City has to pay for

         23  vital services and what to do about the '09 forecast

         24  gap, which at this point is substantial. And you

         25  know, as you read in the paper and we've certainly
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          2  been worrying about it for months, it doesn't look

          3  as though Wall Street is doing as swimmingly as it

          4  has in the past, which doesn't say that I would say

          5  indeed poverty; on the other hand, on the margin it

          6  makes a difference as to how much money we're going

          7  to have to spread on the purposes that we would like

          8  to meet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         10                 Wall Street is doing well.

         11  Unfortunately, my district.

         12                 My question also is, picking up on

         13  Council Member Vacca and Vallone on who is eligible.

         14  Those, with Con Ed, as you know, went into turnoff,

         15  we contact Con Ed, work out something with the

         16  residents to pay directly. There is always a lot of

         17  discussion. To the credit of Con Ed, it always works

         18  out, which is very complicated, tenant associations

         19  are challenging, the whole mixture. We just went

         20  through it the other day with a building. So, how

         21  would this work in a rental? Or are we not doing

         22  residentials, lien sales?

         23                 I was confused?

         24                 MR. PAGE: I think our basic hope is

         25  that the lien sales, even if a lien sale went to
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          2  foreclosure, so the title to the building

          3  transferred, that wouldn't change the legal rights

          4  of the tenants in the building, I don't believe --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: To have water.

          6                 MR. PAGE: Well, for their tenancy, in

          7  order they can stay there. And one of the advantages

          8  of the lien sale is that you don't not have water

          9  while you're trying to sort out how to meet this

         10  liability. And we're aware, quite honestly, that

         11  clearly in the future in this enterprise, as you

         12  focus on requiring service users to pay, we are

         13  going to have to become much more elaborate about

         14  things like tenant escrow arrangements, which would

         15  enable them to pay their rent to make sure vital

         16  utility was paid for, as opposed to paying --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I would

         18  suggest that the longer discussion, having been

         19  through it, I cannot tell you how many times in my

         20  district, is complicated.

         21                 MR. PAGE: I'm certain.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And I wouldn't

         23  recommend it as an alternative way to get funding.

         24                 It gets used, Mark, as   harassment.

         25  It does. That's just how life is.
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          2                 MR. PAGE: You see, we actually see

          3  the lien sale as a way of in effect harassing the

          4  owner of the building and not the tenants.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know.

          6                 MR. PAGE: And that's one of the

          7  reasons we feel so strongly that it is a very

          8  important part of overall enforcement mix.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Again, I don't

         10  know how many percentage-wise is lumped in, you

         11  know, the condos and co-ops and so on, and that

         12  structure too. So, I don't know how many are in this

         13  classification, the gentrifying rental situation.

         14  Suffice to say it's complicated.

         15                 How does Con Ed, I know you mentioned

         16  this in your testimony but sort of on the technology

         17  front and saving money front, how is Con Ed and

         18  water looked at the same in terms of reading the

         19  meters?

         20                 It's got a technology issue, you've

         21  got different ways that Con Ed is going to be doing

         22  it, different ways that you're going to be doing it,

         23  and I look at all of this, because even though

         24  you're trying through the report that Booz Allen did

         25  and your own initiative, you're trying every
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          2  possible way to save funding, is that working?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: As you know, we

          4  did a test. We've done a test over the summer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Lower

          6  Manhattan.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We are really,

          8  really pleased with the test, and we are going

          9  forward very quickly. That was a side-by-side test

         10  of two vendors, we're going forward very quickly to

         11  make a selection of which of those vendors will be

         12  asked to do the work and we expect to start work.

         13                 Joe, or tell me who, are going to

         14  start installation?

         15                 Joe Singleton, Deputy Commissioner of

         16  BCS.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Good

         18  afternoon. The solicitation will be wrapped up

         19  within the next two weeks. At that point two

         20  vendors, either Hexagram or Itron, the receiver

         21  locations are going to be co-located with DoITT's

         22  NYCWIN system, so that our roof access and those

         23  lease costs are essentially free to us.

         24                 In the summer, probably about May --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: May '08?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: May

          3  '08. We will start bidding a series of 12

          4  installation contracts that we expect to run through

          5  late 2010.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And do you

          7  expect to save money, or is it a situation --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          9  Obviously it's two-fold. Obviously the cost of Con

         10  Ed meter reading will drop out. The accuracy rate

         11  that other municipalities have found, that the read

         12  rate goes from eighties to about 99 percent all the

         13  time. These are 15-year plus batteries so there

         14  should not be a concern that way.

         15                 The technology is not new. It's new

         16  to New York, but it's used throughout the Northeast.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 There will be some savings but only

         20  after you've recaptured what you're putting in?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: I

         22  think the savings will be two-fold: Obviously the

         23  immediate cost on the Con Ed reads, and most

         24  municipalities, in fact, the ones we have talked to,

         25  your dispute rates, your billing issues, all of that
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          2  drops down. Your call volume.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, we don't

          4  need any rate increase. We'll be fine?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: I

          6  didn't say that. But --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: But

          9  your levels of dispute should drop off immensely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Also

         12  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: My colleagues

         14  have many, many questions. I guess down the line

         15  when you sum up, just to understand how it is that

         16  between the collections, the technology and so on,

         17  we can't make up some of this debt, but I know we're

         18  all trying to get to the same goal, and I guess

         19  we'll work at it. Thank you so much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         21  Council Member.

         22                 Council Member Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         24                 Good afternoon, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Good afternoon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And Mr. Page.

          3                 I want to start with a compliment,

          4  because as I'm sure all of my colleagues do, we get

          5  building complaints for DEP and water bills in our

          6  office, and I just want to say that your agency has

          7  been extraordinarily helpful when we have contacted

          8  you on behalf of a constituent with a water bill

          9  issue. And I appreciate the fact of the efforts

         10  you're making to put us out of that business, which

         11  we don't really want to be in.

         12                 I come to the table with a

         13  considerable amount of experience outside of City

         14  Hall and billing and collection and real estate. And

         15  first I want to say, and Councilman Vallone asked

         16  this question as a layman, I know that if I have the

         17  power to shut off an essential service such as water

         18  to collect a bill, I would do that before I would

         19  expend the money to commence a legal proceeding 100

         20  times out of 100. So, I think the power of that

         21  shutoff notice, and you know that because you sent

         22  off 21 shut off notices and 21 people paid.

         23                 So, I think that's the point that I

         24  think some of us would like you to keep in mind.

         25                 Now, I have to tell you, I think
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          2  maybe I'm the only person here who sees this. Maybe

          3  not. But this sudden $70 million shortfall in

          4  collections, does anyone relate that to the

          5  sub-prime lending crisis around this room? I mean,

          6  if you look at this chart that's been given to us,

          7  it comes from DEP, if you look at the districts with

          8  the highest percentage of delinquent accounts, every

          9  one of them is the highest foreclosure rate in the

         10  City, the charts almost are exactly the same.

         11                 You know, way back when, when water

         12  and sewer was a flat charge and was collected along

         13  with your mortgage payment, that wasn't an issue.

         14  Now water bills get paid separately from your real

         15  estate taxes, and I know that a homeowner in crisis,

         16  who has the choice of paying their mortgage, or

         17  their water bill is going to pay their mortgage

         18  first, and it's painfully obvious to me that the

         19  shortfall that you're having in collections is

         20  connected to that. The question, Mr. Page, is if we

         21  start selling liens for these properties, will we

         22  not just exacerbate the problem that we are having

         23  with foreclosures in this City? And what affect

         24  would that have on the economy and the general

         25  revenue and the tax base of the City of New York?
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          2                 MR. PAGE: You know, I hear your

          3  point, and understanding exactly what is driving

          4  what in this picture isn't all that easy.

          5                 A part of the higher delinquency may

          6  be connected to what you're saying. I don't believe

          7  all of it is, in that a sort of deteriorating trend,

          8  in terms of what properties pay their taxes on time

          9  but don't pay the water and sewer rates, there have

         10  been more and more properties in that for awhile.

         11  It's not just in the mortgage problems that we've

         12  been having in the last number of months.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But clearly,

         14  you know, you were surprised by this shortfall,

         15  otherwise it would have been part of your

         16  projections. And so, if it's been happening for

         17  awhile, I'm sure you calculate that into your

         18  projections. Then there's the sudden burst. It just

         19  so happens to have coincided with the subprime

         20  lending prices.

         21                 I mean, I realize it's not a 100

         22  percent match. You know, some people are not paying

         23  for a different reason, but you know, it kind of

         24  officiates your argument that, you know, that lien

         25  sales become essential because people are already
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          2  fending off foreclosure of their property.

          3                 So, I, you know, will differ as to

          4  the magnitude of the correlation, but you will not

          5  convince me that there isn't a substantial

          6  correlation. So, I would ask you again, if we are

          7  going to be doing lien sales and pushing more

          8  homeowners and property owners into foreclosure,

          9  what affect would that have on the economy and the

         10  tax base of the City?

         11                 MR. PAGE: Our experience on lien

         12  sales, and it's primarily on the property tax side,

         13  is that the vast majority of the properties that

         14  start down the track toward lien sales never get to

         15  foreclosure.

         16                 I mean, they tend to respond when

         17  they see the notice in the newspaper, and the

         18  service or the entity that buys the lien, basically

         19  does its best to get the lien paid off as opposed --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: After adding

         21  legal costs and poundage on top.

         22                 MR. PAGE: Well, I mean, there's a

         23  cost to service shutoffs as well, quite honestly.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm sure not

         25  as much as the lawyers.
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          2                 MR. PAGE: That could be.

          3                 I think, you know, the biggest impact

          4  is similar to the threatened shutoff of service,

          5  that, you know, just being able to put a large

          6  number of properties in the track for the lien sale

          7  has a very curative effect in terms of how many

          8  people pay.

          9                 You may be right that New York City

         10  is going into a period when property owners are

         11  going to have more difficulty paying, but I would

         12  say that if that's true, sort of all the more reason

         13  that we have a structure in place that will least

         14  collect from those who can pay, and I appreciate

         15  that in the enforcement of a lien sale process, I

         16  mean, care has to be taken to avoid mass

         17  foreclosures at the end of the day, and some

         18  sensitivity applied in terms of who gets foreclosed.

         19                 When you look at the record on how

         20  these things have gone in New York City, it's

         21  actually been pretty good and they've been in place

         22  for awhile, not just in the real estate boom of the

         23  last few years.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You know, we

         25  agree on more of this than perhaps you realize, but
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          2  some of these cases are going to wind up in

          3  foreclosure. Five percent, 50 percent, that number I

          4  couldn't tell you, but I know, having been on the

          5  receiving end of representing individuals who were

          6  foreclosed upon by NYCTL, and you know, even after

          7  they made payment arrangements, some people just

          8  couldn't pay, so many of them do wind up in

          9  foreclosures and lien sales, and you're really not

         10  answering the question, as to whether or not we're

         11  just pushing the downward cycle further down the

         12  hill by adding to that.

         13                 You know, during the real estate

         14  boom, I might not even be asking this question, but

         15  you know, given the sensitive time that we're in, at

         16  a time when we are trying desperately not to push,

         17  you know, the foreclosure cart down the hill,

         18  whether or not that's exactly what you're asking us

         19  to do.

         20                 MR. PAGE: I would look at it from a

         21  slightly different angle, which is that water and

         22  sewer service is something that everybody needs. The

         23  cost of it increases over time, and given the

         24  utility structure that New York City has, the Water

         25  Board is obliged to collect enough money to pay the
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          2  cost of this service in New York City -- let me

          3  finish, please, I'm sorry -- and without a decent

          4  enforcement structure you're just going to jam the

          5  rates up for all the properties that are paying, and

          6  that's going to push more of them into not paying.

          7                 So, all together, I actually think

          8  that notwithstanding the problems and risks that

          9  you're, I think, properly pointing out, we're better

         10  off with a decent enforcement structure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right.

         12  Well, maybe I feel a little bit differently to a

         13  degree. I appreciate your answer.

         14                 When I try and collect a debt, I find

         15  that the people who I wind up having to sue fall

         16  into one of two categories in general, are the

         17  people who don't agree that they actually owe the

         18  sum of money being demanded, or people who just

         19  don't have the money to pay it. I mean, they're

         20  really strapped out, can't pay it.

         21                 I'm just curious whether or not Booz

         22  Allen, and I direct this question to the

         23  Commissioner, analyzed the five-year debt to see

         24  what category people fell into why weren't they

         25  paying, and could you quantify that as opposed to
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          2  the walk-in question and the data that you discussed

          3  with Council Member Vallone?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We are in the

          5  process now of putting together a survey of people

          6  who are not paying to ask them that question of why

          7  they're not paying.

          8                 But I would say that although the

          9  numbers may have intensified, the patterns of

         10  non-payment have not really changed significantly

         11  over the past few years. They have tended to be in

         12  the same locations. Typically many of them were less

         13  affluent neighborhoods, but there are also some

         14  neighborhoods that are quite affluent, whether it

         15  just seems to be a tradition of non-payment that may

         16  just be word of mouth, and nothing happens if you

         17  don't do it.

         18                 But I think that we have been talking

         19  to HPD and we've been talking obviously to the

         20  Department for the Aging and to HRA and all of those

         21  agencies are in the process of really thinking about

         22  this problem and thinking about what kind of

         23  counseling and support, they already have

         24  counseling, they're trying to figure out how people

         25  can be helped, how programs can help them, and we

                                                            125

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  will work very closely with them on this. And I

          3  think that every effort will be made to avoid

          4  triggering a foreclosure.

          5                 But I think that if we are precluded

          6  from applying a means test, and I think that if we

          7  start sorting by --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I wasn't

          9  suggesting a means test.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I think that

         12  information as to why people aren't paying would be

         13  very instructive to this Council before we were

         14  asked to give you the authority to do stand-alone

         15  lien sales. I think it's a very, very -- why aren't

         16  people paying is a very, very important question for

         17  this body to know the answer to before we attempt to

         18  craft a solution as radical as forfeiture of one's

         19  property.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I just

         21  would like to mention that two of the things you

         22  mentioned, that one of the causes was the person

         23  thought that there was a mistake, they didn't think

         24  they owed the money, and I think that we have two

         25  very, two new and very effective programs that are
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          2  going to help with that. We have the new dispute

          3  resolution program, which is already going in place.

          4  And because we've been trying to engage in pieces of

          5  it, as it's been rolling out, as I said, we've

          6  already seen a drop in disputes and we've seen a

          7  tremendous increase in how quickly those disputes

          8  get resolved --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I

         10  acknowledge that right off the top. I've read the

         11  Booz Allen report that was provided to us before

         12  today and I think you are making, you know, great

         13  strides in narrowing the issues between your

         14  customers and the providers. So, I think that's

         15  great, and --

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If I could just

         17  mention the companion piece to that, which is I

         18  think even realer, is in terms of dealing with

         19  financial problems, is the payment incentive plan

         20  where there will be a real discount on what people

         21  have to pay. And so to the degree that paying is a

         22  problem, I think the ability to pay a lesser amount

         23  should be helpful in solving that problem, although

         24  at this point we're only doing that for properties

         25  that we're pursuing service termination because we
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          2  see it as only really effective as it's linked to

          3  some kind of enforcement.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I'm not

          5  quite as in agreement with that. I think service

          6  termination by your own effort shows that it's

          7  extraordinarily successful, 21 out of 21.

          8                 And I guess my last point would be, I

          9  think the different classes of property call for

         10  different methodologies in terms of how you collect.

         11  And Council Member Brewer referred to one of them

         12  and Council Member Koppell, who couldn't stay,

         13  referred to the way Con Ed resolves disputes,

         14  particularly perhaps with the two- and three-family

         15  homes that we haven't talked about quite so much

         16  where tenants who pay the charge and have it

         17  deducted from their rent, rather than have the

         18  service terminated and then you could proceed

         19  against the owner of the property otherwise. I think

         20  that might be effective.

         21                 I do want to associate myself very

         22  much, though, with the comments that were made by

         23  Chairman Gennaro and Council Member Vallone, about

         24  what the purpose of some of these funds are in terms

         25  of going to the general revenue, and whether or not
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          2  it is not as appropriate as it was in 1985, when the

          3  money was going for pre-1985 debt exclusively, and

          4  whether or not this is in fact somewhat of a way of

          5  taxing to provide money for the general revenue,

          6  which is kind of beyond the proper authority of the

          7  Water Board.

          8                 You know, providing appropriate

          9  credit worthiness to bond holders and whatnot is

         10  certainly valid, some surplus is valid, but when the

         11  surplus becomes part of the general revenue and

         12  ratepayers are then asked to pay more and then turn

         13  around and threaten them, and saying you're not

         14  paying your bills, we're going to take your

         15  property, that's where some of us part company with

         16  your plan. And, so, I am amenable to some lien

         17  sales, but I think you have other things to go and

         18  some other questions to answer before we get to

         19  that, and just as we're asking the MTA to hold off

         20  on their fair increase, until we get some more

         21  answers and explore more options, I would ask you to

         22  hold off on a water increase on top of the water

         23  increases we just had.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,
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          2  Council member.

          3                 Council Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          5                 Good afternoon. It's been an

          6  interesting morning for you both here. I also want

          7  to start off with complimenting the agency. When I

          8  look into and check with my staff on feedback on

          9  issues with water bills, overwhelmingly the level of

         10  communication and outreach from your agency and your

         11  Department has increased exponentially, and has

         12  improved to the point where my office is very

         13  comfortable with doing the outreach to try to

         14  advocate for persons that are having problems with

         15  water bills, and I want to compliment you on that.

         16                 I also want to compliment you on

         17  finally putting together this payment incentive

         18  program which will cancel late payments, and finance

         19  charges, I hope.

         20                 As you know, I represent an area that

         21  was formerly serviced by Jamaica Water, and a lot of

         22  the issues in my district were because there were

         23  disputes over whether or not the finance charges in

         24  Jamaica Water were still applicable, or if they were

         25  applicable at all, if those meters were correctly
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          2  read.

          3                 I want to echo the concerns of

          4  Council Member Fidler, especially since you brought

          5  up in your testimony that you think that most of the

          6  payment problems are within the last five years,

          7  that the subprime lending issues and the fact that

          8  homeowners now have to pay their water bill

          9  separately, their mortgage payment I think is a

         10  major problem for all of this.

         11                 I know for a fact there's a lot of

         12  home owners that have recently purchased homes, had

         13  no idea that they even had to pay water bills, they

         14  assumed it was in the mortgage because it had been

         15  traditionally done and they had no idea that they

         16  had water bills that had to be taken care of. And I

         17  think also because of the way that the water bills

         18  are delivered, they're not delivered in a way that

         19  the phone bill is delivered or Con Ed bill is

         20  delivered, with shut off notices and dunning

         21  notices. I think the dunning idea of coming with a

         22  dunning notice and enhancing that program I think

         23  would be critical to increasing your collections.

         24                 And I agree that -- I'm against doing

         25  the lien sale and increasing the ability to do
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          2  service terminations with some consideration and

          3  working with other City agencies to try to find

          4  other means and opportunities for people that are

          5  seriously in indigent situations.

          6                 You did bring up in your testimony,

          7  though, that you even thought that getting the money

          8  from single homes was not your biggest issue. I

          9  think in your pie chart you said the largest

         10  collection problem were the larger properties and

         11  other properties. Have you come up with a set of

         12  specific ideas on how to collect that? I don't think

         13  I've heard anything on how to collect that money at

         14  all.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: The

         16  recommendation in the Booz Allen study and what

         17  we've learned from other cities is really that

         18  without enforcement techniques are not effective.

         19  And what was recommended was a payment incentive

         20  plan for people who had outstanding debt to try to

         21  clear that out of the way as much as possible with

         22  some kind of a compromise and then that followed by

         23  a lien sale.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That followed

         25  by a lien sale.
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          2                 So, did they come up with an

          3  effectiveness rate on that in other areas, about

          4  ensuring that we could have an opportunity to

          5  collect that money from those areas, since there

          6  seems to be more difficulty to collect from?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think that the

          8  information in their study, they modeled what they

          9  thought some of the probabilities were, but I think

         10  that subsequent to that, the work they did looking

         11  at among the properties that were delinquent, how

         12  many were paying their property taxes promptly led

         13  them to believe that there was more capability to

         14  pay than they had thought originally.

         15                 Especially because many times the

         16  property taxes that were being paid were

         17  significantly larger than the full outstanding bill

         18  that was more than five years old.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 And you spoke earlier about working

         21  with other agencies to try to help people that are

         22  having problems and that can identify themselves as

         23  having problems with making payments.

         24                 I would suggest that you also work

         25  with the people that are trying to deal with
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          2  subprime lending issues, and include them in that

          3  net also to make sure that people have other

          4  opportunities to try to reorganize their debt.

          5                 I think that a lot of people that

          6  you'll find when they're not paying their water

          7  bill, they're not paying their other short-term

          8  bills also, and they're maintaining their mortgage

          9  as best that they can until it balloons.

         10                 I wanted to move into another area

         11  all together than anyone else has spoken about, and

         12  that's the -- as you know that I know, you have a

         13  large infrastructure build-out need, and in order to

         14  finance that and to pay for that over time, does the

         15  Water Board have the authority or the ability to

         16  reach out to the federal government or to other

         17  entities to try to get money, as opposed to just

         18  totally doing it itself to raise taxes and fees to

         19  try to get money to build the infrastructure build

         20  outs and to do the things up in Croton and to buy

         21  the properties and to maintain the water pipes?

         22                 MR. PAGE: I think the Commissioner

         23  will have to say something, too, but one of the

         24  problems with the history of the New York City

         25  independent water utility is that we started in the
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          2  mid-eighties, until the early eighties the federal

          3  government basically paid the cost of water

          4  pollution control, sewage treatment plants.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          6                 MR. PAGE: As we started out, and we

          7  started having meters and we started sending people

          8  individual bills, the federal mandates for water

          9  treatment have just continued to escalate, but the

         10  federal government contribution has virtually

         11  disappeared.

         12                 What they do is to provide a limited

         13  subsidy on some of the Water Authority's financing,

         14  so the interest cost that we incur is a little bit

         15  lower, but, unfortunately, in the same time frame --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But the

         17  overall subsidy is going down.

         18                 MR. PAGE: The overall subsidy has

         19  diminished drastically.

         20                 Perhaps you have more to say?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Maybe that's

         22  something that we could work together, or to do some

         23  lobbying on to increase the subsidy since we have a

         24  new level of government, and hopefully a new --

         25  well, we'll have a different President but a
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          2  President and an Administration in at least a year

          3  in a half is more apt to give us some --

          4                 MR. PAGE: That would be wonderful

          5  because this is a shining, hugely expensive unfunded

          6  mandate as a practical matter.

          7                 The federal government determines

          8  what you are obliged to meet in terms of standards.

          9  But we pay for it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But has that

         11  been a priority of the Mayor's Office to highlight

         12  that, the disparity that we're not getting our fair

         13  share of federal subsidy to meet our infrastructure

         14  needs?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We have been

         16  involved in conversations with congressional staff

         17  about this, and there is, I would say, a new level

         18  of interest in terms of providing some assistance,

         19  and we are certainly going to pursue it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 So, clearly that's because you're

         22  talking -- what's your estimated build out for your,

         23  just your Croton water needs over the next few

         24  years?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, our capital
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          2  budget for 11 years is 23, $23 billion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          4                 And your annual income now is about

          5  what?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: About two, a

          7  little over 2 billion.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So there's no

          9  way you can meet your capital needs based on your

         10  income needs over time, because by the time you do

         11  expenses and services, you're just never going to

         12  get there without federal help.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Federal help and

         14  rate increase.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Or increasing

         16  water rates on a regular basis.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And since I'm

         19  trying to stay away from the water rate increase,

         20  I'm trying to focus on how do we get some federal

         21  help or make this a larger issue so that we could

         22  allow people to allow the City or the federal

         23  government to offset some of these costs. And I

         24  think I want to help continue that clarion call,

         25  because there is no way, according to your numbers,

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that we will wind up having double-digit water rate

          3  increases per year, if we have to self-pay out the

          4  whole system, correct?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think given the

          6  mandates it's going to be very challenging to meet

          7  those mandates and keep our rates as reasonable as

          8  they have been. But nothing in the federal mandates,

          9  I'm afraid, is going to help us with the problem we

         10  have this year. There is just none of that could

         11  happen quickly enough to address our requirements

         12  that we have on hand the money to pay the year's

         13  costs.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. I

         15  understand that this is a long-term question and

         16  solution, but as far as the short-term, is there a

         17  possibility to delay the payment to the City for

         18  rental costs or whatever it is for the next couple

         19  years, so we can maintain at least the amount of

         20  water rate charges to the customers? Is there a

         21  possibility that that could happen? A temporary

         22  deferral?

         23                 MR. PAGE: I think that the questions

         24  of rental payment is obviously a subject of

         25  discussion. The amount of the sort of beyond the
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          2  City's direct costs for water, the 77, 78 million

          3  dollars this year, I mean it is in our plan for this

          4  year, both on the water side and on the City side.

          5  If we could get rid of it as a water cost, it still

          6  doesn't solve the problem we're facing.

          7                 It solves perhaps a quarter of it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'll take the

          9  quarter.

         10                 MR. PAGE: Well, except you're going

         11  to lose the quarter on something else that you care

         12  about on the City side. This is the constant

         13  equation here.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well, I

         15  just thought I would throw it out again to see if

         16  there is a possibility.

         17                 Hopefully, I'm hoping you're wrong,

         18  that the estimates for '09 are not as bad as they're

         19  being projected and that the City will recover, and

         20  I'm hoping as we've had the last couple of years,

         21  we've been conservative in our analysis and by the

         22  end of the year we wound up with enough to have a

         23  surplus. That's my hope, and I hope that we're all

         24  looking that way also.

         25                 Again, I want to just bring those two

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  issues up. I think that, you know, to echo Council

          3  Member Fidler, to focus on lien sales, I think there

          4  is a problem. I think focusing on a threat to

          5  termination of services with better notice, using

          6  e-mail, using better notification in the mail, and a

          7  public outreach campaign, for larger buildings

          8  especially. If you notify the tenants that their

          9  landlord is not paying their water bill through a

         10  e-mail or through a mail campaign, I think you'll

         11  get a lot of better response.

         12                 Overall I just wanted to congratulate

         13  you for doing the Booz Allen research and improving

         14  your levels of communication and service, and

         15  clearly there is a clear desire to do better. You

         16  have been doing better, and I look forward to

         17  working with you down the line.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Council member.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         22  Council member.

         23                 Council Member Sears.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair. I'll be very, very brief. It's good to see
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          2  both of you, actually.

          3                 I really want to thank the

          4  Commissioner, because your agency has been, has gone

          5  really, I believe, above and beyond for helping

          6  people in my district, and I want to really thank

          7  you. I see that you have Mark Langham (phonetic)

          8  here and I thank him because he certainly takes that

          9  extra step to do that.

         10                 There are many questions that I had.

         11  Not many. But I'm going to ask them. I'm going to

         12  zero in on just a couple.

         13                 Very few people really realize, and I

         14  know I say that when I go around to speak to my

         15  groups, about the fact that you're mandated to

         16  really have reserves in how you handle that because

         17  of your capital projects.

         18                 What happens if you don't meet them?

         19  What are you subjected to if you don't?

         20                 I always say that we're reaping the

         21  benefits of 30 years ago and longer for the water

         22  system in the City of New York, and that your

         23  capitals are dealing with the future generations, as

         24  well as what we have to deal with now.

         25                 So, what happens if you don't meet
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          2  them and we're talking about generations to come?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, we're

          4  looking at two aspects. One is obviously the effect

          5  on the environment and the critical importance of

          6  being more rigorous about protecting the

          7  environment.

          8                 We also are facing climate change,

          9  which is placing very heavy demands on our drinking

         10  water supply, because of the more severe changes of

         11  climate. So, those are added expenses that we have

         12  to deal with, but I think probably the most critical

         13  thing is really the need to rebuild the system as we

         14  started with water tunnel number three and to

         15  continue that on up. The next major piece of that

         16  will be to repair the Delaware Aqueduct, and without

         17  doing those things, because so much of our system is

         18  100 years old or older, it will simply fall apart

         19  and it won't be the resource for the City that it's

         20  been for so many generations.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Just a public

         22  service announcement.

         23                 The General Welfare Committee that

         24  was supposed to take place at 1:00 in the Chamber

         25  will now be taking place right next door in the
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          2  Committee Room.

          3                 Sorry. Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right,

          5  thank you.

          6                 I understand that, which means it's

          7  far more critical to really receive your payments

          8  and people pay their water bill, otherwise you are

          9  severely affected by having to take from Peter to

         10  pay Paul, and that's the worst of accounting

         11  systems.

         12                 I've run a hospital. I know what it

         13  is when you've got accounts outstanding. With us,

         14  when it was 120 days, I consider them

         15  non-collectible, and here we're looking at four

         16  years, five years and three years.

         17                 So, you have a very, very major

         18  problem and I do think that the liens are going to

         19  be necessary. I do believe that.

         20                 But a couple of questions. I was

         21  reading, and not from your testimony, that about 85

         22  percent of the meters are read. Is that a fair

         23  estimate?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. That is on

         25  an average basis, yes. And that is, Con Edison does
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          2  the reading for us, and that's the reason why we're

          3  going to the automated meter reading system.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Then you must

          5  know my next question. What are those other 15

          6  percent? Are they commercial? Are they in the Class

          7  1 classification, or across the board?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: They're all over

          9  the place, and it's a mixture of locations that are

         10  chronically hard to read, for one reason for

         11  another. The meter may be, or the meter reading

         12  device may be on the outside of the house, but maybe

         13  the family has built a fence that was put on and

         14  that was difficult to gain access. There could be a

         15  dumpster in front of it. There are all kinds of

         16  reasons why there are access problems, which is why

         17  we are making the effort to go out house-by-house

         18  and look at those.

         19                 Some of those are just an occasional.

         20  People will go along, look at the records, and they

         21  have perfect reads for two, three years, and then

         22  there is one estimated bill, because for some reason

         23  there was a problem that particular day and they're

         24  not persistent problems.

         25                 Most accounts are read most of the
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          2  time, because when you take out the chronic no

          3  reads, the read rate is actually much higher for

          4  most people.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It seems that

          6  having that fairness across the board is essential,

          7  so whatever you're proposing to do I think would be

          8  necessary.

          9                 I'm looking at average outstanding

         10  bills, I'll make them 14,000, round that off, to be

         11  payable in 90 days; that is a stiff amount for

         12  homeowners to do. A really stiff amount.

         13                 Now, I know that you cannot really

         14  waive or do things like that, and you know, remove

         15  some of other stuff, other than perhaps the

         16  interest, is there any way, with a legitimate

         17  program, that that average, 90 days, is -- that's

         18  over five, six-thousand dollars a month, and I'm not

         19  saying they shouldn't pay them, but I am saying

         20  that's a very, very hard hit over three months. And

         21  I can understand why you have the speed in which to

         22  do it, but I really think that's a very hard blow to

         23  come up with within a three-month period.

         24                 Is there anything that can be done to

         25  not delay, but within the three months, to average
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          2  out somehow what they do?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, the major

          4  approach that we're taking to that is through the

          5  payment incentive plan, and the --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's removing

          7  the interest, am I correct?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That is removing

          9  the late payment charges.

         10                 But in addition, if the account has

         11  had a very high rate of use that we think may be

         12  attributable either to an undetected leak or to a

         13  problem with the meter, we also will reduce that to

         14  $2 a day. We will cap it at $2 a day for the period

         15  of the non-payment, so that they will be paying

         16  actually a very lower payment than they would be if

         17  they paid a full amount.

         18                 So, what we're trying to do is really

         19  two parts of the same issue. With the dispute

         20  resolution process that we're accelerating, we're

         21  trying to deal with disputes much more effectively

         22  that way, and with the payment incentive plan where

         23  people have had longstanding disputes, we're trying

         24  to deal with it by not only forgiving the late

         25  payment charges, but by only charging them at a much
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          2  more moderate rate so that they will not have such a

          3  burden in terms of that payment and I don't know

          4  what the average would be. I don't think we've

          5  calculated that, but I think it would be much less

          6  than the 14,000 per person.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. So, is

          8  the 14,000 that's averaged out, does that include

          9  the late fees?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. I believe it

         11  does, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. So, then

         13  there is a possibility that that number would drop;

         14  is that what you're saying?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And if the A/R is

         16  quite old, it could be as much as 35 percent. The

         17  average is about 20 to 25 percent across the

         18  account.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And the last

         20  question is on the mixed-use buildings, they are

         21  throughout the City, many, many in my district, we

         22  all know that if any of those merchants or medical

         23  facility did not pay their rent, that landlord would

         24  be giving them an eviction notice with extremely

         25  high rent. Are any of those buildings, because
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          2  you're really having a pilot of the first category,

          3  which is one-, two- and three-family homes, what

          4  about those mixed use buildings? No matter whether

          5  it's small, medium or large, it's still a

          6  percentage, but they are not doing without their

          7  rents for their mixed use. I can tell you that. They

          8  are really dispossessing them.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Right. But if

         10  they're rental units in the building --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, mixed use,

         12  at least in my district, and my understanding of

         13  real estate --

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The mixed use

         16  is having multiple dwellings, residential, and the

         17  contextual at the first and second floors.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's how I

         20  interpret mixed use.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And I think that

         22  in that case we would see that building, if they

         23  would not pay, as a candidate for the lien sale.

         24                 One thing that we have done over the

         25  past couple of years, is we have begun sending the
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          2  bill, not only to the business but also to the

          3  property owner, so the property owner knows what

          4  kind of a bill the business is running up, because

          5  ultimately it's the responsibility of the property

          6  owner if the business does no pay, so that they can

          7  take action if they think that the -- if they

          8  understand that the business owner is not paying

          9  their water bill.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I thank you,

         11  and just one suggestion. I commend you for doing the

         12  Booz Allen, but it would be very helpful if we had

         13  34 pages to read prior to the hearing. So, since

         14  it's a committee hearing, and I've been trying to do

         15  that while Mr. Page was speaking and I stopped,

         16  because I was missing some of your, eruditeness let

         17  me put it that way. So, that could be very helpful

         18  if this happens again and we have a lot, I would

         19  appreciate it if we had that to digest before.

         20                 I think the questions might be

         21  shorter. I think they might be more concise, and I

         22  think that it would help for the brevity of the

         23  hearing.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We'll make every

         25  effort to do that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're

          7  almost finished with the questions.

          8                 Council Member Gerson had to leave

          9  but he asked me if I could ask one or two questions

         10  on his behalf.

         11                 Actually one was answered, but one of

         12  the questions I think that was not answered was how

         13  is this year collection different from last year and

         14  the amount of the quarter of last year?

         15                 I mean, how does this quarter

         16  shortfall compare to the quarter last year at the

         17  same time?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to ask

         19  Steve Lawitts to answer that.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         21  The amount of the shortfall is bigger this year than

         22  it was at the same time last year when we began

         23  Fiscal Year '07. For the first quarter of that

         24  fiscal year, the revenues were down approximately

         25  three percent below the plan for that year, and
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          2  there was also a measured decrease in the water

          3  consumed below plan during the first quarter of

          4  Fiscal Year '07.

          5                 In the first quarter of this current

          6  fiscal year, as was previously testified, the

          7  shortfall is eight percent of the plan and that's a

          8  shortfall in collections, that's not accompanied by

          9  a corresponding decrease in measured water

         10  consumption.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Actually, I'll

         12  add to that, so it's obviously not related to the

         13  water lien sales, because you didn't have the water

         14  lien sale authority last year as well, right?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         16  But the lien sale notices typically do not get sent

         17  until March 1st of each year, and as the Budget

         18  Director had previously testified, we began to see a

         19  significant decrease in revenue collection in the

         20  month following when those notices would have

         21  otherwise gone out. Revenues for March '07, April

         22  and May each were short $20 million or more below

         23  their respective targets for those months, and those

         24  are normally the months when we expect to get an

         25  increase in revenue due to the lien sale notices
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          2  going out.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, but you

          4  didn't have them a year ago.

          5                 You didn't have the stand alone water

          6  lien sale authority a year ago.

          7                 MR. PAGE: I think what we're talking

          8  about is that the ritual of the customers are used

          9  to is that we do an annual lien sale for property

         10  taxes, and it had been the accompanying water liens

         11  each spring, and the lack of the lien sale authority

         12  last fall, I mean the presumption was we were going

         13  to get it by the spring. And we hadn't missed the

         14  usual process of noticing liens that property owners

         15  have come to expect in the spring.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, then actually

         17  there is a direct correlation between not renewing

         18  the old tax lien and the collection, so maybe if we

         19  renewed the old lien sale, then the money would come

         20  in, and we wouldn't be in this situation talking

         21  about 18 and a half percent mid-year increase.

         22                 MR. PAGE: I don't think that renewing

         23  the old structure is going to fix the scope of the

         24  current problem. And one of the reasons we have not

         25  gotten it renewed as I understand it has been in the
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          2  discussions with this body, a sense that we needed

          3  something that was better focused on the water lien

          4  side as well as the property tax side for it to

          5  continue to have effect, and that process has taken

          6  awhile and here we are.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What about if,

          8  instead of authorizing stand alone water lien sales

          9  we actually just close the loophole where people

         10  could actually pay off their property taxes but not

         11  the water taxes before the lien sale went forward?

         12                 MR. PAGE: Presumably that would help

         13  a small amount on the margin. The problem is, as I

         14  said earlier, that the delinquency rate on property

         15  taxes is very low. I believe it's somewhere between

         16  two and three percent. And the delinquency rate on

         17  water and sewer charges, although -- well, I think

         18  our systems are not that great, honestly, at even

         19  knowing what it is, but I think it's somewhere

         20  between 15 and 20 percent.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Can I tell you

         22  why? I know the answer to that.

         23                 Do you know why? I'm asking, do you

         24  know the reason?

         25                 MR. PAGE: I believe one of the
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          2  reasons is the lack of a lien sale authority.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, no. The

          4  reason is that more than two-thirds of property tax

          5  is paid through escrows and mortgages, while the

          6  water sales are not. That's the reason.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Others --

          8                 MR. PAGE: I expect that you're right,

          9  that's a part of the reason. But there's a reason

         10  why they're not paid through escrow accounts. I

         11  mean, they were when we were on frontage, until the,

         12  so the second half of the 1980s, when for various

         13  reasons, conservation, willingness of Upstate

         14  entertain the thought of additional supply, a whole

         15  bunch of things, I don't think we've had much choice

         16  but to move to meters.

         17                 And you're right, one of our

         18  difficulties, which as you've been hearing, I think

         19  the agency is actually managing to get its arms

         20  around, has been our ability to run, a sort of

         21  current account system where charges change, meters

         22  have to be read, relationships with customers,

         23  that's not New York City's highest talent in

         24  general, and I think we are genuinely developing it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm just
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          2  going to ask one last question. And then I'll turn

          3  it over to my co-chair to wrap up, and then we'll

          4  hear from, we have a number of other witnesses that

          5  we'll announce shortly.

          6                 Just a breakdown percentagewise, if

          7  you can. How many of the delinquent water payers

          8  from one to five years are homeowners, apartment

          9  owners, co-op owners, and businesses? Do you have

         10  like a breakdown by percentage?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think we do, if

         12  you can wait just a minute.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sure.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: But I -- Dave, do

         15  you have that?

         16                 But I think I just would like to

         17  mention that without the escrow accounts, but with

         18  service termination and lien sales, virtually every

         19  other major City in the country collects at above 95

         20  percent, 95 and 100 percent.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, I agree

         22  with half of that answer.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm sorry, what

         24  was the question?

         25                 Now, I have the data and I don't
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          2  remember the question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The breakdown of

          4  the delinquent water payers between one and five

          5  years; what's the percentage of breakdown,

          6  homeowners versus apartment dwellers versus

          7  businesses, versus co-ops?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, can we just

          9  give that to you after the hearing because we have

         10  to do arithmetic to give it to you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Just ball park.

         12  Is more of it homeowners, or is more of it apartment

         13  renters?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It's more

         15  homeowners and fewer apartment buildings, but the

         16  dollar amount is towards the apartment buildings

         17  because their bills are larger.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What about small

         19  businesses, or businesses?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Businesses are a

         21  relatively small percentage of it, because we both

         22  do shutoffs and we have the ability to run, to hold

         23  the lien, to sell a lien even if they've paid their

         24  tax.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, good. If
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          2  you could just provide the Committee with that data

          3  at your leisure, we'd be interested in actually

          4  seeing the breakdown.

          5                 I'm going to turn it over to Chair

          6  Gennaro to wrap up.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          8  Chairman Weprin.

          9                 And thank you, both, for your

         10  patients and in staying this long in testifying.

         11                 When someone doesn't pay their water

         12  bill now and they continue to do that, even though

         13  the lien can't be sold, it's a lien on the property,

         14  and if anyone wishes to do anything with that

         15  property, to refinance it, to sell it or whatever,

         16  that would be the time when in order to clear the

         17  title, they have to satisfy the bill. So, this is

         18  really payment deferred rather than money that never

         19  ever comes in, although this is not the system we

         20  want to depend upon. The money ultimately does come,

         21  although not in the time that we would want to do

         22  that, because you have to wait until someone wants

         23  to clear their title, that they have a need to clear

         24  their title because refinancing or a sale before

         25  they'll satisfy the outstanding.
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          2                 And presumably they're very motivated

          3  at that point, in order to get the title cleared,

          4  and probably are willing to pay all kinds of

          5  interest and penalties to get that to happen. Has

          6  that been your experience?

          7                 MR. PAGE: I think the Commissioner

          8  would probably want to speak to this, too.

          9                 One of the basic problems with the

         10  system we have had for keeping track of accounts, is

         11  that when it was purchased, I guess somewhere around

         12  1990, give or take, it was a normal water and sewer

         13  account system. The normal water and sewer account

         14  system deals with arrearages maybe up to six months,

         15  because the norm in the business is, you shut off

         16  the service, you sell the lien, you cut them off

         17  forever, you don't keep them around, and the system

         18  that we have is very bad at maintaining history

         19  accurately.

         20                 If there is an adjustment made by

         21  DEP, because the customer calls, the system pretends

         22  that the account restarted at that adjustment

         23  moment, as opposed to going back.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         25                 MR. PAGE: And what happens is, I'm
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          2  totally with you, that ultimately you should be able

          3  to collect every dime, because sooner or later it's

          4  all going to turn over. But when it finally turns

          5  over, our ability to accurately document the service

          6  provided on that property has all kinds of problems,

          7  and it's one of the defects that the new customer

          8  and accounting system that the agency is seeking to

          9  buy needs to address. But the stuff gets very old,

         10  and you would think it would be a water right

         11  collection and it doesn't work that well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, is it the

         13  case that when someone comes forward and they have

         14  to clear the title of a property, and they're very

         15  motivated at that point, what commences at that

         16  point, kind of a negotiation between? I mean, how

         17  does that get resolved then?

         18                 I wouldn't like to think that we're

         19  foregoing penalties or whatever, we should be made

         20  whole if they haven't done that.

         21                 I just want to let Jim Tripp know, if

         22  he's in the room, that you'll be next in just a

         23  moment, okay?

         24                 Hey, Joe.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Good
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          2  afternoon.

          3                 Usually, depending, if it's something

          4  less than five years and we've had reasonably good

          5  read histories, 60 percent, 70 percent read history,

          6  if there's a period where the estimate or a read was

          7  transposed, you can use the average daily flow to

          8  just come to a reasonable answer on that.

          9                 If you're going with a particular

         10  account that let's say has not made a payment in ten

         11  years or 15 years and we have accounts like that, a

         12  mixed use property in particular that we've dealt

         13  with recently, some of these accounts can get so

         14  large that these people are essentially upside down

         15  on their equity. They're going to sell, and the

         16  delinquency has gone for so long that there is not

         17  enough to pay the bank and us, and therefore, they

         18  can't get out from the title if they want to.

         19                 So, letting these delinquencies run

         20  for a decade, 12 years, 15 years, some of these

         21  accounts cannot be solved right now. They are upside

         22  down on the equity, and that's why the early

         23  intervention through either a lien sale or service

         24  termination is very important. Not just for us to

         25  get paid, but for the owners to be able to maintain

                                                            160

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the equity in their properties.

          3                 We don't want the owner's equity. We

          4  want to just get paid for our service.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Most

          7  of the time, you know, you have to get a title read,

          8  and we may do something on a late payment charge for

          9  payment in full, but the utility charges are as they

         10  stand, and we get payment at that point.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let me

         12  just ask you one more thing, as long as you're

         13  there, and this will be my last question.

         14                 At our last hearing on this topic,

         15  you testified that the number of properties that get

         16  water service but have no accounts with DEP and

         17  therefore don't get any bills, was something that

         18  you were trying to work to address, and you had

         19  estimated at the time that the scope of properties

         20  that get serviced but have no DEP account, therefore

         21  no bill, get free service, essentially was between

         22  two and 5,000 properties, how are we doing on that?

         23  Because it's of particular concern to me, the notion

         24  that people are getting service but not being billed

         25  for it?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: We

          3  actually did a review of 12,000 accounts.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you just

          5  hang on one second?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Sure.

          7                 We did a review of 12,000 accounts

          8  which involved a match of finances --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Twelve thousand?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: Twelve

         11  was the base we started with.

         12                 A lot of those buildings we found

         13  spanned multiple block and lots, had been receiving

         14  service through an adjacent building, things of that

         15  nature.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: So, as

         18  of last week we found 455 buildings that had not

         19  previously been billed for service. We've

         20  back-billed them. All of $5 million to date. That

         21  effort will continue going forward. The second phase

         22  of that will be looking on accounts that are, what

         23  our system says are inactive, to make sure that they

         24  are in fact getting properly billed for those

         25  services. But the actual number we've found to date
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          2  is 455.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, 455 was the

          4  total unit? Or you so far brought 455 properties

          5  into the system?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: So far

          7  we've brought 455 into the system over the last,

          8  actually about the last ten months.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And there is

         10  some universe still out there, which you're trying

         11  --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SINGLETON: I

         13  believe there are other properties that are still

         14  not being billed.

         15                 If I had to guess right now, that

         16  total population would be under 2,000. But that's

         17  something, that's an effort that we would continue

         18  to do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         20  Thank you, Joe.

         21                 You know, let me take this

         22  opportunity to thank the witnesses. You have been

         23  most gracious and we appreciate your patience in

         24  being here.

         25                 I want to thank everyone for being
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          2  patient with the long proceedings, you know, thank

          3  you for your comprehensive testimony. We have great

          4  respect for you and we will work together to figure

          5  this all out, okay? Thanks very much.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you,

          7  Chairman Gennaro and Chairman Weprin.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the next

         10  witness, as I announced previously, is Jim Tripp,

         11  who is Chairman of the New York City Water Board. It

         12  gives me great pleasure to introduce Mr. Tripp, not

         13  only as Chairman of the Water Board, but all of his

         14  great environmental work, with Environmental Defense

         15  for many years, a great champion of the environment,

         16  and we appreciate him, not only being so giving of

         17  his time today, because he pretty much spent the

         18  whole day here, but all the time he gives to the

         19  water board, in addition to providing great service

         20  to the environment of New York City, New York State,

         21  the country. He's always in some other state

         22  litigating a case on behalf of the environment, so

         23  it's a pleasure to have you before us here today,

         24  Jim. We've got great respect for you and look

         25  forward to your good testimony.
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          2                 And, so, if you just state your name

          3  for the record, and proceed, we appreciate that.

          4                 You've got to hit the button.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The light has to

          6  be off to be on. It's a City Council thing.

          7                 MR. TRIPP: Okay. Is it on now?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it is.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes.

         10                 MR. TRIPP: Okay.

         11                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair, and

         12  also Chair Weprin.

         13                 My name is James T.B. Tripp. I am

         14  here today in my capacity as Chair of the New York

         15  City Water Board. To my knowledge, the Chair of the

         16  City Water Board has never testified before in a New

         17  York City Council Committee hearing. But at our

         18  special board meeting Thursday morning, the Board,

         19  the seven members of the Board decided unanimously

         20  that I should appear here and testify before you

         21  today. And the written statement that has been

         22  handed out that I hope you have has been endorsed by

         23  all seven members of the Committee. So, at least

         24  what is here in writing is not my own personal

         25  opinion.
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          2                 To get to the nub that is before you

          3  today, the New York City Water Board, all seven

          4  members, strongly support independent water lien

          5  sale authority. Collection and enforcement is just a

          6  big problem, as you've heard here today.

          7                 We have the role, fortunately, or

          8  unfortunately, of approving rate increases every

          9  year, based, as the Budget Director said, based on

         10  facts and figures that are presented to us having to

         11  do with the operating cost for the system for the

         12  forthcoming year in debt service cost.

         13                 So, particularly in the last two

         14  years, in Fiscal Year '07, and this year with the

         15  dramatic increase in water rates, I think it would

         16  be fair to say that the Water Board has become much

         17  more active at looking at ways of improving revenues

         18  and holding down expenses and to do what we can do

         19  so that when we come to vote on rates they will be

         20  more modest, more moderate than they otherwise would

         21  be.

         22                 And collection is a problem with

         23  probably a sixth of the customers of the Water Board

         24  not paying their water bills within two billing

         25  periods which is six months, and there are plenty,
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          2  as far as we have been able to tell, there are

          3  plenty of low-income people in the City who pay

          4  their water bills, but at the end of the day, if a

          5  sixth of the customers don't pay their bills, or

          6  they delay months or years and years, it means that

          7  the others pay more, and that strikes me as being

          8  both fair, unfair and inefficient.

          9                 Now, one of the concerns in the past

         10  has been, and there has been testimony about it this

         11  morning, about the accuracy of water bills and

         12  customer service, and in our collective judgement

         13  DEP has made very significant progress in the last

         14  couple of years in improving customer services, in

         15  improving the accuracy of bills, and while we might

         16  have been hesitant in the past to endorse a really

         17  aggressive enforcement program, whether it's

         18  residential cut off or seeking authority for

         19  independent lien sale, that's no longer the case.

         20                 I'll say at water rate increase

         21  hearings in the past, and I've been on the Water

         22  Board I think for about 15 years, you know, a large

         23  portion of the comments in the past have been about

         24  the accuracy or inaccuracy of water bills. There has

         25  just been very little of that. And I would say at
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          2  the special meeting that we had on Thursday, a

          3  number of people who are often very critical of what

          4  we do, indicated that that really wasn't an issue.

          5                 So, at least in our view, although

          6  there is still room for improvement, and it's

          7  important that water bills be as accurate as

          8  possible, that doesn't seem to be a reason to retard

          9  moving ahead with a much more aggressive enforcement

         10  program.

         11                 Now, in the view of the Water Board,

         12  we have been working on this issue, and we have been

         13  after DEP to take advantage of its existing

         14  authority, to the maximum extent, you know, feasible

         15  that makes sense. That means shutoffs.

         16                 So, you know, the Booz Allen report

         17  suggests the same thing, but to us it is obvious,

         18  let's start using effectively the authority that

         19  we've had.

         20                 You've heard about the results of

         21  that this morning, and they have been encouraging.

         22  And at one point the Department was suggesting we

         23  would do water shutoffs except during a certain

         24  period, six or seven months of the year, when the

         25  heat might be on, but we've urged an even more
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          2  aggressive approach.

          3                 So, we seem to be moving ahead in

          4  that direction. The real question is, can you do

          5  that effectively with multi-family housing? Not just

          6  with one-, two- and three-family housing, but with

          7  bigger, bigger apartment buildings. And we've, you

          8  know, urged DEP to put together the program that

          9  would start doing that, water shutoffs with

         10  multi-family housing, but I think we all have to be

         11  aware of the fact that it is complicated, it's

         12  messy, it's not particularly efficient and it may be

         13  unfair, and it is certainly going to be unfair in

         14  the case of a building where the landlord hasn't

         15  paid the water bill, it's just a low priority,

         16  because there is no enforcement out there, and the

         17  tenants have paid their rent. And the rent is

         18  supposed to include money to cover their water bill.

         19  And all of a sudden, you know, DEP goes out and puts

         20  crayon on the sidewalk and digs a hole and, you

         21  know, turns off the valve and so on.

         22                 So, while it may make sense to try

         23  and develop that program more effectively, it has a

         24  lot of difficulties for this, and I think the

         25  members of the Water Board are persuaded that the
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          2  independent water lien approach for a very large

          3  part, if not the bulk of multi-family housing, where

          4  the landlord and the owner of the building has not

          5  paid water bills, is just a more fair and efficient

          6  way to go.

          7                 But I'm trying to stress that in our

          8  view, it has been important for DEP to do its part

          9  of the equation, and for that matter, for the Water

         10  Board to do its part of what needs to be done. And I

         11  believe we're, certainly in terms of the accuracy of

         12  bills, we're moving in the right direction. And even

         13  in terms of trying to test out the out-of-boundaries

         14  of the efficacy of the water shutoff program for

         15  both residential and commercial we're moving in the

         16  right direction.  So, we unanimously urge that you

         17  give DEP, you know, that authority.

         18                 The written testimony that is here

         19  indicates other things that the Water Board is

         20  trying to do to hold down expenses.

         21                 And by the way, let me add, although

         22  it's not in here specifically, but I think this is a

         23  fair statement and would express the views of the

         24  members of the Water Board, and that is, we would be

         25  here asking you to give DEP that authority, even if
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          2  there weren't any shortfall in revenues. I mean it's

          3  true that that has motivated action, but we need to

          4  have a much, much more effective enforcement program

          5  just to, you know, from a fairness and efficiency

          6  point of view, and in looking at not only what is

          7  going on this year, but next year and over the next

          8  several years. So, that's why we need that

          9  authority.

         10                 Yes, we have been active in terms of

         11  looking at other expenses that could, you know, help

         12  us, where we think there is an opportunity to reduce

         13  expenses with a view of not increasing water rates,

         14  whether we're talking about some kind of special

         15  water rate this year or in subsequent years, and

         16  we've had many discussions about this. But, clearly,

         17  from the point of view of the Water Board, the

         18  rental payment looms large in the horizon.

         19                 The rental payment up until two years

         20  ago, virtually all of it has been used to cover the

         21  pro rata share of the General Obligation Bond Debt

         22  Service, that's fair and reasonable. The question

         23  is, does it make any sense on any theory of

         24  governance to have a rental payment based on 15

         25  percent of debt service costs, where those debt
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          2  service costs are climbing ten or 12 percent per

          3  year, which will mean that the rental payment will

          4  similarly escalate, particularly, as you pointed

          5  out, by 2012 we paid off all the General Obligation

          6  bonds, and in our view that's simply bizarre to have

          7  that kind of an arrangement. And while that number

          8  today may be, I don't know, 75, 76 million dollars,

          9  maybe three percent -- by the way, three percent is

         10  not insignificant, but if you look ahead five years,

         11  you look at the numbers for the expense budget,

         12  looking at two, three, five, ten years, you know, it

         13  becomes significant. Whenever it becomes $300

         14  million, it's going to be much closer to ten percent

         15  of the total budget.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I've got a

         17  graph right here that shows it going out of sight in

         18  a very short period of time.

         19                 MR. TRIPP: So, in any case, we have

         20  been cognizant of this issue, we want to do

         21  something about it, and we're going to continue to

         22  work to do something about it.

         23                 I mean, I understand that whatever

         24  amount of money that we transfer to the City is

         25  revenue to the City and part of your budget, but
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          2  we're members of the Water Board and our job is to

          3  try and urge actions that will, you know, recognize

          4  that water rates are going to go up because of a

          5  huge capital program, but does so in a more moderate

          6  way. You know, at the same time, and this goes back

          7  to discussions that we've had, I think it would be

          8  fair to say, the testimony says this, that the Water

          9  Board members are not of the view if the rental

         10  payment were eliminated all together.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that

         12  again? That the Water Board members would be what?

         13                 MR. TRIPP: Well, let me start over

         14  again.

         15                 Under the bond covenance, we have to

         16  collect 15 percent of debt service. And we will

         17  obviously continue to do that. We're obliged to do

         18  that. The question is, you know, at the end of the

         19  year do we in effect turn that over as the rental

         20  payment or do we do something else with it? And the

         21  something else is either to hold down rates, or to

         22  use some portion of that, some significant portion

         23  of that for paid in capital to reduce the amount of

         24  borrowing that we're having to do to do this capital

         25  program, and as this testimony says, the Water Board
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          2  members, we haven't come to any particular decision

          3  on this, because it hasn't been relevant so far, but

          4  just to let you know, our view is some significant

          5  portion of that should go into paid and capital to

          6  help to hold down borrowing costs.

          7                 The outstanding debt for the system

          8  right now, as of the end of the last Fiscal Year,

          9  was $17 billion. We have, DEP has a $20 billion

         10  ten-year capital program it has embarked on. You add

         11  those two numbers together, you get $40 billion, and

         12  that is by anyone's imagination a huge number. So,

         13  the question is, are there things that we can do,

         14  you know, to hold that down, and our perspective

         15  again, as the Water Board is not just what rates are

         16  this year, what they're going to be next year, but

         17  what are rates going to be over the next five to ten

         18  years.

         19                 So, that is clearly an issue for us.

         20  You know, can the Water Board do other things to

         21  hold down other expenses? Yes, and we're going to

         22  have to, although we don't really have any legal

         23  authority to do it, as a body with legal

         24  obligations, but also trying to take into account

         25  the greater good and the public interest, we're
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          2  going to be much more diligent in the future to see

          3  if there are other ways holding down other kinds of

          4  expenses. Are there ways of moderating the size of

          5  the capital budget? There may be things there as

          6  well, in terms of what are really the highest

          7  priorities, what can be put off and those kinds of

          8  things. Although, the Water Board over the years has

          9  raised questions about those kinds of things, we may

         10  have to do more of that in the future.

         11                 So, you know, in conclusion, and I'll

         12  just read the last paragraph of the statement, we

         13  want the Council to know that the Water Board is

         14  concerned about water rates this year, next year and

         15  over the next ten to 20 years. We are very impressed

         16  with DEP billing and customer service improvements,

         17  and the face of increasing challenges to moderating

         18  rate increases, we are becoming more active in

         19  searching for actions that we can take, including an

         20  aggressive water shutoff enforcement program, a new

         21  rental payment arrangement and other expense

         22  reduction measures.

         23                 However, it is imperative that DEP

         24  has all appropriate enforcement powers to assure

         25  prompt payment of water bills and to that end we
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          2  urge prompt adoption of independent water lien sale

          3  authority.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Mr. Tripp. Sounds funny to call you Mr. Tripp

          7  when we're friends. So, I'll call you Jim, you can

          8  call me Jim.

          9                 I want to thank you for -- let's just

         10  talk about the rental payments first -- for your

         11  candid comments regarding the rental payment and

         12  about how the Water Board seems to have a different

         13  view from the Administration on the sanity of what I

         14  call the residual, that is that part of the rental

         15  payment, that doesn't satisfy the pre-1985 general

         16  obligation debt.  I think it is unfortunate that

         17  they see, that is the Administration, sees that part

         18  of the rental payment residual, that which goes to

         19  the General Fund, in terms of what you heard Mr. --

         20                 MR. TRIPP: Mr. Page.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, Mr. Page

         22  characterize as, in terms of cops, firefighters and

         23  that kind of thing, when these things should be paid

         24  out of general revenue that's raised through

         25  progressive means of taxation, and I think this is
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          2  the problem that comes from a Water Board that is

          3  perhaps not as independent as it could be, if you

          4  had staff that reported to you and didn't report to

          5  the Administration. But, you know, notwithstanding

          6  the fact that you don't really have an independent

          7  staff, you're independent minded enough to see that

          8  this residual is really a form of, it's a form of

          9  raising general revenue for things that have nothing

         10  to do with water and sewer.

         11                 And notwithstanding the testimony

         12  that there is some fiscal benefit in terms of a

         13  cushion and satisfaction of the rate payer --

         14  satisfaction of the bond holders and Wall Street,

         15  you and I know that for many, many years there was

         16  no residual at all, and Wall Street was perfectly

         17  happy with our result and we satisfied them, this

         18  cushion, this need for more money into the system,

         19  you know, budgeting for and collecting a large

         20  surplus every year. And is it the case that what

         21  I've just described and the philosophy that I've

         22  sort of put forward is consistent with the belief of

         23  the members of the Water Board?

         24                 MR. TRIPP: Well, the Water Board is

         25  independent, but within bounds. We have legal
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          2  obligations, and it is true that, you know, most of

          3  the information that we get comes from DEP, from the

          4  Administration, from the New York City Water Finance

          5  Authority, in terms of what our obligations are. We

          6  do get information from, and lots of ideas, from

          7  people who come to our meetings. We have a public

          8  comment period, and attend the rate hearings. The

          9  fact that I'm here today, representing the Water

         10  Board, I think indicates that the Water Board as a

         11  body intends to become a more vibrant independent

         12  voice occasionally when the opportunity arises,

         13  uttering thoughts that may not be all together

         14  consistent with what you hear from the Budget

         15  Director or other members of the Administration.

         16                 I am not in a position to talk about

         17  what the City may decide to do with the escalating

         18  rental payment revenues from the Water Board. I'm

         19  not, as a member of the Water Board, and speaking on

         20  behalf of the seven members, I'm not in a position

         21  to say whether the greater good is served by paving

         22  streets or paying teachers more or holding down

         23  water rates.

         24                 The Water Board's view is the current

         25  arrangement makes no sense, you know, whatsoever. It
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          2  doesn't make any sense to collect the overage from

          3  the ratepayers to satisfy the bond resolution, the

          4  15 percent, and then at the end of the Fiscal Year,

          5  simply turn that over to the City. I mean, it

          6  doesn't even strike me, you know, you wonder if you

          7  took a poll of the bondholders, if they would think

          8  that would be a particularly good idea.

          9                 You know, it seems to me our proposal

         10  that we should retain that money, and, yes, use some

         11  of it, particularly in some years to try and hold

         12  down rates, but use a very significant portion of it

         13  to hold down borrowing costs, would be something

         14  much more consistent with the long-term interest of

         15  bond holders.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 Now, when you talk about your

         18  proposal, that's something that's embodied in your

         19  testimony?

         20                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Because my

         22  next question was going to be that the Water Board

         23  as an institution should, you know, officially opine

         24  on this and indicate what they believe would be

         25  appropriate for the future in light of this rental
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          2  payment situation, which is going to escalate out of

          3  hand, and doesn't make any sense to anybody on my

          4  side of the table certainly.

          5                 MR. TRIPP: Well, we are officially

          6  opining on it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. That's

          8  great.

          9                 MR. TRIPP: And there are a couple of

         10  reasons for doing it, and that is to let you know

         11  what we intend to try to do, to deal with the rate

         12  situation as far as we can. So, are we unanimously

         13  in support of your giving DEP now, given the recent

         14  track record and proven customer service,

         15  independent water lien authority, the answer is yes.

         16                 Are we 100 percent unanimously in

         17  favor of a new arrangement on the rental payment?

         18  The answer is yes.

         19                 From the point of view of the Water

         20  Board, we want both those things. They're both

         21  critical for the long-term financial stability of

         22  the system, and we will continue to work on both of

         23  them.

         24                 But let me stress, that whatever

         25  happens with the rental payment, we're going to
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          2  continue working on it and hope you will, too, for

          3  the remainder of this year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          5                 MR. TRIPP: We have simply, starting

          6  now, have got to do something about collection and

          7  enforcement, and inasmuch as we have supported and

          8  have been working with DEP to strengthen the

          9  residential and commercial water shutoff,

         10  enforcement program, that is simply not enough and

         11  is not going to do the job, in our view, to give our

         12  enforcement strategy the credibility that it needs

         13  to get from 85 or 86 percent of our customers

         14  paying, up to 98 and 99 --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. TRIPP: Where we need to be.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         18  the question of DEP's current ability to wield new

         19  enforcement authority in the form of stand alone

         20  water liens is, you know, one that is still very

         21  much, you know, depending on the individual Council

         22  Member, you know, he or she might have a different

         23  view of that, we've all, notwithstanding the good

         24  track record that we have when we advocate for

         25  people, when our offices advocate for our local
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          2  constituents, with DEP, the fact that there are all

          3  these cases still out there, you know, gives us

          4  pause, and, you know, we all want to make sure that

          5  DEP's ability to enforce is directed at authentic

          6  account delinquency and that's a mistake. And so it

          7  becomes a question, as I mentioned earlier, of how

          8  far DEP has come in their reforms.

          9                 They're just getting their report now

         10  from Booz Allen, there are things that naturally

         11  need to be done. There are some Council members that

         12  take the view of notwithstanding the fact that we

         13  need more enforcive (sic) actions now, why don't we

         14  let them mature a little bit and finish them with

         15  reforms, so that we can be sure that whatever

         16  authority that they're given is wielded properly.

         17  And I think that's just what's going on in the minds

         18  of Council members now.

         19                 MR. TRIPP: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We realize the

         21  need for some kind of aggressive strategy, because

         22  we can't let the people have a free ride, but we

         23  want to make sure that we're not creating more

         24  problems than we're solving.

         25                 MR. TRIPP: Well, I appreciate that.
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          2  You know, I summarized the statement to save time,

          3  but let me direct you to the top of page two, in

          4  sort of the middle of that paragraph it appears on

          5  top of page two, and, again, this is a statement

          6  that's been approved by all the members of the Water

          7  Board, while there were many questions in the past

          8  about excessively high water bills, in the historic

          9  accuracy of those accounts and other bills, DEP has

         10  made enormous progress in improving the quality and

         11  accuracy of its customer accounts and strengthening

         12  customer service operations.

         13                 In our view, that's all seven of us,

         14  this problem has been largely resolved and should no

         15  longer justify any delay in implementing a robust

         16  collection and enforcement program.

         17                 Is there still room for improvement?

         18  The answer is obviously yes. But we would urge you

         19  not to delay giving DEP additional collection and

         20  enforcement authority for that reason.

         21                 There are, I think we all have to

         22  recognize that there is a -- you know, there are

         23  sort of two issues. What do we do about past

         24  accounts where, you know, arrears may go back years

         25  or questions about inaccuracies and so on, and then
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          2  let's cut to now, you know, what are we going to do

          3  now? And, you know, the deficiencies of the past

          4  should not paralyze us to dealing with the current

          5  situation, which is to get, you know, 98, 99, 100

          6  percent of our customers paying their bills on time.

          7                 The Commissioner talked about the

          8  Payment Improvement Program, which has now initially

          9  been set up for single-family residential customers,

         10  an incentive program for people with large bills,

         11  and by the way, these are customers that in many

         12  cases never paid anything at all. It's not a

         13  question that they have an argument about their

         14  bill, they simply haven't paid anything.

         15                 So, the Payment Improvement Program

         16  is a way of trying to get, you know, it's a

         17  semi-compromized amnesty program, whatever you want

         18  to call it, come into the door and pay their bills.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 MR. TRIPP: Where the annual amount of

         21  their bill would be based on sort of a modest

         22  fraction over what the average bill is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         24                 MR. TRIPP: So, it would mean all

         25  kinds of excesses are going to be forgiven, payments
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          2  are going to be forgiven, you know, let's get going.

          3  And that's really I think the Water Board's concern,

          4  it's not so much not only trying to collect some of

          5  this money, which is really due, and it would be

          6  very useful to do that this year, boy, I hope that

          7  the revenues come in, you know, above plan for the

          8  next several months. I'm sure we all do, but, you

          9  know, given the current situation, it would be

         10  awfully good if we could collect a good piece of

         11  that. But going forward, we need the authority.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         13  coming from you and coming from the other members of

         14  the Water Board, whom I respect, your confidence in

         15  DEP goes a long way with me. So, it's of great value

         16  for you to come forward and, you know, make your

         17  statement and give DEP a vote of confidence, because

         18  coming from you, that certainly resonates with me.

         19                 Let's just jump back, let me ask you

         20  a lawyer question. I know you're a lawyer. Would it

         21  be your opinion that the Bloomberg Administration,

         22  if it wished to, could amend the terms of the lease

         23  arrangement that exists between the Water Board and

         24  the City?

         25                 You know, you can't do that because
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          2  you're the tenant, so-to-speak. You're the one

          3  paying the rent. But the one that is collecting the

          4  rent, you know, collecting the lease, could

          5  presumably change the terms of the lease such that

          6  we dealt with this residual problem in some way.

          7                 They would have the ability to do

          8  that, would they not?

          9                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

         10                 There are two ways in my view, and

         11  I'm not speaking on behalf of the entire Water

         12  Board.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. TRIPP: If you're asking me in my

         15  capacity as a lawyer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, I just ask

         17  you a question as a lawyer, someone who understands

         18  this process.

         19                 MR. TRIPP: Yes. In my view, even

         20  under the current lease arrangement there is some

         21  discretion, some flexibility with the City as to the

         22  level at which the payment in any given year would

         23  be set.

         24                 So, you know, could the City decide

         25  this year that the $76 million is going to be 50 or
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          2  25 or something, maybe is a way of helping to deal

          3  with a revenue shortfall.

          4                 Could they get that under the current

          5  lease agreement? My view is yes.

          6                 Just doing that on a year-by-year

          7  basis doesn't deal with the longer term problem --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Yes.

          9                 MR. TRIPP: -- Of where are we

         10  heading?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In a couple of

         12  years, you know, $300 million for a rental payment,

         13  and that's crazy.

         14                 MR. TRIPP: Could the City renegotiate

         15  the terms of the lease agreement? Yes. I mean, the

         16  lease agreement is a kind of a contract between the

         17  Water Board and the City.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. TRIPP: So, if the two parties sit

         20  down and agree to new lease terms, the answer is,

         21  yes, of course we can do it.

         22                 Since I see Pat McCoy still here, let

         23  me, you know, with the same breath remind everyone

         24  here that we are obliged independent of the rental

         25  payment to cover 15 percent over the debt service
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          2  cost.

          3                 So, the real question is, what's to

          4  be done with that extra money? Is it simply going to

          5  be turned over to the City or should we be able to

          6  keep it both to deal with the rate situation and

          7  also to make a contribution to pay capital.

          8                 But there is no doubt, we have a two

          9  party, or at most three, I think, there's a

         10  two-party agreement contract --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 MR. TRIPP: You can change the terms

         13  of it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         15  I've got a great appreciation for your view that the

         16  current arrangement is both, you know, unsustainable

         17  and non-sensical, and something has to be done. And

         18  I believe it's just an amazing step forward that the

         19  Water Board has taken the independent step to go on

         20  the record, and to see this chart and to appreciate

         21  what's coming, perhaps better than any other entity.

         22  And with only the motives of what's looking out for,

         23  with only the motive of what's best for the

         24  financial stability of the water system, what makes

         25  the most sense with regard to the City's water
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          2  infrastructure, and not cops, teachers, firefighters

          3  and other, you know, natural concerns are going to

          4  creep in on the part of the good people from the

          5  Administration, who always look for ways to do good

          6  things.

          7                 But I think your perspective is very

          8  valuable here, and I'm very, very appreciative of

          9  it.

         10                 That kind of concludes my questions

         11  and comments regarding your statement.

         12                 Chairman Weprin had some of his own,

         13  but thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, I'm going to

         15  be brief.

         16                 I appreciate your statement as well,

         17  even with considering Mark Page is still in the

         18  room.

         19                 You know, again, I think you have

         20  agreement on that. What I'm a little disturbed about

         21  is I testified before one of your hearings --

         22                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: As well as Chair

         24  Gennaro, when you proposed what was the largest

         25  increase at the time, 11 and a half percent, just
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          2  this past June, and I was actually told off the

          3  record, and I won't mention my sources, that there

          4  was certain sentiment among some of the seven

          5  members that maybe the 11 and a half percent was not

          6  necessary, but they were told by whoever that if

          7  they didn't vote for the 11 and a half percent, they

          8  might jeopardize an upcoming bond issue; is there

          9  any truth to that?

         10                 MR. TRIPP: Well, I don't think, you

         11  know, really.

         12                 Our obligation is to set rates, and

         13  when we set rates we assume a certain level of

         14  collection and enforcement. You know, enough to

         15  cover the operating cost to the system and the

         16  outstanding debt service with this 15 percent over

         17  that.

         18                 And the facts and figures given to us

         19  indicated that this unfortunately high rate increase

         20  was necessary to do that. There is an issue every

         21  year, and Mr. Gennaro and I have had many

         22  discussions about this, well, there is some kind of

         23  surplus built into the system, can we take that to

         24  hold down rates, and you know, one could do that.

         25                 My honest view, as an individual
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          2  Board member in the past has been, if we have a

          3  surplus, we ought to use some significant portion of

          4  it as paid-in capital, or for defeasance to pay off

          5  debt. You know, I'm a little bit scared about where

          6  the debt in the system is going. So, you know, in

          7  general, we didn't -- I don't remember Mark Page or

          8  Pat McCoy or anyone else telling me or the members

          9  of the Water Board that we will put a future bond

         10  sale in jeopardy if we didn't agree to that payment.

         11                 The question is -- clearly we don't

         12  want to do that, we have to be responsible to the

         13  people who have invested capital in this.

         14                 So, my short answer to your question

         15  is no.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: But there is no

         17  question when you adopted the 11 and a half percent

         18  rate in June, that you didn't discuss a 30 percent

         19  rate increase; is that accurate?

         20                 MR. TRIPP: Well, we certainly didn't

         21  discuss a 30 percent rate increase.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: But that's what's

         23  on the table now.

         24                 MR. TRIPP: Well, that's not exactly

         25  -- to my knowledge there has only been one mid-year
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          2  rate increase since this new system was set up, and

          3  it was I think around 1990. It was when the City,

          4  1989, the City, I guess during the time it was under

          5  orders to stop dumping sludge out in the ocean, and

          6  suddenly was facing, you know, huge expenses in

          7  setting up this whole dewatering system and a lot of

          8  new operating expenses.

          9                 So, there hasn't been anything like

         10  that since 1990. It's extraordinary. And we would do

         11  our utmost as a Water Board to avoid a situation

         12  where we have to do it.

         13                 As the fiscal year progresses, the

         14  closer you get to the end of it, if you have a

         15  shortfall, and you're told you have to bring in more

         16  revenues to cover it, the bigger that spike is going

         17  to be.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: But you have 74

         19  million that we all agree on you should have.

         20                 MR. TRIPP: So, you know, if there

         21  were a shortfall of $200 million and somehow we

         22  could work things out so that we don't have to put

         23  up that 74, 75 million dollars, transfer it to the

         24  coffers, you know, that would leave us with a small

         25  debt that we would have to deal with. But the 18
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          2  percent in part comes from a potential revenue

          3  shortfall, that we hope will not continue to grow

          4  the way it did in the first three months, but also

          5  the need to have a sharp increase, if the rate

          6  increase only covers a portion of the Fiscal Year.

          7                 Let me assure you, I hope you won't

          8  have to do it, I at least did a meeting in

          9  September, and again these are my personal views,

         10  but I said them in public at the time, before I'm

         11  going to personally vote for a mid-year rate

         12  increase, I'm going to do everything I can to

         13  persuade you to give DEP, the independent water lien

         14  authority, I'm going to do everything I can to

         15  persuade DEP to move ahead with the most aggressive

         16  residential and commercial water shutoff program,

         17  and I'm going to do everything I can with the rental

         18  payment, and I'm going to look at, spend much more

         19  time than I have in the past, looking at other

         20  expenses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: While I agree

         22  with your second and third statement, not the first

         23  one about the stand alone water lien sale, because,

         24  you know, I have no doubt that this stand alone

         25  water lien sale issue is really a red herring,
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          2  because there is no way that if we instituted a

          3  stand alone water lien sale program tomorrow, that

          4  all of a sudden the revenue would come in as

          5  unexpected, as opposed to implementing other

          6  recommendations of the Booz Allen report.

          7                 And the other thing is, for over a

          8  year, we in the Council have been saying to the

          9  Administration that we're willing to continue the

         10  real property tax lien sale, which would actually

         11  result in additional property tax collection as well

         12  as additional water tax collection with added on to

         13  the property tax, and there have been no requests by

         14  the Administration.

         15                 So, they've had over a year to do

         16  that.

         17                 MR. TRIPP: Yes, I can't answer for

         18  the Administration. I do believe, I mean what you've

         19  heard here today, that the number of people who are

         20  not paying their water bills exceeds greatly the

         21  number of people who aren't paying their taxes.

         22                 Now, whether that's because the City

         23  has a very effective tax collection program or times

         24  have been good.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, I think the
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          2  mortgage escrows. The mortgage escrows are the

          3  property tax --

          4                 MR. TRIPP: In any event, part of the

          5  problem is that the universe of people who are

          6  paying their taxes, and have the wherewithal to pay

          7  their taxes but who are not paying their water

          8  bills, that universe is growing, and that's the

          9  universe that we're focusing on and we've got to do

         10  something about.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, what about

         12  reporting them to collection agencies, wouldn't that

         13  do the job? I think that's a scarier premise.

         14                 MR. TRIPP: I don't know whether it

         15  is. I mean, I think the residential shut off program

         16  is a way of indicating to the public at large, as

         17  well as to you all, that we're very serious --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: -- And we have no

         19  problem with that --

         20                 MR. TRIPP: Very serious, and I think

         21  it would be a powerful signal to the non-paying

         22  public out there, and I think there are plenty of

         23  them paying their taxes, collecting rents from their

         24  tenants, those are not being paid. I think it would

         25  be a very powerful signal if you, the Council gave
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          2  that authority.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, that's one

          4  item. But to say that if we don't adopt it, you'd

          5  have to have an 18 and a half percent increase in

          6  mid-year, isn't that absurd?

          7                 MR. TRIPP: I don't know whether it's

          8  absurd or not. I am personally, and this is my

          9  personal statement, I'm sorry in a way that the

         10  argument before you having to do with this authority

         11  has gotten tied up with the idea that we may have to

         12  do a mid-year rate increase.

         13                 All I can say is in my view, and I

         14  think in the views of the members of the Water

         15  Board, who are looking ahead ten years, we're not

         16  just thinking about a mid-year rate increase, we're

         17  thinking about the rate increase that we're going to

         18  have to adopt, you know, next spring. If you look at

         19  the plan, it is anticipated to be another 11

         20  percent, you look at borrowing, two to three, three

         21  and a half billion dollars a year, we can see where

         22  things are going. We need to have a collection and

         23  enforcement system that all the residents and

         24  commercial businesses of the City respect.

         25                 Yes. Are there going to be hardship
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          2  cases? Yes. We have to have some kind of a safety

          3  net program? Yes. Does the City have that? It has a

          4  lot of programs to take care of people with special

          5  needs. They came up with one of the 21 residential

          6  homeowners that went to HPD and got some assistance,

          7  but we forget about the mid-year rate increase. All

          8  I can say is, I would be here representing the Water

          9  Board asking for the same thing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. So, it's

         11  safe to say you don't agree with Mr. Page that the

         12  18 and a half percent mid-year increase is dependent

         13  on whether we adopt the stand alone water lien sales

         14  or not?

         15                 MR. TRIPP: Well, it's certainly one

         16  of the variables. You know, what else could happen

         17  in the real world? Revenues, improved revenues could

         18  come in, the residential shutoff program could begin

         19  to have an impact on the willingness to pay of

         20  recalcitrant rate payers, we may work out some kind

         21  of arrangement with a rental payment. All I'm going

         22  to tell you is, from the point of view of the Water

         23  Board, we're going to do our damndest to do whatever

         24  has to be done, so that we don't have to approve a

         25  mid-year rate increase. Or if we do, it's not going

                                                            197

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  to be 18 percent, it's going to be 16, 14, 12, 10 or

          3  something smaller than that.

          4                 None of us want to, the last thing in

          5  the world a group of citizens who have been

          6  appointed to serve on this Water Board want to do is

          7  to approve a mid-year rate increase. So, in my view,

          8  having that independent water lien sale authority

          9  increases the likelihood that we will not have to

         10  have any mid-year rate increase, whether it's the,

         11  you know, great panacea in the sky, I don't know.

         12                 All I know is we need to have a

         13  system in place, starting today, starting tomorrow,

         14  certainly starting next spring, where the rate

         15  payers out there who are using our water and sewer

         16  service respect us, understand there is a cost to

         17  delivering that service, and pay for it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Let me ask you a

         19  legal question, and that will be my last question,

         20  since you are an attorney and you are kind of an

         21  expert in this water area, based on your serving as

         22  Chair of the Water Board for so many years.

         23                 Do you have the legal authority

         24  unequivocably to do a mid-year rate increase, as

         25  many as you want?
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          2                 And two is, and the second part of

          3  that question is, what would legally have to happen

          4  to prevent you from having more than once a year

          5  rate increase?

          6                 MR. TRIPP: Well, I'm not too sure I

          7  can answer the latter question today. I don't really

          8  know. So, if you want an answer, I would have to

          9  think about it.

         10                 As far as the former question is

         11  concerned, do we have the authority, our paramount

         12  legal responsibility to the rate payers, to the City

         13  Council Administration and to the bond holders is to

         14  make sure that revenues come in that are sufficient

         15  to pay for debt service costs and to pay operating

         16  costs and not create a situation where all of a

         17  sudden the credibility of the bonds of the New York

         18  City Water Authority, which are essential to raise

         19  the capital to maintain this system, that there is

         20  some doubt shed on that credibility. And at least so

         21  long as I'm the Chair of the Water Board, I don't

         22  want to see that happen.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, in theory,

         24  you could do a rate increase every month?

         25                 MR. TRIPP: If we have to do a rate

                                                            199

          1  COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  increase every month, you know, I sure hope it is

          3  entirely hypothetical, I just stated what our legal

          4  authority is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm talking about

          6  legally.

          7                 MR. TRIPP: Do we have the legal

          8  authority at the same time to go to DEP and say

          9  you've got to cut your expenses by two or three

         10  percent or five percent? No. But I'll tell you,

         11  we're going to go as far as we can. Do we have the

         12  legal authority to tell DEP to postpone putting out

         13  a contract, cut down on debt service cost for at

         14  least a little tiny bit of it? We're going to start

         15  doing all of that.

         16                 Do we have legal authority to go to

         17  the City and say we're not going to pay the rental

         18  payment? In all likelihood, no. But we're going to

         19  go, you know, absolutely as far as we can.

         20                 I mean, clearly, for members of the

         21  Water Board, if the choice is, you know, a nine

         22  percent mid-year rate increase and no rental payment

         23  to the City, other than to cover the debt service

         24  cost, or 18 percent in paying the rent payment, it's

         25  clear to us what we want to do.
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          2                 I mean, again, from our point of

          3  view, it just makes no sense to have a mid-year rate

          4  increase that is triggered by a revenue shortfall if

          5  projected out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm actually

          7  informed by Counsel there is a question about

          8  whether you do have the legal authority to do a

          9  mid-year increase, because the Public Authority Law,

         10  which governs the Water Board specifically

         11  contemplates a once a year rate action. So, there is

         12  a legal question.

         13                 MR. TRIPP: I mean, it would put us in

         14  a difficult situation, if we can't do it, and it's

         15  necessary, of having an even bigger rate increase,

         16  you know, next year. And, again, we don't want to do

         17  that. It's not good, from our point of view, from

         18  the Water Board's point of view, to have five, six

         19  of the ratepayers covering, carrying the water for

         20  everyone else. And we need to do something about

         21  that.

         22                 We need a more effective residential

         23  cutoff program, yes, where we can do that, where it

         24  is sufficient and fair and can be implemented

         25  fairly. But we need this independent water lien
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          2  authority, particularly as a fair and efficient way

          3  to deal with recalcitrant landlords who are not

          4  paying their water bills.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Mr. Page, did you

          6  have something you wanted to add?

          7                 MR. PAGE: I believe that --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Can you come up

          9  to the microphone?

         10                 In the interest of full disclosure,

         11  trying to set the record straight, we welcome your

         12  comments.

         13                 MR. PAGE: You know, I agree with what

         14  Mr. Tripp has said, and endorse his legal analysis.

         15                 I believe that the legal obligation

         16  is there to provide the necessary revenue and the

         17  legal ability to amend rates more often than

         18  annually.

         19                 I also believe it is clear under the

         20  law. I also agree that he is certainly in a

         21  position, as he has expressed here, to press his

         22  view of how issues such as the rent payment should

         23  be treated or expenditures by DEP or capital

         24  program, those are views that, of course, I think

         25  all of us will be considering in working out how to
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          2  do it. But those are not the same thing as where the

          3  legal responsibilities lie in terms of how the

          4  structure functions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          6                 I believe Council Member Sears had a

          7  question. A brief question. The hour is getting

          8  late.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's brief. I

         10  know. In lieu of what is being said, and I don't

         11  think anybody likes to view water rate increases, so

         12  I say this with a sensitivity to that, because I

         13  might be in a very adversarial position here. Not

         14  with you, but with the rest of my colleagues.

         15                 The fact is, do you have -- and it

         16  was stated earlier by Mr. Page all of the unfunded

         17  mandates that we have, and we have many of them in

         18  education, which is costing the City a great deal of

         19  money, and you stated earlier that you would look to

         20  see, even in terms of the capital projects, I

         21  assume, I shouldn't but I will, most of that debt

         22  service has to do with the capital projects, funded

         23  and unfunded. Therefore, how much leverage do you

         24  have, or does DEP have, to prioritize those unfunded

         25  mandates that you would delay the beginnings of
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          2  them? And if you do have that leeway, is it put into

          3  a time frame? Because as I stated earlier, and you

          4  were concerned about the water rate for ten years

          5  and 20 years, and rightfully so, and a lot of that

          6  goes into exactly how the City meets its mandates. I

          7  think that some of our displeasure should be aimed

          8  at the State and federal government, because it's

          9  not where if you don't have big daddy watching you,

         10  the City is suddenly going to turn their water

         11  system into a schlop system, I don't believe that at

         12  all.

         13                 So, in your knowledge, does the City

         14  have that flexibility? The Water Board, DEP, to

         15  delay unfunded mandates? And if so, is there a

         16  penalty for it?

         17                 MR. TRIPP: Well, as the Commissioner

         18  indicated, DEP has entered into agreements with EPA

         19  and/or the State to do certain things on a certain

         20  schedule, and what are called the unfunded mandates,

         21  that's what those are.

         22                 You know, is there leeway? Not in my

         23  view within the context of a lot of those

         24  agreements. But any contract can be renegotiated and

         25  I think DEP has tried to do it from time to time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Have they been

          3  successful?

          4                 MR. TRIPP: Well, I think in some

          5  cases, I mean some of the deadlines for completing

          6  certain tasks such as the Croton Filtration Plant,

          7  those deadlines have been put off. There was a

          8  recent agreement, I say recent, within the last two

          9  years, having to do with nitrogen removal in the

         10  four east river plants. That was negotiated over a

         11  period of time.

         12                 A lot of what DEP might call

         13  environmental mandates are in fact things that

         14  should be done on public health or environmental

         15  grounds anyhow, so it's not just as though, you

         16  know, EPA or State Department of Health has this gun

         17  at DEP and says you have to build the Croton

         18  Filtration Plant.

         19                 As an environmentalist, not as a

         20  member of the Water Board, but I work for a national

         21  environmental organization, I strongly supported the

         22  Croton Filtration Plant, because I thought that

         23  watershed was substantially developed, and it made

         24  sense from a public health point of view to have

         25  that extra barrier.
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          2                 I certainly don't feel that way with

          3  respect to Catskill Delaware water. But, again,

          4  speaking sort of as an environmentalist, as a

          5  person, I recognize, and this is what my service in

          6  the Water Board has done, there is a kind of a

          7  health consequence to what the Water Board does in

          8  increasing rates, it has consequences for people,

          9  particularly for low-income people.

         10                 So, that's why as a member of the

         11  Water Board, and now Chair of the Water Board, you

         12  know, I am intensely interested in how we, in the

         13  best sense of the word, how do we protect the public

         14  health, and simply paying for certain kinds of

         15  capital expenses, when the consequence is another

         16  one or two percent on the rate increase, that's a

         17  question that has to be raised.

         18                 And I have written even in the

         19  statement here, there are some thoughts as to what

         20  are the highest priorities, what do we have to do,

         21  but what maybe could we put off?

         22                 Other people may disagree, but I

         23  think we're at a state right now, there is so much

         24  construction going on in the City, costs of

         25  construction are up, Lord only knows what's going to
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          2  happen to interest rates, you know, in debt, but I

          3  think we have to make a renewed effort to think

          4  about the capital program and the shaping of the

          5  capital program looking out over the years, as to

          6  how we moderate increases in debt service costs

          7  going over the next, you know, ten years or more,

          8  and that's in part a responsibility of the Water

          9  Board to nudge everyone to do that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

         11  that. I just wanted to get at the fact that it cost

         12  the City a lot with these unfunded mandates. You are

         13  obligated to pay 15 percent of that debt, towards

         14  that debt service.

         15                 MR. TRIPP: You're absolutely right,

         16  and should --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I think you

         18  need to be cognizant of that.

         19                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And to direct

         21  our energies in other areas, as well as to the

         22  agencies.

         23                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Nobody likes to

         25  have rate increases, and they're not done
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          2  frivolously, but I just think in order to deal with

          3  this overwhelming issue, we need to look at the

          4  other areas in which I feel the government has a

          5  responsibility for the water system of the people of

          6  this State and this country and of this City.

          7                 MR. TRIPP: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I think the

          9  City needs help in doing that.

         10                 MR. TRIPP: Yes, you're absolutely

         11  right.

         12                 There was in the 1996 State Clean

         13  Water Clean Air Bond Act, there was some money in

         14  that for nitrogen removal, and I think of the $200

         15  million for that, 70 or 80 million has come to the

         16  City or is coming to the City. Should there be more

         17  of that, if there is another State bond act, I sure

         18  hope that the City steps up and indicates what its

         19  needs are.

         20                 At the national level, you know,

         21  we've advocated and we've got to do more advocating

         22  for, you know, capital assistance, particularly for

         23  older cities. I mean, one of the bit environmental

         24  problems in our society is sprawl, that leads to,

         25  you know, use of a huge amount of energy and
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          2  consumption of land. So, the older cities that are

          3  growing and can absorb more population, it would

          4  benefit the country to have federal dollars coming

          5  in to help pay for some of these capital programs.

          6                 And the national environmental

          7  groups, one of which I work for, we've got to do a

          8  better job of advocating for that in the coming

          9  years.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         12  Chairman Tripp.

         13                 The hour is getting late. What I

         14  would like to do is take the remaining witnesses

         15  that have scheduled to testify to come up as a

         16  panel. We're going to try to limit you to three

         17  minutes each, you know, with the discretion of the

         18  Chairs making an exception when necessary, but that

         19  doesn't mean you're required to testify for three

         20  minutes, if you feel you can say what you want to

         21  stay in shorter periods of time, that's fine as

         22  well.

         23                 And if you could bring a couple of

         24  chairs up, in case there are not enough chairs at

         25  the desk. We have from the New York City Comptroller
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          2  William Thompson's office Eduardo Castell and

          3  Marshall Van Wagner. I saw Marshall Van Wagner.

          4                 We have Sasha Puritz from the

          5  Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer's Office.

          6                 We have Jack Freund and/or Frank

          7  Ricci from the Rent Stabilization Association.

          8                 We have Corey Bearak, President of

          9  the Queens Civic Congress.

         10                 We have Mary Ann Rothman from the

         11  Council of New York Cooperatives and Condominiums.

         12                 And we have Dave Hanzel from the

         13  Association for Neighborhood and Housing

         14  Development.

         15                 And if anybody would like to testify

         16  that I did not read, please see the Sergeant-At-Arms

         17  immediately.

         18                 Is there someone here from Rent

         19  Stabilization Association? Okay, well, we have a

         20  statement from them we'll read into the record

         21  before the hearing is concluded.

         22                 Okay, proceed. In the order I called

         23  them.

         24                 MS. VAN WAGNER: Okay. Good morning.

         25  Good afternoon. I had the wrong time. Good morning,
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          2  Chairman. Good afternoon, Chairman Weprin and

          3  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Finance

          4  Environmental Protection Committees, for inviting

          5  Comptroller Thompson to speak today. He couldn't be

          6  here and sent his regrets.

          7                 I am here today not with Eduardo

          8  Castell, but with Carol Caustic, who is Deputy

          9  Comptroller for Public Finance at the Comptroller's

         10  Office.

         11                 I'm going to skip through my

         12  testimony, since we are trying to save time. Just to

         13  summarize, the DEP has come with three proposals,

         14  one to City Council and two to the Water Board. The

         15  one to City Council has to do with asking for the

         16  water lien and the two to the Water Board have to do

         17  with their changes in collection procedures and the

         18  possibility of beginning the process for a mid-year

         19  18 percent rate increase.

         20                 The Comptroller believes that the

         21  lien sale proposal is a reasonable request, but that

         22  the other two parts of the package be replaced with

         23  more focused use of existing collection procedures,

         24  and a reprogramming of existing water system funds.

         25                 These measures will provide resources
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          2  to maintain the system's financial strength while a

          3  necessary long-term review of the City's water and

          4  sewer financial structure is undertaken and the

          5  impact of any changes on homeowners is evaluated.

          6                 The Comptroller is not suggesting

          7  that water customers should not be expected to pay

          8  for their water usage. Fairness dictates that all

          9  should pay for their usage and we must protect the

         10  financial health of the water and sewer system to

         11  ensure high bond ratings, cost effective capital

         12  borrowing and sound operations now and in the

         13  future.

         14                 Before devising new regulations, the

         15  DEP should better apply the regulations it already

         16  has in place.

         17                 For example, the recommendation by

         18  DEP's collection consultant, who is Allen Hamilton,

         19  to use the telephone to contact delinquent customers

         20  seems reasonable and is in fact surprising that the

         21  DEP does not already use this tool extensively.

         22                 The Comptroller is troubled because

         23  the fall-off in collections may be related to the

         24  growing problem of mortgage delinquencies and

         25  foreclosures. It is plaguing many of our
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          2  neighborhoods, especially those in Southeastern

          3  Queens and parts of Brooklyn.

          4                 Last spring our office established a

          5  foreclosure prevention help line that provides

          6  assistance to people who are trying to keep their

          7  homes. Many are struggling mightily to get their

          8  financial situation in order. We know from calls to

          9  the help line the difficult choices people face on a

         10  daily basis and these are heartbreaking.

         11                 DEP's ill-conceived proposed

         12  regulations will exacerbate the problems of

         13  households in neighborhoods that find themselves in

         14  the grip of this national crisis. DEP's consultants

         15  calculated that the amount owed in water and sewer

         16  accounts that are in arrears less than five years

         17  averages $1,720. A family whose arrears equal this

         18  average balance would face a tremendous challenge

         19  under the proposed regulations. If they are unable

         20  to raise the money and pay within 15 days, their

         21  service would be terminated.

         22                 To fend out termination, they would

         23  have to raise half that amount, or $860 within five

         24  days of the termination notice. Many people in this

         25  room might have difficulty raising that much cash in
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          2  such a short period of time.

          3                 The fact is, this proposed regulation

          4  will tip the scales toward foreclosure for many

          5  families.

          6                 Aggressive water shutoffs in

          7  neighborhoods that have a concentration of

          8  distressed mortgages will also have a negative

          9  effect on the larger community.

         10                 DEP needs to develop a policy and

         11  train staff to handle distressed homeowner

         12  situations. It also needs to map delinquencies and

         13  where there is a concentration, determine that there

         14  will not be adverse neighborhood impact before

         15  shutting off water.

         16                 The Comptroller agrees that allowing

         17  water only lien sales is a sensible approach if DEP

         18  can be certain that the relevant accounts are

         19  accurate.

         20                 I know I'm out of time, I'm just

         21  going to skip ahead. In short, the other proposals

         22  put forward by DEP to solve are poorly understood

         23  and perhaps temporary collection shortfall are

         24  precipitous and smack of scare tactics. There is a

         25  better way to proceed.
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          2                 In a letter to the Water Board on

          3  October 2nd, Comptroller Thompson noted that the

          4  Fiscal Year 2008 budget, includes an $84.5 million

          5  surplus, on top of approximately 55 million in

          6  additional funds rolled over from Fiscal Year 2007.

          7                 In that letter the Comptroller

          8  proposed that these funds be used to offset any need

          9  for mid-year rate increases.

         10                 Together with a sensitively

         11  implemented collection strategy, this would buy time

         12  while a more comprehensive financial review and plan

         13  is completed.

         14                 In the presentation to the Water

         15  Board last June, the Comptroller proposed a change

         16  in the rental payment, as you have been discussing

         17  here, from the Water Board to the City that would

         18  lessen the pressure on water rates in both the long

         19  and short term.

         20                 We have information here just going

         21  over the formula and the amount of money that it

         22  would generate. Again, the $77 million of what we

         23  are determining excess rent in 2008, which would

         24  grow to 175 million by Fiscal Year 2011.

         25                 The Comptroller's proposal is to
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          2  rebate the excess rent back to the Board and use it

          3  to offset the cost of running the water system. The

          4  proposal splits the excess rent in equal measure

          5  between pay-as-you-go capital, which would reduce

          6  costs over the longrun in current year expenses,

          7  which would lessen the need for rate increases.

          8                 Using the excess rent in this way

          9  would save rate payers approximately $276 million

         10  during Fiscal Years 2009 to 2012.

         11                 If collections are indeed lower than

         12  planned this year, funds that are already budgeted

         13  by DEP for pay-as-you-go capital could be applied

         14  toward general expenses, if necessary, and a portion

         15  of the excess rent could be used for pay-as-you-go

         16  capital at the end of the year.

         17                 Public policy always involves finding

         18  the right balance among competing needs. In this

         19  case, the Comptroller believes that DEP's regulatory

         20  and rate proposals jump too quickly to ratepayers'

         21  pockets without adequately using the tools and

         22  resources already at hand.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         25                 Yes, go ahead.
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          2                 MS. PURITZ: Good afternoon. I'm Sasha

          3  Puritz on behalf of Manhattan Borough President

          4  Scott Stringer.

          5                 Thank you, Chairman Gennaro and

          6  Chairman Weprin, and the Committees on Environmental

          7  Protection and Finance for the opportunity to

          8  testify today in opposition to the New York City

          9  Water Board's proposed 18 percent rate increase.

         10                 The Borough President sat before the

         11  New York City Water Board six months ago to discuss

         12  his beliefs on this issue. Just before the newly

         13  11.5 percent rate increase was adopted. I will

         14  repeat today what he said then:

         15                 We face two options in resolving our

         16  City's water billing and payment delinquency

         17  problems.

         18                 The first option is for us to work

         19  collectively in developing robust and judicious

         20  monitoring and enforcement mechanisms that will

         21  bring about improved account tracking and payment

         22  compliance.

         23                 The second option is to turn a blind

         24  eye on the true sources of the Water Board's

         25  financing problems, and simply increase the water
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          2  rate every time we face a shortfall, thereby making

          3  every New York citizen shoulder a burden that should

          4  only be borne by some.

          5                 From the standpoint of long-term

          6  efficiency, equity and ethics, our responsibility is

          7  clear. The long-term effects of a rate increase will

          8  be painfully felt by the City's tenants, including

          9  those in rent-regulated units. As many renters in

         10  New York City do not pay individual water bills,

         11  they may not be mobilized around this rate increase.

         12                 However, tenants will pay for it when

         13  the Rent Guidelines Board hears from landlords about

         14  the rising cost of utilities.

         15                 An 18 percent rate increase will set

         16  off a chain reaction of rent increases for New

         17  Yorkers who least can afford it.

         18                 Not only should additional rate hikes

         19  be a last resort, but the Water Board must improve

         20  its internal operations before considering

         21  aggressive tactics to collect unpaid bills, such as

         22  stand alone water liens and water shutoffs.

         23                 Terminating water service is a dire

         24  measure. It would mean the costly and disruptive

         25  action of digging up streets and it is unfair to
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          2  residents in multi-family buildings who will find

          3  themselves without water because of their landlord's

          4  failure to pay the bills.

          5                 Before thinking of instituting such

          6  tactics, the Water Board must make every effort to

          7  update and revamp its customer service department

          8  and collection system so that it functions

          9  effectively and is no longer riddled with errors.

         10                 I strongly urge the New York City

         11  Water Board to make all efforts to overhaul its

         12  collection system so that it can effectively collect

         13  past due bills from dead beat owners and landlords

         14  so the general public is not left to foot the bill.

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         16  testify.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. And

         18  you came in under the wire. Thirty seconds.

         19                 Mr. Bearak.

         20                 MR. BEARAK: Okay. Thank you, Chairmen

         21  Weprin and Gennaro on behalf of the Queens Civic

         22  Congress for this opportunity to testify on our

         23  continuing concerns that the water rate increases

         24  without any real oversight.

         25                 I'm Corey Bearak. I'm President of
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          2  this umbrella group that represents 100 civic,

          3  cooperative, condo, tenant and other community

          4  associations throughout the Borough of Queens. Our

          5  membership represents almost every community in the

          6  borough.

          7                 We oppose this double digit 18.5

          8  percent rate hike which effectively serves as

          9  another tax hike and represents a further abdication

         10  by City Hall when it comes to securing the support

         11  New Yorkers should expect from Washington and

         12  Albany. At a time when some of our brightest New

         13  York lights, Chair of the House Ways and Means

         14  Committee, and many other members hold senior posts

         15  in Congress, the ongoing lack of any plan to capture

         16  appropriate federal aid and relief staggers the

         17  mind.

         18                 I was pleased that Mr. Tripp talked

         19  about it for environmental groups, but really it

         20  should happen out of City Hall, and it just has not

         21  happened.

         22                 The Queens Civic Congress questions

         23  why City Hall lets Washington off the hook. Further,

         24  the several billion dollars for Croton, nearly $3

         25  billion, according to the IBO report last month, and
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          2  the ultraviolet for CatDel, would be better

          3  allocated to more land purchases and conservation

          4  easements.  Where property owners become

          5  recalcitrant, the State must step in for the City,

          6  which gave up its right to use condemned --

          7  condemnation as part of the Watershed Agreements it

          8  forged with the State and Upstate communities.

          9                 The annual rental payments to the

         10  City Board, to the Water Board, which my

         11  predecessor, Shawn Walsh, caused a posentsy

         12  (phonetic) scheme, covers all but one percent of the

         13  last rate hike, and we've got to just stop it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Can you speak up,

         15  please?

         16                 MR. BEARAK: Sure.

         17                 These reasons remain compelling

         18  examples of why the Civic Congress opposes these

         19  water tax hikes. The Congress finds these consistent

         20  annual increases in water and sewer rates place a

         21  hardship on homeowners, many seniors living on fixed

         22  incomes, cooperatives and small business. It makes

         23  all the more incredulous and outrageous City Hall's

         24  plan to foist another enormous tax hike on New

         25  Yorkers. This is akin to the 22 percent property tax
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          2  hike that we already have endured.

          3                 Instead of these hikes, it's time

          4  perhaps a as a ruse to pressure the City Council to

          5  act on the liens sale issue. The Congress calls on

          6  the Water Board to adopt policies to keep rates as

          7  low as possible, while delivering clean drinking

          8  water and providing for the safe disposal of water.

          9                 While we commend the record on water,

         10  quality water delivery and efforts to upgrade waste

         11  water disposal, the Water Board and our City fathers

         12  consistently get failing grades on rate setting. The

         13  proposed rate increase looks particularly gouging

         14  with the enormous surpluses the Board has had in the

         15  past.

         16                 This rate increase follows the scheme

         17  of heights through all but two times over nearly

         18  three decades, and on the last page of the testimony

         19  we documented all the hikes.

         20                 We really need to view this proposed

         21  increase in the context of one of a series of

         22  continuing increases.  Since water metering began in

         23  the 1980s, the cost of the water increases have been

         24  more in four-fold and with this hike it will

         25  probably be something like 500 percent, and it's
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          2  just really outrageous.

          3                 And in terms of the rest of the

          4  testimony, I think it's really important that when

          5  many of these costs, and particularly something like

          6  70 percent of the capital costs over the next five

          7  years result in the federal and State mandates, as I

          8  indicated before, we really need to do something

          9  about that, get Washington and Albany to step up and

         10  really rethink particularly the filtration plant and

         11  the Croton system and go back to buying some land

         12  instead. And I think that will be much more cost

         13  effective in the long term.

         14                 And I just want to just, again, in

         15  terms of the accountability issue, which I think is

         16  key, and it came up before, there has been pending

         17  State legislation that passed in Albany every year

         18  that I worked on. It follows legislation that I

         19  conceived when I was in the City Council, and Jim

         20  was involved with me on it, that would delay setting

         21  of rates until the Council pays the budget. It's

         22  absolutely crucial that that gets passed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, we didn't

         24  contemplate a monthly increase or a three --

         25                 MR. BEARAK: Well, that would have
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          2  meant they would have had to come back to you, and

          3  that's the whole point. They couldn't do it.

          4                 And you know, in terms of the issue

          5  that Councilman Vacca raised before, the Civic

          6  Congress in our platform has consistently talked

          7  about a SHE and a SCRIE program for senior water

          8  rate payers. Obviously that would have to be funded

          9  from tax levy but it is something that is needed and

         10  we think it should be done. And I thank you for your

         11  time. And if the whole of my remarks can go as part

         12  of the record, I would appreciate it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No problem.

         14                 We've been joined by Council Member

         15  Tom White from Queens, in addition to Council Member

         16  Robert Jackson from Manhattan, who I think was

         17  introduced earlier in the day, and Council Member

         18  Helen Sears, who was introduced earlier as well.

         19                 Proceed.

         20                 MS. ROTHMAN: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Mary Ann Rothman. I am the Executive Director of

         22  the Council of New York Cooperatives and

         23  Condominiums, which is a membership and advocacy

         24  group for housing cooperatives and condominiums in

         25  this City.
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          2                 There are many sister organizations

          3  for which I speak also to.  You have the Urban Home

          4  City Assistance Board, and the HDFC Council who had

          5  representatives here but they weren't able to stay

          6  until the very end.

          7                 And I commend you on holding this

          8  hearing. I have learned an awful lot in the course

          9  of, oh my goodness, almost five hours. And I would

         10  have -- I tried to prepare remarks, but in the

         11  absence of the Booz Allen report in advance, I

         12  wasn't certain in which direction things were going

         13  to go, so I apologize for rambling a little bit.

         14                 I've been involved on water issues

         15  for more years than I care to count.

         16                 I've testified at the Water Board

         17  again and again, that Housing Co-Ops and

         18  condominiums of whom I would venture to say 99

         19  percent are current on their water bills and the few

         20  that aren't are because they're very low-income

         21  co-ops and condos with problems, we're tired of

         22  being the guys who pick up the tab at the table, and

         23  I think we need to work to catch up with all the

         24  people using water in this City.

         25                 My organization does a comparative
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          2  study of building operating costs every year. We've

          3  been doing it since 1980. We collect financial

          4  statements for our member buildings, we parcel out

          5  the cost of operating the building and determine

          6  roughly what percentage of the budget is.

          7                 In the early years, water and sewer,

          8  which of course, was based on a formula, I could

          9  tell if people were behaving normally because it

         10  fell out so neatly. It was almost one percent of a

         11  typical budget in a full-service building, with a

         12  number of employees. And it was consistent. It was a

         13  clean, clear number.

         14                 When metering came in, there was more

         15  variety, but that one percent has become three, and

         16  three and a half and four percent of budget in a

         17  full-service building, and considerably higher

         18  percentages of budget in smaller self-managed

         19  buildings.

         20                 I have many member buildings whose

         21  member bills are higher than their property tax

         22  bills.

         23                 So, I'm encouraged by what I heard

         24  today about the various means. In place to try to

         25  recover monies due. I would second everything that
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          2  you have said today, Mr. Gennaro, about making sure

          3  that these wonderful new systems work, prove it, try

          4  it, maybe much more money will come in with a more

          5  efficient way of collecting bills before we go for

          6  big rate increases.

          7                 And I have just respectfully a

          8  suggestion to make. If we're giving massive

          9  forgivenesses, let's find a way to also lock in

         10  future payment. If someone hasn't been paying for

         11  ten years, they get a greatly reduced means of

         12  paying their water bill --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Like an amnesty

         14  program?

         15                 MS. ROTHMAN: If there's an amnesty

         16  program you have to agree to keep paying afterwards,

         17  and if you fail to do that for the next two, or

         18  three or five or 20 years, then some of the amnesty

         19  should go away and be reinstated.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         22                 MR. HANZEL: Good afternoon. Thank

         23  you, Chairman Weprin, Chairman Gennaro and Committee

         24  members, for this opportunity to testify about the

         25  City's sale of tax and water liens.
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          2                 My name is David Hanzel and I serve

          3  as the Policy Director for the Association for

          4  Neighborhood and Housing Development.

          5                 The process of collecting outstanding

          6  liens has always been challenging and wrought with

          7  pain for both the City and property owners.

          8                 As the City begins to rethink how to

          9  approach the sale of liens, we believe it must also

         10  recognize the importance of preserving these

         11  properties as affordable housing.

         12                 As you know, the City has been

         13  selling tax liens for over ten years. While the

         14  program has been effective at lowering real property

         15  tax delinquency rate, and generating over 1.1

         16  billion in additional revenue, there has been little

         17  effort to ensure owners take responsibility for the

         18  long-term physical and fiscal health of the

         19  property.

         20                 Indeed, since the City secured liens,

         21  the main objective once they are sold is to repay

         22  investors, not to preserve the housing and protect

         23  the residents.

         24                 We believe there is a better way for

         25  the City to approach the collection of tax liens
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          2  without writing off these properties as a valuable

          3  resource as we endeavor to meet the housing needs of

          4  all New Yorkers.

          5                 Currently, properties with

          6  outstanding liens go down one of three paths: The

          7  first path is inclusion in the tax lien sale

          8  program; the second is the inclusion of the property

          9  in the HPD's owner services program; and, finally,

         10  the third path is the Third-party Transfer Program.

         11                 We lay out some of the criteria for

         12  each of these paths in our full testimony, but I

         13  wanted to talk about path one and path three this

         14  afternoon.

         15                 Many of ANHD's members have received

         16  third-party transfer properties, transformed them to

         17  viable properties and preserved them as permanently

         18  affordable mixed income housing. These buildings

         19  help stabilize neighborhoods and protect economic

         20  diversity of our City.

         21                 According to Local Law 37 of 1996,

         22  which set up the alternative in rem procedure that

         23  enabled the Third-Party Transfer Program, distressed

         24  properties are defined as those with:

         25                 - a 15 percent or more tax lien to
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          2  market value ration; and

          3                 - five or more hazardous or

          4  immediately hazardous Housing Maintenance Code

          5  violations per dwelling unit; and/or

          6                 - $1,000 or more in HPD Emergency

          7  Repair Program liens per building.

          8                 These criteria, however, do not

          9  always accurately reflect the physical condition of

         10  the property, or the owner's ability or desire to

         11  maintain it as safe affordable housing.

         12                 Although HPD was given discretionary

         13  authority to exclude from the tax lien sale program

         14  properties deemed distressed, it failed to do so

         15  except for the first lien sale.

         16                 For this sale, HPD relied heavily on

         17  recommendations from 53 community-based

         18  organizations with contracts under the Neighborhood

         19  Preservation Consultants Program to identify

         20  potentially distressed buildings.

         21                 The result was a scrubbing process to

         22  remove these liens from the sale list.

         23                 We believe HPD should re-embrace this

         24  approach to identify buildings that may be a good

         25  fit for inclusion in the TPT program.
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          2                 After analyzing the number of

          3  properties that have been steered into the tax lien

          4  and Third-Party Transfer Programs, it is evident

          5  that the City's main priority has been to increase

          6  its revenue, rather than the preservation of

          7  affordable housing.

          8                 Over the last ten years, 45,000 liens

          9  have been sold. Over the same period, only 420

         10  properties have entered the Third-Party Transfer

         11  Program. This is a short-sighted strategy that

         12  trades the long-term preservation of these buildings

         13  for modest increases in revenue.

         14                 While the overall performance --

         15  excuse me -- while the overall percentage of

         16  auctions resulting from the tax lien sales and

         17  residential properties is modest, over 450

         18  properties representing thousands of units could

         19  have been preserved as affordable housing according

         20  to the 2003 Mayor's Management Report.

         21                 We believe the threshold to exclude

         22  properties from the tax lien sale program should be

         23  lowered while simultaneously pressuring HPD to

         24  utilize neighborhood-based groups to help it

         25  identify potentially distressed buildings, which
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          2  would then be steered to the Third-Party Transfer

          3  Program.

          4                 As the Council considers the renewal

          5  of Local Law 26 of 1996, we urge you to re-evaluate

          6  the opportunities presented by both the tax lien

          7  sale and Third-Party Transfer Program to better meet

          8  the housing needs of low- and middle-income New

          9  Yorkers.

         10                 We believe the City must consider

         11  possible revisions that would enhance the pool of

         12  properties steered to these programs that serve as a

         13  cost-effective way to provide affordable housing.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. And

         16  thank you, all, for your patience.

         17                 Is there anybody else in the audience

         18  that would like to testify? Speak now or forever

         19  hold your testimony.

         20                 I will read into the record, not

         21  read, but it will be included fully in the record,

         22  the testimony of the Rent Stabilization Association,

         23  before this Council hearing, and that will be

         24  included in full in the record, as well as the

         25  testimony that was shortened by a number of
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          2  individuals here, including the Queens Civic

          3  Congress and the Comptroller's Office.

          4                 Other than that, I have concluded my

          5  questions and statements.

          6                 Chair Gennaro?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Nothing for me.

          8  I want to thank everyone for their patience and for

          9  their testimony, for their insights. It's been a

         10  long hearing. I'm very grateful that people stayed

         11  til the end, and saw it through. So, nothing more

         12  for me, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, the joint

         14  hearing of the Finance Committee is now adjourned,

         15  and Environmental Protection.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:58 p.m.)
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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